FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED MAY 24, 2023
TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS

$5,565,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES

Dated Due
June 15, 2023 December 15, 2023
Number Award Coupon Rate Yield CUSIP
1 $ 5,565,000 4.50% 3.75% 809095 A85

The provisions of the accompanying PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND NOTICE OF SALE DATED
MAY 18, 2023 supplemented and modified hereby, are incorporated in and made part of this Final Official
Statement.

Hilltop Securities Inc.

Financial Advisor



PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND NOTICE OF SALE DATED MAY 18, 2023

In the opinion of Locke Lord LLP, Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing law and assuming, among other
matters, compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Interest on the Notes will not be included
in computing the alternative minimum taxable income of individuals. For tax years beginning after December 31, 2022,
however, interest on the Notes will be included in the “adjusted financial statement income” of certain corporations that are
subject to the alternative minimum tax under Section 55 of the Code. Under existing law, interest on the Notes is exempt
from Massachusetts personal income taxes, and the Notes are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. Bond
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the
accrual or receipt of interest on, the Notes. See “Tax Exemption” herein. The Notes will not be designated as “qualified tax-
exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
$5,565,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES

The Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (the “Town”), will receive telephone and electronic bids at Hilltop Securities Inc. (617-
619-4400) in the case of telephone bids and via PARITY in the case of electronic bids until 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time,
Wednesday, May 24, 2023 for the purchase of the following described General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes (the
“Notes”).

$5,565,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes (new money). The Notes will be dated June 15, 2023
and will be payable December 15, 2023. Interest will be computed on a 30-day-month/360-day-year
basis (180/360). The Notes will not be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity date.

Bids may be submitted electronically via PARITY pursuant to this Notice of Sale until 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time, but no bid
will be received after the time for receiving bids specified above. To the extent any instructions or directions set forth in
PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale shall control. For further information about PARITY,
potential bidders may contact Hilltop Securities Inc. (617) 619-4400 or PARITY at (212) 404-8102.

The Notes will be issued by means of a book-entry system, evidencing ownership of the Notes in principal amounts of
$1,000, or integral multiples thereof, with transfers of ownership effected on the records of The Depository Trust Company
(DTC) and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by DTC (see "Book-Entry Transfer System"), unless
the issuance of a fully registered note certificate is requested by a Successful Bidder and the issuance of such certificate is
approved by the Town. Principal and interest will be payable upon maturity in federal reserve funds at U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, Boston, Massachusetts. Bidders may elect to denominate the Notes as physical registered
securities rather than “Book-Entry” securities to be held by DTC, subject to approval of the Town.

Bids for the Notes may be submitted for all or part of the Notes at a single or various rates of interest in multiples of one-
hundredth (1/100) of one percent (1%). No bid of less than par and accrued interest to the date of delivery will be considered.
A premium of at least $2.65 must be included for each $1,000 bid. The right is reserved to reject any and all bids not
complying with this Notice of Sale and, so far as permitted by law, to waive any irregularity with respect to any bid. The
Notes will be awarded on the basis of lowest net interest cost to the Town after deduction of premium, if any. Such cost will
be determined by computing the total amount of interest payable on the Notes, at the rate or rates stated, from June 15,
2023 until the maturity of the Notes and deducting therefrom the sum, if any, by which the amount bid for the Notes exceeds
the aggregate principal amount of the Notes. In the event that two or more bidders submit the same lowest net interest cost
for the Notes, the Town Treasurer shall determine the Successful Bidder by lot from among all such proposals.

An electronic bid made in accordance with this Notice of Sale shall be deemed an offer to purchase the Notes in accordance
with the terms provided in this Notice of Sale and shall be binding upon the bidder as if made by a signed and sealed written
bid delivered to the Town.

Any bidder who submits a successful bid by telephone in accordance with this Notice of Sale shall be required to provide
written confirmation of the terms of the bid by e-mailing a completed, signed bid form to Hilltop Securities Inc., by not later
than 12:00 Noon, Eastern Time, on the date of sale.

The award of the Notes to the Successful Bidder (defined below) will not be effective until the bid has been approved by the
Treasurer and the Select Board of the Town.

A Successful Bidder for the Notes may request that all or a portion of the Notes be issued in the form of one fully registered
physical certificate, rather than in book-entry form through the facilities of DTC. The Successful Bidder seeking the issuance
of the Notes in this manner shall bear any and all costs of any re-registration or transfer of Notes from time to time. Any
bidder seeking to have the Notes issued in the form of a fully registered physical certificate or certificates, rather than in
book-entry form, shall indicate this preference to the Town at the time of the submission of the winning bid. The Town

1



reserves the right to decline any request to issue the Notes in non-book entry form if it should determine, in its sole discretion,
that issuing the Notes in this manner is not in its best interests.

It shall be the condition of the Successful Bidder's obligation to accept delivery of and pay for the Notes that,
contemporaneously with or before accepting the Notes and paying therefor, it shall be furnished, without cost, with (a) the
approving opinion of the firm of Locke Lord LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel to the Town, with respect to the
Notes, (b) a certificate in form satisfactory to said firm, dated as of the date of delivery of the Notes and receipt of payment
therefor, to the effect that there is no litigation pending, or to the knowledge of the signer or signers thereof, threatened
affecting the validity of the Notes or the power of the Town to levy and collect taxes to pay them, (c) a certificate of the
Town’s Treasurer to the effect that, to the best of her knowledge and belief, both the Preliminary Official Statement as of its
date and as of the date of sale and the final Official Statement as of its date and as of the date of delivery of such Notes,
do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and (d) a significant
events disclosure certificate in the form described in the Preliminary Official Statement.

Payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes is not limited to a particular fund or source of revenue nor is any lien
or pledge for such payment created with respect to any such fund or source.

Establishment of Issue Price. The following issue price discussion applies to each successful bidder for all or a portion of
the Notes (each a “Successful Bidder”) and with respect to the portion of the Notes awarded to such Successful Bidder.

Other Matters. A Successful Bidder for the Notes shall assist the Town in establishing the issue price of the Notes and shall
execute and deliver to the Town on the Closing Date an “issue price” or similar certificate, substantially in the applicable
form set forth in Exhibit 1 to this Notice of Sale, setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public or
the actual sale price of the Notes, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, or, if applicable,
the amount bid, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Successful
Bidder, the Town and Bond Counsel. All actions to be taken by the Town under this Notice of Sale to establish the issue
price of the Notes may be taken on behalf of the Town by Hilltop Securities Inc. (“Financial Advisor”) and any notice or
report to be provided to the Town may be provided to the Financial Advisor.

Competitive Sale Requirements. If the competitive sale requirements (“competitive sale requirements”) set forth in Treasury
Regulation § 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining “competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Notes) have been
satisfied, the Town will furnish to the Successful Bidder on the Closing Date a certificate of the Financial Advisor, which will
certify each of the following conditions to be true:

1. the Town has disseminated this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters in a manner that is reasonably
designed to reach potential underwriters;

2. all bidders had an equal opportunity to bid;

3. the Town received bids from at least three underwriters of municipal bonds who have established industry
reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; and

4, the Town awarded the sale of the Notes to the bidder who submitted a firm offer to purchase the Notes at
the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the Notes, as
specified in the bid. Unless a bidder notifies the Town prior to submitting its bid by telephone at (617) 619-4400,
or in its bid submitted via Parity, that it will not be an “underwriter” (as defined below) of the Notes, by submitting
its bid, each bidder shall be deemed to confirm that it has an established industry reputation for underwriting new
issuances of municipal bonds. Unless the bidder has notified the Town that it will not be an “underwriter” (as
defined below) of the Notes, in submitting a bid, each bidder is deemed to acknowledge that it is an “underwriter”
that intends to reoffer the Notes to the public.

In the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, the Town shall so advise the Successful Bidder.

Failure to Meet the Competitive Sale Requirements — Option A — The Successful Bidder Intends to Reoffer the Notes to the
Public and the 10% Test to Apply. If the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied and the Successful Bidder intends
to reoffer the Notes to the public, the Successful Bidder may, at its option use the first price at which 10% of the Notes (the
“10% Test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of the Notes. The Successful Bidder shall advise the Financial Advisor
if the 10% Test is satisfied as of the date and time of the award of the Notes. The Town will not require bidders to comply
with the “hold-the-offering-price rule” set forth in the applicable Treasury Regulations and therefore does not intend to use
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the initial offering price to the public as of the Sale Date as the issue price of the Notes if the competitive sale requirements
are not met and this option is chosen.

If the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, then until the 10% Test has been satisfied as to Notes or all of the
Notes are sold to the public, the Successful Bidder agrees to promptly report to the Financial Advisor the prices at which
the unsold Notes have been sold to the public, which reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the Closing Date
has occurred, until the 10% Test has been satisfied for the Notes or until all the Notes have been sold. The Successful
Bidder shall be obligated to report each sale of Notes to the Financial Advisor until notified in writing by the Town or the
Financial Advisor that it no longer needs to do so.

By submitting a bid and if the competitive sale requirements are not met, each bidder confirms that: (i) any agreement
among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each third-party distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a
party) relating to the initial sale of the Notes to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain
language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a
party to such third-party distribution agreement, as applicable, to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold
Notes allotted to it until it is notified by the Successful Bidder that either the 10% Test has been satisfied as to the Notes or
all of the Notes have been sold to the public, if and for so long as directed by the Successful Bidder and as set forth in the
related pricing wires and (ii) any agreement among underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Notes to the public, together
with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter that is a party to a third-party
distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Notes to the public to require each broker-
dealer that is a party to such third-party distribution agreement to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold
Notes allotted to it until it is notified by the Successful Bidder or such underwriter that either the 10% Test has been satisfied
as to the Notes or that all of the Notes have been sold to the public if and for so long as directed by the Successful Bidder
or such underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires.

Sales of any Notes to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes
of this Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

1. “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

2. “underwriter” means (A) any person, including the Successful Bidder, that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Town (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the
initial sale of the Notes to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly
or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the public
(including a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party distribution agreement participating in the
initial sale of the Notes to the public), and

3. a purchaser of any of the Notes is a “related party” to an underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser
are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) more than 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total
value of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of
another), (ii) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities
are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common
ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests
of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including
direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other).

Failure to Meet the Competitive Sale Requirements — Option B — The Successful Bidder Intends to Reoffer the Notes
to the Public and Agrees to Hold the Price of Maturities of Notes for Which the 10% Test in Option A Is Not Met as of
the Sale Date. The Successful Bidder may, at its option, notify the Financial Advisor in writing, which may be by email
(the "Hold the Price Notice"), not later than 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the Sale Date, that it has not sold 10% of the
Notes listed in the Hold the Price Notice (the "Unsold Maturities") and that the Successful Bidder will not offer the Unsold
Maturities to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period starting on
the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after the Sale Date or (ii) the date on
which the Successful Bidder has sold at least 10% of the applicable Unsold Maturity to the public at a price that is no
higher than the initial offering price to the public. If the Successful Bidder delivers a Hold the Price Notice to the
Financial Advisor, the Successful Bidder must provide to the Town on or before the Closing Date, in addition to the
certification described in Option A above, evidence that each underwriter of the Notes, including underwriters in an
underwriting syndicate or selling group, has agreed in writing to hold the price of the Unsold Maturities in the manner
described in the preceding sentence.

Failure to Meet the Competitive Sale Requirements and/or the Successful Bidder Does Not Intend to Reoffer the Notes to
the Public — Option C. If the Successful Bidder has purchased the Notes for its own account and will not distribute or resell
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the Notes to the public, then, whether or not the competitive sale requirements were met, the issue price certificate will
recite such facts and identify the price or prices at which the purchase of the Notes was made.

Other Matters

A Successful Bidder for the Notes will be furnished the opinion of Locke Lord LLP, Boston, Massachusetts approving the
legality of the Notes. The opinion will also indicate that the Notes and the enforceability thereof may be subject to bankruptcy
and other laws affecting creditor’s rights and that their enforceability may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in
appropriate cases. The Notes will be valid and binding general obligations of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts and
unless paid from the bond proceeds in anticipation of which they are issued or from other sources, are payable as to both
principal and interest from taxes which may be levied upon all taxable property within the territorial limits of the Town, subject
to the limit imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Notes. The Town assumes no responsibility for any
CUSIP Service Bureau charge or other charge that may be imposed for the assignment of such numbers.

In order to assist bidders in complying with the requirements of paragraph (b)(5)(i)(C) of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Town will undertake to provide notices of certain significant events. A description
of this undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement.

THE NOTES WILL NOT BE DESIGNATED AS “QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS” FOR PURPOSES OF
SECTION 265(b)(3) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED.

Additional information concerning the Town and the Notes is contained in the Preliminary Official Statement dated May 18,
2023 to which prospective bidders are directed. The Preliminary Official Statement is provided for informational purposes
and is not a part of this Notice of Sale. The Preliminary Official Statement has been deemed final by the Town except for
the omission of the reoffering prices, interest rates, and other terms of the Notes depending on such matters, and the identity
of the underwriters, but is subject to change without notice and to completion or amendment in a Final Official Statement.
Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained from Hilltop Securities Inc., 54 Canal Street, Boston,
Massachusetts, 02114 telephone (617-619-4400). Within seven (7) business days following the award of the Notes and
receipt of necessary information from the Successful Bidder(s), five (5) copies of the Final Official Statement will be made
available to the Successful Bidder(s). Upon request, additional copies will be provided at the expense of the requester.

The Notes, in definitive form, will be delivered to DTC or the office of its custodial agent, or to the registered owner if a fully
registered certificate or certificates is requested by a Successful Bidder and approved by the Town, on or about June 15,
2023 for credit to the Town in federal reserve funds.

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
/s/ Ms. Pamela Avitabile, Town Treasurer
May 18, 2023



EXHIBIT 1

[Issue Price Certificate for Use If the Competitive Sale Requirements Are Met]

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts
$5,565,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes dated June 15, 2023

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE AND RECEIPT

The undersigned, on behalf of (the “Successful Bidder”), hereby certifies as set forth below with
respect to the sale of the above-captioned obligations (the “Notes”) of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (the “Issuer”).

1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Prices.

(@) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices of the Notes to the Public by the Successful Bidder
are the prices listed in Schedule A (the “Expected Offering Prices”). The Expected Offering Prices are the prices for the Maturities of the
Notes used by the Successful Bidder in formulating its bid to purchase the Notes. Attached as Schedule B is a true and correct copy of
the bid provided by the Successful Bidder to purchase the Notes.

(b) The Successful Bidder was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to submitting its bid.
(c) The bid submitted by the Successful Bidder constituted a firm offer to purchase the Notes.
2. Defined Terms.

(@ Maturity means Notes with the same credit and payment terms. Notes with different maturity dates, or Notes with the
same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate Maturities.

(b) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company, or corporation) other
than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related party” for purposes of this certificate generally means any
two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly.

(c) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of a Maturity of the Notes. The
Sale Date of the Notes is May 24, 2023.

(d)  Underwriter means (i) any person, including the Successful Bidder, that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the
Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public, and (ii)
any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to
participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party distribution
agreement participating in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public).

3. Receipt. The Successful Bidder hereby acknowledges receipt of the Notes and further acknowledges receipt of all
certificates, opinions, and other documents required to be delivered to the Successful Bidder, before or simultaneously with the Notes,
which certificates, opinions, and other documents are satisfactory to the Successful Bidder.

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this certificate represents the
Successful Bidders interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon
by the Issuer with respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance with the federal
income tax rules affecting the Notes, and by Locke Lord LLP in connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on the Notes is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other
federal income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Notes.

Dated: , 2023 [NAME OF SUCCESSFUL BIDDER]
By:

Name:
Title:




SCHEDULE A
EXPECTED OFFERING PRICES

(To Be Attached)

SCHEDULE B
COPY OF SUCCESSFUL BIDDER’S BID

(To Be Attached)



EXHIBIT 1 — OPTION A

[Issue Price Certificate for Use If the Competitive Sale Requirements Are
Not Met and the 10% Test to Apply]

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts
$5,565,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes dated June 15, 2023
ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE AND RECEIPT
The undersigned, on behalf of , (the “[Successful Bidder][Representative]”), on behalf of itself [and

[NAMES OF OTHER UNDERWRITERS]] hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-
captioned obligations (the “Notes”) of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (the “Issuer”).

1. Sale of the Notes. As of the date of this certificate, [except as set forth in the following paragraph,] for each Maturity
of the Notes, the first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity of the Notes was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in
Schedule A.

[Only use the next paragraph if the 10% Test has not been met or all of the Notes have not been sold for one or more Maturities of
Notes as of the Closing Date.]

For each Maturity of the Notes as to which no price is listed in Schedule A, as set forth in the Notice of Sale for the Notes, until at least
10% of each such Maturity of the Notes is sold to the Public (the “10% Test”) or all of the Notes are sold to the Public, the [Successful
Bidder][Representative] agrees to promptly report to the Issuer’s financial advisor, Hilltop Securities Inc. (the “Financial Advisor”) the
prices at which the unsold Notes of each Maturity have been sold to the Public, which reporting obligation shall continue after the date
hereof until the 10% Test has been satisfied for each Maturity of the Notes or until all the Notes of a Maturity have been sold. The
[Successful Bidder][Representative] shall continue to report each sale of Notes to the Financial Advisor until notified by email or in writing
by the Issuer or the Financial Advisor that it no longer needs to do so.

2. Defined Terms.

(@)  Maturity means Notes with the same credit and payment terms. Notes with different maturity dates, or Notes with the
same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate Maturities.

(b) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company, or corporation) other
than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related party” for purposes of this certificate generally means any
two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly.

(c)  Underwriter means (i) any person, including the [Successful Bidder][Representative], that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the
Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this
paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party
distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public).

3. Receipt. The [Successful Bidder][Representative] hereby acknowledges receipt of the Notes and further
acknowledges receipt of all certificates, opinions, and other documents required to be delivered to the [Successful
Bidder][Representative], before or simultaneously with the Notes, which certificates, opinions, and other documents are satisfactory to
the [Successful Bidder][Representative].

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this certificate represents the
[Successful Bidder][Representative]'s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will
be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance
with the federal income tax rules affecting the Notes, and by Locke Lord LLP in connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on
the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-
G, and other federal income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Notes.

Dated: , 2023 [SUCCESSFUL BIDDER][REPRESENTATIVE]
By:

Name:
Title:




SCHEDULE A
SALE PRICES
(To be Attached)



EXHIBIT 1 — OPTION B

[Issue Price Certificate for Use If the Competitive Sale Requirements Are
Not Met and the Hold the Price Rule Is Used]

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts
$5,565,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes dated June 15, 2023

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE AND RECEIPT
The undersigned, on behalf of (the (“[Successful Bidder][Representative]’), on behalf of itself [and [NAMES

OF OTHER UNDERWRITERS] ]Jhereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned
obligations (the “Notes”) of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (the “Issuer”).

1. Sale of the Notes. As of the date of this certificate, [except as set forth in following paragraph,] for each Maturity of
the Notes, the first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity of the Notes was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in
Schedule A.

[Only use the next paragraph if the 10% Test has not been met as of the Sale Date.]

For each Maturity of the Notes as to which no price is listed in Schedule A (the “Unsold Maturities”), as set forth in the Notice
of Sale for the Notes, the [Successful Bidder][Representative] and any other Underwriter did not [and will nof] reoffer the Unsold
Maturities at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the Public until the earlier of (i) , 2023 or (ii) the date on
which the [Successful Bidder][Representative] or any other Underwriter sold at least 10% of each Unsold Maturity at a price that is no
higher than the initial offering price to the Public.

2. Defined Terms.

(@)  Maturity means Notes with the same credit and payment terms. Notes with different maturity dates, or Notes with the
same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate Maturities.

(b)  Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company, or corporation) other
than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related party” for purposes of this certificate generally means any
two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly.

(¢)  Underwriter means (i) any person, including the [Successful Bidder][Representative], that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the
Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this
paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party
distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public).

3. Receipt. The [Successful Bidder][Representative] hereby acknowledges receipt of the Notes and further
acknowledges receipt of all certificates, opinions and other documents required to be delivered to the [Successful
Bidder][Representative], before or simultaneously with the delivery of the Notes, which certificates, opinions and other documents are
satisfactory to the [Successful Bidder][Representative].

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this certificate represents the
[Successful Bidder's][Representative’s] interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will
be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance
with the federal income tax rules affecting the Notes, and by Locke Lord LLP in connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on
the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-
G, and other federal income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Notes.

Dated: , 2023 [SUCCESSFUL BIDDER][REPRESENTATIVE]

By:
Name:
Title:




SCHEDULE A
SALE PRICES

(To be Attached)
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT
TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
$5,565,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES

This Preliminary Official Statement is provided for the purpose of presenting certain information relating to the Town of
Scituate, Massachusetts (the “Town”) in connection with the sale of $5,565,000 principal amount of its General Obligation
Bond Anticipation Notes (the “Notes”). The information contained herein has been furnished by the Town except information
attributed to another source.

Description of the Notes

The Notes will be dated June 15, 2023 and will be payable by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, Boston,
Massachusetts, or its successor, as Paying Agent, on December 15, 2023. The Notes are not subject to redemption prior
to their stated maturity date. The Notes will bear interest payable at maturity, calculated on a 30 day-month/360 day-year
basis (180/360), at the rate determined upon their sale in accordance with the Notice of Sale dated May 18, 2023. The
Notes will be issued by means of a book-entry system evidencing ownership of the Notes in principal amounts of $1,000,
or integral multiples thereof with transfers of ownership effected on the records of The Depository Trust Company (DTC)
and its participants pursuant to the rules and procedures adopted by DTC, unless the delivery of a fully registered note
certificate is requested by the successful bidder and the issuance of such certificate is approved by the Town. See “Book-
Entry Transfer System” herein.

Authorization of the Notes and Use of Proceeds

The following table sets forth the purposes, principal amounts, amounts authorized, bond anticipation notes outstanding,
statutory references, and dates of approval, for the current offering of Notes. Proceeds for the projects may be transferred
or re-appropriated to other capital projects to the extent projects are completed or abandoned and such proceeds remain
unspent.

Original
This Bond Statutory Dates of Article
Issue Purpose Authorization Reference Authorization No.
$ 1,800,000  Oceanside Sewer Infiltration/Inflow $ 4,900,000 Ch.44,s.7(1) 4/12/2021 3T
3,000,000  Water Mains 3,000,000 Ch. 44, 5.8(5) 10/26/2021 5
765,000  Additional Cole Parkway Marina Dock 1,275,000 Ch. 44,s.7(1) 9/19/2022 5

9,069,

The Town anticipates that the Notes will be retired at maturity from proceeds from the sale of the long-term bonds
in anticipation of which the Notes are issued, proceeds from the sale of renewal bond anticipation notes and other
available funds of the Town, or a combination of such sources. The ability of the Town to retire the Notes from the
proceeds of the sale of either renewal notes or long-term bonds will be dependent on the marketability of such
notes or long-term bonds under market conditions prevailing at the time they are offered for sale, which are subject
to change due to factors beyond the control of the Town, such as the COVID-19 pandemic.

Tax Exemption

In the opinion of Locke Lord LLP, Bond Counsel to the Town (“Bond Counsel”), based upon an analysis of existing laws,
regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, compliance with certain covenants, interest
on the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Notes will not be included
in computing the alternative minimum taxable income of Noteholders who are individuals. For tax years beginning after
December 31, 2022, however, interest on the Notes will be included in the “adjusted financial statement income” of certain
corporations that are subject to the alternative minimum tax under Section 55 of the Code. Bond Counsel expresses no
opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual
or receipt of interest on the Notes. The Notes will not be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of
Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

The Code imposes various requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of
interest on obligations such as the Notes. Failure to comply with these requirements may result in interest on the Notes
being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Notes.
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The Town has covenanted to comply with such requirements to ensure that interest on the Notes will not be included in
federal gross income. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these requirements.

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Notes is exempt from Massachusetts personal
income taxes, and the Notes are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. Bond Counsel has not opined as to
other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Notes. Prospective Noteholders should be aware,
however, that the Notes are included in the measure of Massachusetts estate and inheritance taxes, and the Notes and the
interest thereon are included in the measure of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise taxes. Bond Counsel
expresses no opinion as to the taxability of the Notes or the income therefrom or any other tax consequences arising with
respect to the Notes under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts.

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Notes is less than the amount to be paid at maturity of such Notes
(excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the term of such Notes), the difference
constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each owner thereof, is treated
as interest on the Notes which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from
Massachusetts personal income taxes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Notes is either the
reasonably expected initial offering price to the public, or the first price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the
Notes is sold to the public, as applicable. The original issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Notes accrues daily
over the term to maturity of such Notes on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line
interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such
Notes to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Notes.
Noteholders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Notes with original
issue discount, including the treatment of purchasers who do not purchase such Notes in the original offering to the public
at the reasonably expected initial offering price or, if applicable, the first price at which a substantial amount of such Notes
is sold to the public.

Notes purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount greater than the stated principal amount to be
paid at maturity of such Notes, or, in some cases, at the earlier redemption date of such Notes (“Premium Notes”), will be
treated as having amortizable note premium for federal income tax purposes and Massachusetts personal income tax
purposes. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable note premium in the case of obligations, such as the Premium
Notes, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. However, a Noteholder’s basis
in a Premium Note will be reduced by the amount of amortizable note premium properly allocable to such Noteholder.
Holders of Premium Notes should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable note
premium in their particular circumstances.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or events
occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Notes may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of
interest on, the Notes.

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or
receipt of interest on, the Notes may otherwise affect the federal or state tax liability of a Noteholder. Among other possible
consequences of ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Notes, the Code requires recipients
of certain social security and certain railroad retirement benefits to take into account receipts or accruals of interest on the
Notes in determining the portion of such benefits that are included in gross income. The nature and extent of all such other
tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status of the Noteholder or the Noteholder’s other items of income,
deduction, or exclusion. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences, and Noteholders
should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such consequences.

Risk of Future Legislative Changes and/or Court Decisions

Legislation affecting tax-exempt obligations is regularly considered by the United States Congress and may also be
considered by the Massachusetts legislature. Court proceedings may also be filed, the outcome of which could modify the
tax treatment of obligations such as the Notes. There can be no assurance that legislation enacted or proposed, or actions
by a court, after the date of issuance of the Notes will not have an adverse effect on the tax status of interest on the Notes
or the market value or marketability of the Notes. These adverse effects could result, for example, from changes to federal
or state income tax rates, changes in the structure of federal or state income taxes (including replacement with another type
of tax), or repeal (or reduction in the benefit) of the exclusion of interest on the Notes from gross income for federal or state
income tax purposes for all or certain taxpayers. Additionally, Noteholders should be aware that future legislative actions
(including federal income tax reform) may retroactively change the treatment of all or a portion of the interest on the Notes
for federal income tax purposes for all or certain taxpayers. In all such events, the market value of the Notes may be affected
and the ability of Noteholders to sell their Notes in the secondary market may be reduced. The Notes are not subject to
special mandatory redemption, and the interest rate on the Notes is not subject to adjustment, in the event of any such
change in the tax treatment of interest on the Notes.
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Investors should consult their own financial and tax advisors to analyze the importance of these risks.
Book-Entry Transfer System

This section shall apply to Notes issued in book-entry form through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company, New
York, NY (“DTC”).

DTC will act as securities depository for the Notes. The Notes will be issued in fully-registered form registered in the name
of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC. One-fully registered Note certificate will be issued for each interest rate, each in the aggregate principal amount
bearing such interest rate, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking
Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System,
a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing
for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments
(from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-
trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need
for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned
by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-
U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a
custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a rating of AA+
from S&P Global Ratings. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of securities deposited with DTC must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for
the Notes on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each security deposited with DTC
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not
receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect
Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
securities deposited with DTC are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants
acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests
in the securities deposited with DTC, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for such securities is
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of
DTC'’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
The deposit of securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not
effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the securities deposited
with it; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such securities are credited,
which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping
account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the securities deposited
with DTC unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures,
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the issuer of such securities or its paying agent as soon as possible after the record date.
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the
Notes are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on the Notes will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by
an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds
and corresponding detail information from the issuer of such securities or its paying agent, on the payable date in
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC'’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be
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governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers
in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC (nor its
nominee), the issuer of such securities or its paying agent, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in
effect from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by
an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the issuer of such securities or its paying agent, disbursement
of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the
Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the securities held by it at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the issuer of such securities or its paying agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor depository is not obtained, physical certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Town may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities
depository). In that event, physical certificates will be printed and delivered to Beneficial Owners.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the
Town believes to be reliable, but the Town takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

Security and Remedies

Full Faith and Credit. General obligation bonds and notes of a Massachusetts city or town constitute a pledge of its full faith and
credit. Payment is not limited to a particular fund or revenue source. Except for “qualified bonds” as described below (see
“Serial Bonds and Notes” under “TYPES OF OBLIGATIONS”) and setoffs of state distributions as described below (see “State
Distributions” below), no provision is made by the Massachusetts statutes for priorities among bonds and notes and other
general obligations, although the use of certain moneys may be restricted.

Tax Levy. The Massachusetts statutes direct the municipal assessors to include annually in the tax levy for the next fiscal year
“all debt and interest charges matured and maturing during the next fiscal year and not otherwise provided for [and] all amounts
necessary to satisfy final judgments”. Specific provision is also made for including in the next tax levy payments of rebate
amounts not otherwise provided for and payment of notes in anticipation of federal or state aid, if the aid is no longer forthcoming.

The total amount of a tax levy is limited by statute. However, the voters in each municipality may vote to exclude from the
limitation any amounts required to pay debt service on indebtedness incurred before November 4, 1980. Local voters may also
vote to exempt specific subsequent bond issues from the limitation. (See “Tax Limitations” Under “PROPERTY TAXATION”
below.) In addition, obligations incurred before November 4, 1980 may be constitutionally entitled to payment from taxes in
excess of the statutory limit.

No Lien. Except for taxes on the increased value of certain property in designated development districts which may be pledged
for the payment of debt service on bonds issued to finance economic development projects within such districts, no provision is
made for a lien on any portion of the tax levy or any other moneys to secure particular bonds or notes or bonds and notes
generally (or judgments on bonds or notes) in priority to other claims. Provision is made, however, for borrowing to pay
judgments, subject to the General Debt Limit. (See “DEBT LIMITS” below.) Upon certification by the city solicitor or town council
that no appeal can or will be taken, or as otherwise required by a municipality’s charter, ordinances or bylaws, judgments may
also be paid from available funds without appropriation and included in the next tax levy unless other provision is made. Any
such payments shall be reported to the city or town’s assessors by the city or town’s auditor or accountant (or other officer
having similar duties. The assessors shall include amounts of such payments in the aggregate appropriations assessed in the
determination of the next subsequent annual tax rate.

Court Proceedings. Massachusetts cities and towns are subject to suit on their general obligation bonds and notes and courts
of competent jurisdiction have power in appropriate proceedings to order payment of a judgment on the bonds or notes from
lawfully available funds or, if necessary, to order the city or town to take lawful action to obtain the required money, including the
raising of it in the next annual tax levy, within the limits prescribed by law. (See “Tax Limitations” under “PROPERTY TAXATION”
below.) In exercising their discretion as to whether to enter such an order, the courts could take into account all relevant factors
including the current operating needs of the city or town and the availability and adequacy of other remedies. The Massachusetts
Supreme Judicial Court has stated in the past that a judgment against a municipality can be enforced by the taking and sale of
the property of any inhabitant. However, there has been no judicial determination as to whether this remedy is constitutional
under current due process and equal protection standards.

Restricted Funds. Massachusetts statutes also provide that certain water, gas and electric, community antenna television
system, telecommunications, sewer, parking meter, passenger ferry fee, community preservation and affordable housing
receipts may be used only for water, gas and electric, community antenna television system, telecommunications, sewer,
parking, mitigation of ferry service impacts, community preservation and affordable housing and related purposes, respectively;
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accordingly, moneys derived from these sources may be unavailable to pay general obligation bonds and notes issued for other
purposes. A city or town that accepts certain other statutory provisions may establish an enterprise fund for a utility, health care,
solid waste, recreational or transportation facility and for police or fire services; under those provisions any surplus in the fund
is restricted to use for capital expenditures or reduction of user charges for such activity. In addition, subject to certain limits, a
city or town may annually authorize the establishment of one or more revolving funds in connection with use of certain revenues
for programs that produce those revenues; interest earned on a revolving fund is treated as general fund revenue. A city or town
may also establish an energy revolving loan fund to provide loans to owners of privately held property in the city or town for
certain energy conservation and renewable energy projects and may borrow to establish such a fund. The loan repayments
and interest earned on the investment of amounts in the fund shall be credited to the fund. Also, the annual allowance for
depreciation of a gas and electric plant or a community antenna television and telecommunications system is restricted to use
for plant or system renewals and improvements, for nuclear decommissioning costs, and costs of contractual commitments, or,
with the approval of the State Department of Telecommunications and Energy, to pay debt incurred for plant or system
reconstruction or renewals. Revenue bonds and notes issued in anticipation of them may be secured by a prior lien on specific
revenues. Receipts from industrial users in connection with industrial revenue financings are also not available for general
municipal purposes.

State Distributions. State grants and distributions may in some circumstances be unavailable to pay general obligation bonds
and notes of a city or town in that the State Treasurer is empowered to deduct from such grants and distributions the amount of
any debt service paid on “qualified bonds” (See “Serial Bonds and Notes” under “TYPES OF OBLIGATIONS” below) and any
other sums due and payable by the city or town to the Commonwealth or certain other public entities, including any unpaid
assessments for costs of any public transportation authority (such as the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority or a
regional transit authority) of which it is a member, for costs of the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority if the city or town
is within the territory served by the Authority, or for charges necessary to meet obligations under the Commonwealth’s Clean
Water and Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs, including such charges imposed by another local governmental unit that
provides wastewater collection or treatment services or drinking water services to the city or town.

If a city or town is (or is likely to be) unable to pay principal or interest on its bonds or notes when due, it is required to notify the
State Commissioner of Revenue. The Commissioner shall in turn, after verifying the inability, certify the inability to the State
Treasurer. The State Treasurer shall pay the due or overdue amount to the paying agent for the bonds or notes, in trust, within
three days after the certification or one business day prior to the due date (whichever is later). This payment is limited, however,
to the estimated amount otherwise distributable by the Commonwealth to the city or town during the remainder of the fiscal year
(after the deductions mentioned in the foregoing paragraph). If for any reason any portion of the certified sum has not been paid
at the end of the fiscal year, the State Treasurer shall pay it as soon as practicable in the next fiscal year to the extent of the
estimated distributions for that fiscal year. The sums so paid shall be charged (with interest and administrative costs) against
the distributions to the city or town.

The foregoing does not constitute a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has not agreed
to maintain existing levels of state distributions, and the direction to use estimated distributions to pay debt service may be
subject to repeal by future legislation. Moreover, adoption of the annual appropriation act has sometimes been delayed beyond
the beginning of the fiscal year and estimated distributions which are subject to appropriation may be unavailable to pay local
debt service until they are appropriated.

Bankruptcy. Enforcement of a claim for payment of principal or interest on general obligation bonds or notes would be subject
to the applicable provisions of federal bankruptcy laws and to the provisions of other statutes, if any, hereafter enacted by the
Congress or the State legislature extending the time for payment or imposing other constraints upon enforcement insofar as the
same may be constitutionally applied. Massachusetts municipalities are not currently authorized by the Massachusetts General
Laws to file a petition for bankruptcy under federal bankruptcy laws. In cases involving significant financial difficulties faced by
a single city, town or regional school district, however, the Commonwealth has enacted special legislation to permit the
appointment of a fiscal overseer, finance control board or, in the most extreme cases, a state receiver. In a limited number of
these situations, such special legislation has also authorized the filing of federal bankruptcy proceedings, with the prior approval
of the Commonwealth. In each case where such authority was granted, it expired at the termination of the Commonwealth’s
oversight of the financially distressed city, town or regional school district. To date, no such filings have been approved or made.

Bank Eligibility
The Notes will not be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.
Opinion of Bond Counsel

A Successful Bidder will be furnished the legal opinion of the firm of Locke Lord LLP, Bond Counsel to the Town. The opinion
will be dated and given on and will speak only as of the date of original delivery of the Notes to the Successful Bidder.
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Other than as to matters expressly set forth herein as the opinion of Bond Counsel, Bond Counsel is not passing upon and
does not assume any responsibility for the accuracy or adequacy of the statements made in this Official Statement and
makes no representation that they have independently verified the same.

Financial Advisory Services of Hilltop Securities Inc.

Hilltop Securities Inc., Boston, Massachusetts, serves as financial advisor to the Town.
Disclosure of Significant Events

In order to assist underwriters in complying with the requirements of paragraph (b)(5)(i)(C) of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission (as amended, the “Rule”) applicable to municipal securities having a stated
maturity of 18 months or less, the Town will covenant for the benefit of the owners of the Notes to file with the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), notices of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the
Notes within ten business days of such occurrence: (a) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (b) non-payment
related defaults, if material; (c) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (d) unscheduled
draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (e) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure
to perform; (f) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determination of
taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the
tax status of the Notes, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Notes; (g) modifications to rights of owners
of the Notes, if material; (h) bond calls, if material, and tender offers; (i) defeasances; (j) release, substitution or sale of
property securing the repayment of the Notes, if material; (k) ratings changes on the Notes; (I) bankruptcy, insolvency,
receivership or similar event of the Town; (m) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
Town or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Town, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such
actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; (n) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of
name of a trustee, if material; (0) incurrence of a financial obligation of the Town, if material, or agreement to covenants,
events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which affect
the owners of the Notes, if material; and (p) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

The covenant will be included in a Significant Events Disclosure Certificate to be executed by the signers of the Notes and
incorporated by reference in the Notes. The sole remedy available to the owners of the Notes for the failure of the Town to
comply with any provision of the certificate shall be an action for specific performance of the Town’s obligations under the
certificate and not for money damages; no other person shall have any right to enforce any provision of the certificate.

In the past five years, the Town believes that it has complied, in all material respects, with its previous undertakings
to provide annual reports and notices of significant events in accordance with the Rule.
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THE TOWN OF SCITUATE

General

The Town of Scituate (the "Town") was incorporated in 1636 and is located in Plymouth County. It is approximately 25
miles southeast of Boston and 40 miles from Cape Cod. The Town is bordered by the Atlantic Ocean on the east and north,
Marshfield on the south, Norwell on the southwest, Hingham on the west, and Cohasset on the northwest. It is approximately
17 square miles in area. The Town has a year-round population of 19,011, and 30,000 in summer months. Scituate is a
residential community with a substantial summer population. It has 57 miles of tidal shoreline that includes five beaches
and saltwater recreation areas for boating, fishing and other marine sports. Its harbor is home to approximately 1,700 boats
in season and is one of the most sheltered/protected harbors on the East Coast.

Local Government

Local legislative decisions are made by a town meeting open to all residents. Subject to legislative decisions made by town
meeting, the affairs of the Town are generally administered by a five-member Select Board and a Town Administrator.

Local taxes are assessed by a three-member board of assessors elected for staggered three-year terms. Local school
affairs are administered by a school committee of five persons also elected for staggered three-year terms.

Principal Executive Officers

The principal executive officers of the Town are as follows:

Term and Manner Expiration
Office Name of Selection of Term
Select Board Anthony V. Vegnani, Chair Elected - 3-year term 2023
Andrew W. Goodrich, Vice Chair Elected - 3-year term 2023
Karen E. Connolly Elected - 3-year term 2025
Karen B. Canfield Elected - 3-year term 2025
Maura C. Curran Elected - 3-year term 2024
Town Administrator James Boudreau Appointed 2025
Treasurer/Collector Pamela Avitabile Appointed 2023
Finance Director/
Accountant Nancy Holt Appointed 2025
Town Clerk Kathleen Gardner Elected — 3-year term 2024
Town Counsel Murphy, Hesse, Toomey & Lehane Indefinite Indefinite

Coronavirus (COVID-19) Disclosure

COVID-19 is a respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus not previously been seen in humans. On March 10, 2020,
the Governor of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts declared a state of emergency to support the Commonwealth’s
response to the outbreak of the virus. The state of emergency was rescinded on June 15, 2021.

As of December 31, 2021, the Town had incurred non-budgeted costs of $3,288,746 in response to COVID-19. The Town
has access to multiple funding sources for such costs, including Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act funds
through Plymouth County. The Town has been reimbursed for all filed claims for such non-budgeted costs incurred as a
direct result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Town maintained its fiscal year 2021 revenue reductions for local aid and local receipts for fiscal year 2022. FY 2022
closed positively with approximately $5M in Free Cash due to these adjustments and a spending freeze.

The FY2023 local receipt estimate was kept at the reduced level adopted for FY2021 & FY2022 but the meals tax estimate
was brought back to pre-pandemic levels due to the positive results in that revenue stream. The Town has not seen any
material change in its tax collections during this period either.

The Select Board voted in February 2022 to use all but $250,000 of available ARPA funds to offset the impact to
taxpayers of a new $50M water treatment plant which was subsequently approved as a debt exclusion at town meeting in
April 2022 and at the ballot in May 2022. The Town received its first and second distributions of American Rescue Plan
Act (ARPA) funds through the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in the amount of $1,980,748. Plymouth County claimed
the ARPA funds for the municipalities in its jurisdiction and set up an allocation program. The Town applied to Plymouth
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County for its full allocation of available ARPA funds for the water treatment plant project and received $3,400,286.73 in
April 2023.

Municipal Services

Public Services - The Town's Public Works Department is divided into five divisions: (1) Highways and Grounds; (2)
Engineering; (3) Transfer Station; (4) Water; and (5) Sewer. The Transfer Station and Water and Sewer divisions operate
as enterprise funds.

Water - The Department of Public Works Water Division is responsible for the construction, operation and maintenance of
Scituate's municipal water system. The Water Division supervisor is responsible for the daily operations of the Water
Division, which provides for the water service needs of nearly 100% of the population. Scituate's water supply is obtained
from six gravel packed wells along with a reservoir.  Since 2013, the Town has aggressively addressed its aging water
infrastructure including $30 million for water main replacement of which over 25 miles of pipe has been completed including
all known cast iron pipes. The Town has also invested in seeking additional sources of water, adding a storage tank, a
green sand filter facility and ongoing well rehabilitation. At the April 11, 2022 special town meeting, voters at town meeting
approved a $50M water treatment plant to be funded with $5,296,240 of ARPA funds. The Water Department is self-
supporting including debt service except for the recently authorized $50 million water treatment plant.

Sewer Facilities - The Town’s sewer system is comprised of the North River Water Pollution Treatment Facility and a
sanitary sewer collection system with eight pump stations. Sewer service is available to 33 percent of all residential
properties in Scituate and to the business districts of Scituate Harbor & Greenbush. The Town discharges its sewage into
its own treatment facility. Commercial and residential users are charged, quarterly, a minimum and an excess meter
reading. In the past two years, the Town has implemented an aggressive infrastructure upgrade, and expansion program
for water and sewer funded by users. The Sewer operation is self-supporting including debt service. The Town is currently
participating in a regional sewer feasibility study with the towns of Hull and Cohasset. The Town is aggressively pursuing
infow and infiltration into the system through a variety of methods including education, flow meter analysis, man-hole
replacement, resiliency enhancement, SCADA and pipe replacement. The Town replaced a gravity sewer main which was
identified as the largest contributor of inflow and infiltration in 2021 and approved funding for $8 million to continue
improvements on another major contributor. These improvements should allow the Town to extend sewer service to other
areas that have been waiting for many years, including the north Scituate business district.

Public Safety Services - The Scituate Police Department carries out investigative, enforcement, support and educational
functions in order to promote the safety and general welfare of the citizens of the Town. The Department consists of a chief,
a deputy chief, two lieutenants, five sergeants, two detectives, one K9 officer, one traffic enforcement officer, twenty-two
patrol officers, and eight communication specialists for both police and fire. Equipment consists of nine patrol cars, two
unmarked cars, one animal control vehicle, and specialty vehicles. The Town was recently awarded a $437,251 grant from
the Department of Homeland Security Port Security to purchase a new marine patrol boat and voters approved the Town’s
20% share of such purchase at the September 2022 town meeting.

The Town of Scituate has three fire stations. The department has a chief, deputy chief, four captains, four lieutenants and
forty full-time fire fighters. The Fire Department is also responsible for the Town's advanced life support ambulance service
and emergency medical and rescue operation.

A new public safety complex opened in March 2017, replacing the Town’s prior fire station #3 and police station facility,
which includes an emergency operations center. Over a multi-year period, the Town also replaced the second of its three
fire stations which re-opened in December 2021 without loss of service to the residents.

Library Services - The municipal library was completed and occupied in 1978 and the construction cost was fully funded
by the federal government. The library offers a variety of services and programs to Scituate residents in all age groups.
Traditional library services are enhanced by modern technologies and innovative information systems. The library is
centrally located and serves as a convenient meeting place for community groups. The Board of Library Trustees is
responsible for establishing policies governing the operation of the library. On November 4, 2013, the Town approved a
$12,000,000 library renovation project which was offset with a $4,985,480 public construction grant from the Massachusetts
Board of Library Commissioners and $1.4 million in private donations. The renovated building re-opened to the public in
June 2017.

Waterways - The Town operates two public marinas comprised of 257 slips with permanent and transient docking facilities
for commercial and pleasure boats. The Town received $840,500 in a Seaport Economic Advisory Council grant to make
improvements to its marinas and a $27,000 Massachusetts Commission on Disabilities grant for accessibility improvements.
The Town also received a $58,000 grant for the purchase of a new pump-out boat in 2019. The marinas are accounted for
as an enterprise fund. In FY2022, the Town was awarded a grant to replace $1 million of docks and floats. The Town’s
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share of this project will be approximately $250,000 which has already been appropriated for this purpose. An additional
$1.275 million of grant funding is being sought due to the cost escalations and design changes. An additional grant
application will be filed for $1 million in December 2022. The Town was also awarded a $376,000 grant from the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Seaport Economic Advisory Council for a comprehensive dredge permit.

Recreation - The Recreation Department oversees, and maintains the Town’s beaches and 17 athletic fields, and offers
several fee-based programs. The Town finished a $10 million improvement to its athletic fields including three turf fields,
track and stadium at the high school/middle school campus. This project is predominately funded by CPA funds ($8.3
million) and the remainder from donations and the tax levy. A new $1 million baseball field was approved by voters at the
September 2022 special town meeting and will be funded through CPA funds.

Golf - The Town also operates an 18-hole municipal golf course. Maintenance on the golf course is performed by
International Golf Maintenance of Champions Gate, Florida. The course, which opened in June 1997, is also a self-
supporting enterprise fund. The Town appropriated $2.5 million for major renovations and expansion of the clubhouse,
including restaurant and bar, and a parking area at the golf course which concluded in December 2021. The course has
experienced record revenues in the past two years and has leased out the restaurant to a new lessee for a five year term.

Education

The Town provides a comprehensive school system which offers education from grades Pre-K-12, as well as special needs
programs. In addition, the Town has an Adult Evening School Center equipped with the latest facilities for computer-based
studies located in the Senior High School. Vocational education is provided by the South Shore Regional Vocational-
Technical School District, of which the Town is a member. The following table sets forth the trend in the Town’s public
school enroliments:

Average Annual Enroliments (1)

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Pre-K 77 72 70 51 69
Grades K-5 1,267 1,292 1,319 1,242 1,243
Grades 6-8 722 682 665 637 598
Grades 9-12 922 952 929 919 862
Ungraded 0 4 4 2 0
Total 2,988 3,005 2,990 2,851 2,772

(1) As of October 1 each school year.
The following table sets forth the projected enroliments for the next school year:

Projected Annual Enroliments

2022/23
Pre-K 72
Grades K/6 1,458
Grades 7/8 409
Grades 9/12 818
Ungraded _ 0
Total 2,157

Source: Superintendent of Schools.

Public Schools — Currently, the public school system of the Town consists of four elementary schools (K-6) with an
enroliment of 1,670 students; one intermediate school (7-8) with an enroliment of 510 students; and one senior high school
with an enrollment of 871 students. The Town also has a Pre-K program which is housed at the high school with an
enroliment of 69 students. The new middle school, which includes Grades 6 through 8, opened in September 2017.

The school system has 290 teachers, 13 administrators, 7 nurses and 145 support personnel. The approximate
student/teacher ratio is 14 to 1 at the elementary, 16 to 1 at the intermediate levels, and 16 to 1 at the high school level.
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Town of Scituate, MA - Population Trends

Source: Town Clerk.

2010 2000

18,266 19,317

Age, Income and Wealth Levels

Median Age:
2010
2000
1990
Median Family Income:
2010
2000
1990
Per Capita Income:
2010
2000
1990

Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census.

Largest Employers

The Town is primarily a residential community and, excluding the Town itself, there is only one employer that employs over
100 employees: Life Care Center, a nursing home employing 185 persons. No other employers within the Town have more
than 100 employees, although several restaurants, numerous banks, another nursing home and a concrete pipe
manufacturer employ between 50 and 99 people.

Building Permits

The following table sets forth the number of building permits issued and the estimated dollar value of new construction and

alterations for the following fiscal years:

Fiscal

Year

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018

New Construction

Residential/Non-Residential

No. Value
82 $39,265,401
66 30,819,461
92 30,790,693
25 10,673,875
35 17,937,048

Source: Building Commissioner.

1990 1980
18,002 17,316
Scituate Massachusetts United States
451 39.1 37.2
40.7 36.5 35.3
36.9 33.6 32.9
86,723 $ 81,165 $ 51,144
86,058 61,664 50,046
59,168 44,367 35,225
44,549 $ 33,966 $ 27,344
33,940 25,952 21,587
11,203 17,224 14,420

Additions/Alterations Total

No. Value No. Value

987 $55,391,211 1,069 $94,656,612
1,095 45,930,323 1,161 76,749,784

741 58,680,290 833 89,470,983

933 38,868,676 958 49,542,551

777 22,875,232 812 40,812,280
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Economic Development

The Town has a number of permitted development projects currently underway. The major developments include:

DEVELOPMENT

UNITS/COMMERCIAL
SPACE APPROVED

CONSTRUCTION STATUS

% COMPLETE

Aquinnah Path

Lots were entitled to
endorsement since pre-
existing on Land Court Plan.
Storm water permit issued.

Road upgraded. Needs SW
Certificate of Completion (COC).

99% Complete.

new development and
redevelopment.

37 & 39 rec’d COC.

Laurelwood 24 lots; 21 single family 1 single family pending on one of 10% Complete.
homes in Norwell and 3 original lots.
vacant lots in Scituate. Plus
5 additional lots on east
side.
37/39/41/43 4 new homes in walking Homes completed and occupied. 96% Complete.
Otis Place distance to Scituate Harbor; | Need SW COC and As-Built

167 Driftway

Town Dog Park

Phase | complete. Waiting for As-
Builts Phase Il. Funding approved
at April 2022 town meeting.

50% Complete.

Seaside at Scituate
(Toll Brothers)

152 age restricted
townhomes and 5 single
family homes off of Hatherly
Road.

Residential Cluster Development -
Roads in Phase | and Phase Il to
binder. All building permits issued.
128 Townhomes (TH), 5 Single
Family (SF) & clubhouse received
occupancy.

85% Complete.

Curtis Estates (90
Ann Vinal Road)

16 single family homes
under a Flexible Open
Space Definitive Subdivision

Road Construction to binder. All lots
released & have building permits
issued. 15 CO’s

80% Complete.

Herring Brook

60 rental units

Expected completion fall 2022.

95% Complete.

Hwy

Meadow 40B

Humarock Fire Renovations Completed 98% Complete.
Station

443-461 CJ Cushing Water Treatment Plant In permitting 0% Complete.

Roach Field — Parking
Lot

New 35 car gravel parking
area & improvements to
existing.

Site Plan review granted. Additional
funding approved at Fall STM.
Waiting for as-built surveys to be
completed.

98% Complete.

Stockbridge Landing
40B

68 duplex units
(40B development)
17 Affordable Units

37 certificates of occupancy issued.
Utilities, road to binder & septic
system in.

90% Complete.

MBTA Property on
Driftway-Drew Co.

Mixed Use. 78 residential
rental units with retail &
commercial use - 2000 sf
restaurant.

Under construction — expected
completion 2023.

50% Complete.

48-52 New Driftway

4,000 sf gas & convenience
store & 1500 sf fast food
restaurant.

Construction commenced.

25% Complete.

18 Ford Place

5 unit multi-family building

Construction commenced.

80% Complete.
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DEVELOPMENT

UNITS/COMMERCIAL
SPACE APPROVED

CONSTRUCTION STATUS

% COMPLETE

0 Rear Country Way
(477,479,481,483,485)

5 lot residential compound
development

Homes built and several
occupied. Punch list items and
electric pole to be removed and
top coat of driveway installed

95% Complete.

14-16 Old Country
Way

8-unit multi-family residential
development.

Permitted. Construction to
commenced in 2022

1% Complete.

533/535 Country Way

2 lots on common drive

Construction commenced
September 2022

0%

16 and 20 Mann Hill
Rd

2 residential dwelling units

1 under construction, 1 about to
finish permitting

10% Complete.

6 MacDonald Terrace

Mixed use development for
5 residential condos and 1
office unit

Special permit recorded.
Construction ongoing

50% Complete.

48 New Driftway

Commercial gas station and
restaurant

No CO yet. Final sitework and
building fit up near completion

95% Complete.

131 Front Street

3 residential units/2

Residential units under

75% Complete.

restaurants construction. Restaurants are
open
White Ash Farm 3 Unit subdivision 1CO,1BP 50% Complete.
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PROPERTY TAXATION

The principal revenue source of the Town is the tax on real and personal property. The amount to be levied in each year is
the amount appropriated or required by law to be raised for municipal expenditures less estimated receipts from other
sources and less appropriations voted from funds on hand. The total amount levied is subject to certain limits prescribed
by law; for a description of those limits, see "Tax Limitations" below.

The estimated receipts for a fiscal year from sources other than the property tax may not exceed the actual receipts during
the preceding fiscal year from the same sources unless approved by the State Commissioner of Revenue. Excepting
special funds the use of which is otherwise provided for by law, the deduction for appropriations voted from funds on hand
for a fiscal year cannot exceed the "free cash" as of the beginning of the prior fiscal year as certified by the State Director
of Accounts plus up to nine months' collections and receipts on account of earlier years' taxes after that date. Subject to
certain adjustments, free cash is surplus revenue less uncollected overdue property taxes from earlier years.

Although an allowance is made in the tax levy for abatements (see "Abatements and Overlay" below), no reserve is generally
provided for uncollectible real property taxes. Since some of the levy is inevitably not collected, this creates a cash
deficiency which may or may not be offset by other items (see "Taxation to Meet Deficits" below).

Tax Levy Computation

The following table illustrates the manner in which the tax levy was determined for the following fiscal years:

Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022 Fiscal 2021 Fiscal 2020 Fiscal 2019
Gross Amount to be Raised:
Appropriations $ 118684734 § 110,116,380 $ 103,153,242 § 102,392,793 $ 97,873,160
Other Local Expenditures 215,573 1,014,352 262,830 22,911 412,617
State & County Charges 702,123 645,744 736,766 777,660 768,417
Overlay Reserve 300,001 276,609 261,477 231,767 250,000
Total Gross Amount to be Raised 119,902,430 112,053,085 104,414,315 103,425,131 99,304,194
Offsets:
Estimated Receipts - State 8,827,140 8,526,303 8,436,170 8,219,992 7,835,793
Estimated Receipts - Local 28,768,915 26,844,081 23,418,215 26,316,119 21,347,823
Appropriated:
Free Cash 4,281,571 3,076,239 2,462,333 1,833,257 3,876,451
Other Available Funds 1,967,298 1,349,776 1,497,031 1,242,565 2,343,457
Free Cash & Other Revenue
Used to Reduce the TaxRate - - - - -
Total Offsets 43,844,925 39,796,399 35,813,749 37,611,933 35,403,525

Net Amount to be Raised (TaxLevy) $ 76,057,506 $ 72,256,686 $ 68,600,566  $ 65,813,198 § 63,900,669

Assessed Valuation $ 6,833558450 $ 5725569460 $ 5,146,329,020 $ 4,875,051,680 $ 4,650,703,740
TaxRate per $1,000 (1) $ 113  § 1262 § 1333 § 1350 § 13.74

Source: Board of Assessors.

(1) The Town taxes all property at a single rate (residential, commercial, industrial, personal).
Note: Property tax rates may not be set by the local assessors until they have been approved by the Commissioner of
Revenue.
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Valuations and Tax Levies

Property is classified for the purpose of taxation according to its use. The legislature has in substance created four classes of
taxable property: (1) residential real property, (2) open space land, (3) commercial and (4) industrial. Within limits, cities and
towns are given the option of determining the share of the annual levy to be borne by each of the categories. The share required
to be borne by residential real property is at least 50 per cent of its share of the total taxable valuation; the effective rate for open
space must be at least 75 per cent of the effective rate for residential real property; and the share of commercial, industrial and
personal property must not exceed 175 percent of their share of the total valuation. A city or town may also exempt up to 35
percent of the valuation of residential real property (where used as the taxpayer’s principal residence) and up to 10 percent of
the valuation of commercial real property (where occupied by certain small businesses). Property may not be classified in a city
or town until the State Commissioner of Revenue certifies that all property in the city or town has been assessed at its fair cash
value. Such certification must take place every five years or pursuant to a revised schedule as may be issued by the
Commissioner.

Related statutes provide that certain agricultural or horticultural land (assessed at the value it has for these purposes) and
recreational land (assessed on the basis of its use at a maximum of 25 percent of its fair cash value) are all to be taxed at the
rate applicable to commercial property.

In order to determine appropriate relative values for the purposes of certain distributions to and assessments upon cities and
towns, the Commissioner of Revenue biennially makes a redetermination of the fair cash value of the taxable property in each
municipality. This is known as the “equalized value”.

Valuation of real and personal property in the Town of Scituate is established by the Board of Assessors. The Town
generally takes real property into tax title for nonpayment of taxes within two years.

The following table sets forth the trend in the Town’s assessed and equalized valuations:

Assessed Valuations (1) Assessed

Fiscal Equalized Valuation as a Percenl
Year Real Property Personal Property Total Valuation (2) of Equalized
2023 $ 6,763,557,400 $ 70,001,050 $ 6,833,558,450 $ 5,952,520,200 1148 %
2022 5,663,173,020 62,396,440 5,725,569,460 5,194,149,500 110.2

2021 5,095,045,130 51,283,890 5,146,329,020 5,194,149,500 99.1

2020 4,824,430,040 50,621,640 4,875,051,680 4,819,519,000 101.2

2019 4,604,202,680 46,501,060 4,650,703,740 4,819,519,000 96.5

(1) Source: Board of Assessors.
(2) Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue - Equalized valuations are established as of January 1 of even-numbered years for
the next two years.

Classification of Property

Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022 Fiscal 2021
Assessed % of Assessed % of Assessed % of
Type Valuation Total Valuation Total Valuation Total
Residential $ 6,564,963,819 96.1 % $ 5,498,185,864 96.0 % $ 4,937,276,419 959 %
Commercial 184,857,681 2.7 151,800,156 2.7 145,311,611 2.8
Industrial 13,735,900 0.2 13,187,000 0.2 12,457,100 0.2
Personal 70,001,050 1.0 62,396,440 1.1 51,283,890 1.0
Total $ 6,833,558,450 100.0 % $ 5,725,569,460 100.0 % $ 5,146,329,020 100.0 %

Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue.
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Largest Taxpayers

The following is a list of the Town’s ten largest taxpayers based upon assessed valuations for preliminary fiscal 2023, all of
whom are current in their tax payments:

Total Assessed Fiscal 2023 % of
Valuation for Tax Total
Name Type of Business Fiscal 2023 Lewy Lewy
Eversource Utility $ 26,549,280 $ 295,493 0.39 %
The Residences at Driftway Plaza Housing/Retail 24,243,100 269,826 0.35
Massachusetts Electric Company Utility 19,566,850 217,779 0.29
SLV/WW Scituate LLC Housing 19,474,800 216,755 0.28
River Chase Apartments Housing 14,571,400 162,180 0.21
Abbott P M/Chamberlain Mng Co. Real Estate 11,391,200 126,784 0.17
Kent Village Associates Housing 8,770,200 97,612 0.13
TPG Marinas Mill Warf LLC Marina 7,530,900 83,819 0.1
TPG Marinas Mill Warf LLC Marina 5,327,200 59,292 0.08
Kearns Kevin P & Lisa M. Trs. Housing 5,090,100 56,653 0.07
Total $ 142,515,030 "$ 1,529,540 2.01 %

Abatements and Overlay

The Town is authorized to increase each tax levy by an amount approved by the Commissioner of Revenue as an "overlay"
to provide for tax abatements. If abatements are granted in excess of the applicable overlay, the excess is required to be
added to the next tax levy. An abatement granted after a tax payment has been made is accounted for as a refund on the
books of the Town.

Abatements are granted where exempt real or personal property has been assessed or where taxable real or personal
property has been overvalued or disproportionately valued. The assessors may also abate uncollectible personal property
taxes. They may abate real and personal property taxes on broad grounds (including inability to pay) with the approval of
the State Commissioner of Revenue, but uncollected real property taxes are ordinarily not written off until they become
municipal "tax titles" by purchase at the public sale or by taking, at which time the tax is written off in full by reserving the
amount of the tax and charging surplus.

The following table sets forth the amount of overlay reserve for the last five fiscal years and abatements or exemptions
granted during the fiscal year against each levy:

Exemptions/

Overlay Allowance Abatements Overlay

Fiscal Gross Tax Dollar Percent Granted thru Excess
Year Levy Amount of Levy Fiscal Year (Deficit)
2022 $72,256,687 $276,609 0.4% $231,540 $45,069
2021 68,600,566 261,477 04 180,333 81,144
2020 (1) 65,813,198 231,767 04 201,673 (1) 30,094
2019 (2) 63,900,669 250,000 0.4 179,680 70,320
2018 61,989,867 249,617 0.4 142,793 106,824

Source: Board of Assessors.

(1) The Town increased the exemptions amounts on several type of exemptions in addition to raising asset and income
limits in order to provide tax relief to more residents.

(2) Revaluation year.
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Tax Collections

The Town of Scituate has accepted a statute providing for quarterly tax payments. Under the statute, preliminary tax
payments are due on August 1 and November 1, with payment of the actual tax bill (after credit is given for the preliminary
payments) in installments on February 1 and May 1 if actual tax bills are mailed by December 31. Interest accrues on
delinquent taxes at the rate of 14 percent per annum. The following table sets forth the trend in the Town's tax collections:

Overlay % of Net
Fiscal Gross Reserve for Net Collected at
Year Tax Levy Abatements Tax Levy (1) June 30 (2,3,5)
2022 $72,256,687 $276,609 $71,980,078 99.4%
2021 68,600,566 261,477 68,339,089 98.9
2020 65,813,198 231,767 65,581,431 98.7 (4)
2019 63,900,669 250,000 63,650,669 99.0
2018 61,989,867 249,617 61,740,250 98.5

Source: Board of Assessors as to rates and levies; Town Accountant as to collections.

(1) Net after deduction of overlay for abatements.

(2) l.e., at the end of the fiscal year for which levied.

(3) Actual collections less refunds, but excluding proceeds of tax titles and possessions attributable to that year's levy. Non-cash credits
which may be abated later are not included in the amount allowed for refunds here.

(4) The Town extended the fourth quarter due date by 30 days to assist residents affected by COVID-19.

(5) Collections for the current fiscal year are comparable to previous fiscal years.

Tax Titles and Possessions

Real property (land and buildings) is subject to a lien for the taxes assessed upon it, subject to any paramount federal lien
and subject to bankruptcy and insolvency laws. (In addition, real property is subject to a lien for certain unpaid municipal
charges or fees.) If the property has been transferred, an unenforced lien expires on the fourth December 31 after the end
of the fiscal year to which the tax relates. If the property has not been transferred by the fourth December 31, an unenforced
lien expires upon a later transfer of the property. Provision is made, however, for continuation of the lien where it could not
be enforced because of a legal impediment.

The persons against whom real or personal property taxes are assessed are personally liable for the tax (subject to
bankruptcy and insolvency laws). In the case of real property, this personal liability is effectively extinguished by sale or
taking of the property as described below.

Massachusetts law permits a municipality either to sell by public sale (at which the municipality may become the purchaser)
or to take real property for non-payment of taxes. In either case the property owner can redeem the property by paying the
unpaid taxes, with interest and other charges, but if the right of redemption is not exercised within six months (which may
be extended an additional year in the case of certain installment payments) it can be foreclosed by petition to the Land
Court. Upon such foreclosure, a tax title purchased or taken by the municipality becomes a "tax possession" and may be
held and disposed of in the same manner as other land held for municipal purposes.

Taxes Outstanding

The following table presents the trend in aggregate taxes outstanding, tax titles and tax possessions:

Aggregate Overdue

As of Property Taxes Tax

6/30 at FY-End (1) Tax Titles Possessions
2022 $553,328 $1,090,583 $605,178
2021 532,928 1,175,438 605,179
2020 937,816 969,484 605,179
2019 675,748 809,582 605,179
2018 809,660 783,472 521,719

Source: Town Accountant.
(1) For five prior fiscal years. Excludes abated taxes and tax deferrals. Includes taxes in litigation, if any.
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Sale of Tax Receivables

Cities and towns are authorized to sell delinquent property tax receivables by public sale or auction, either individually or in
bulk. The Town does not expect to utilize this option at the present time.

Taxation to Meet Deficits

As noted elsewhere (see “Abatements and Overlay” above) overlay deficits, i.e. tax abatements in excess of the overlay included
in the tax levy to cover abatements, are required to be added to the next tax levy. It is generally understood that revenue deficits,
i.e. those resulting from non-property tax revenues being less than anticipated, are also required to be added to the tax levy (at
least to the extent not covered by surplus revenue).

Amounts lawfully expended since the prior tax levy and not included therein are also required to be included in the annual tax
levy. The circumstances under which this can arise are limited since municipal departments are generally prohibited from
incurring liabilities in excess of appropriations except for major disasters, mandated items, contracts in aid of housing and
renewal projects and other long-term contracts. In addition, utilities must be paid at established rates and certain established
salaries, e.g. civil service, must legally be paid for work actually performed, whether or not covered by appropriations.

Cities and towns are authorized to appropriate sums, and thus to levy taxes, to cover deficits arising from other causes, such as
“free cash” deficits arising from a failure to collect taxes. This is not generally understood, however, and it has not been the
practice to levy taxes to cover free cash deficits. Except to the extent that such deficits have been reduced or eliminated by
subsequent collections of uncollected taxes (including sales of tax titles and tax possessions), lapsed appropriations,
non-property tax revenues in excess of estimates, other miscellaneous items or funding loans authorized by special act, they
remain in existence.

Tax Limitations

Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws, also known as Proposition 2%, imposes two separate limits on the annual tax
levy of a city or town.

The primary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed 2% percent of the full and fair cash value. If a city or town exceeds the
primary limitation, it must reduce its tax levy by at least 15 percent annually until it is in compliance, provided that the reduction
can be reduced in any year to not less than 7%z percent by majority vote of the voters, or to less than 774 percent by two-thirds
vote of the voters.

For cities and towns at or below the primary limit, a secondary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed the maximum levy
limit for the preceding fiscal year as determined by the State Commissioner of Revenue by more than 2% percent, subject to
exceptions for property added to the tax rolls or property which has had an increase, other than as part of a general revaluation,
in its assessed valuation over the prior year’s valuation.

This “growth” limit on the tax levy may be exceeded in any year by a majority vote of the voters, but an increase in the secondary
or growth limit under this procedure does not permit a tax levy in excess of the primary limitation, since the two limitations apply
independently. In addition, if the voters vote to approve taxes in excess of the “growth” limit for the purpose of funding a
stabilization fund, such increased amount may only be taken into account for purposes of calculating the maximum levy limit in
each subsequent year if the Select Board of a town or the city council of a city votes by a two-thirds vote to appropriate such
increased amount in such subsequent year to the stabilization fund.

The applicable tax limits may also be reduced in any year by a majority vote of the voters.

The State Commissioner of Revenue may adjust any tax limit “to counterbalance the effects of extraordinary, non-recurring
events which occurred during the base year”.

The statute further provides that the voters may exclude from the taxes subject to the tax limits and from the calculation of the
maximum tax levy (a) the amount required to pay debt service on bonds and notes issued before November 4, 1980, if the
exclusion is approved by a majority vote of the voters, and (b) the amount required to pay debt service on any specific
subsequent issue for which similar approval is obtained. Even with voter approval, the holders of the obligations for which
unlimited taxes may be assessed do not have a statutory priority or security interest in the portion of the tax levy attributable to
such obligations. It should be noted that Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44, Section 20 requires that the taxes excluded
from the levy limit to pay debt service on any such bonds and notes be calculated based on the true interest cost of the issue.
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Voters may also exclude from the Proposition 274 limits the amount required to pay specified capital outlay expenditures or for
the city or town’s apportioned share for certain capital outlay expenditures by a regional governmental unit. In addition, the city
council of a city, with the approval of the mayor if required, or the Select Board or the town council of a town may vote to exclude
from the Proposition 2% limits taxes raised in lieu of sewer or water charges to pay debt service on bonds or notes issued by
the municipality (or by an independent authority, commission or district) for water or sewer purposes, provided that the
municipality’s sewer or water charges are reduced accordingly.

In addition, Proposition 2% limits the annual increase in the total assessments on cities and towns by any county, district,
authority, the Commonwealth or any other governmental entity (except regional school districts, the MWRA and certain districts
for which special legislation provides otherwise) to the sum of (a) 2% percent of the prior year's assessments and (b) “any
increases in costs, charges or fees for services customarily provided locally or for services subscribed to at local option”.
Regional water districts, regional sewerage districts and regional veterans districts may exceed these limitations under statutory
procedures requiring a two-thirds vote of the district’s governing body and either approval of the local appropriating authorities
(by two-thirds vote in districts with more than two members or by majority vote in two-member districts) or approval of the
registered voters in a local election (in the case of two-member districts). Under Proposition 272 any State law to take effect on
or after January 1, 1981 imposing a direct service or cost obligation on a city or town will become effective only if accepted or
voluntarily funded by the city or town or if State funding is provided. Similarly, State rules or regulations imposing additional
costs on a city or town or laws granting or increasing local tax exemptions are to take effect only if adequate State appropriations
are provided. These statutory provisions do not apply to costs resulting from judicial decisions.

Pledged Taxes

Taxes on certain property in designated development districts may be pledged for the payment of costs of economic
development projects within such districts and may therefore be unavailable for other municipal purposes. (See “Tax
Increment Financing for Development Districts” under “TOWN FINANCES” below).

Unused Levy Capacity (1)

The following table sets forth the Town's tax levy limits and unused levy capacity for the following fiscal years:

For Fiscal Year

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Primary Levy Ceiling (2) $ 170,838,961 $ 143,139,237 $ 128,658,226 $ 121,876,292 $ 116,267,594
Prior Fiscal Year Levy Limit 66,214,508 63,035,327 60,306,984 57,874,204 55,646,272
Amended Prior Fiscal Year Growth (3,080) - (2,969) - -
2.5% Levy Growth 1,655,286 1,575,883 1,507,600 1,446,855 1,391,157
Current Fiscal Year New Growth (3) 2,428,742 1,603,298 1,223,712 985,925 836,775
Current Fiscal Year Override - - - - -
Growth Lewy Limit 70,295,456 66,214,508 63,035,327 60,306,984 57,874,204
Current Fiscal Year Debt Exclusion 6,093,308 6,380,564 5,814,883 5,838,486 6,327,833
TaxLewyLimit 76,388,764 72,595,072 68,850,210 66,145,470 64,202,037
TaxLewy 76,057,506 72,256,687 68,600,566 65,813,198 63,900,669
Unused Levy Capacity (4) 331,258 (6) 338,385 (6) 249,644 (6) 332,272 (6) 301,368 (6)'
Unused Primary Levy Capacity (5) $ 100,543,505 $ 76,924,729 $ 65,622,899 $ 61,569,308 $ 58,393,390

) Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue.
) 2.5% of assessed valuation.
(3) Allowed increase for new valuations - certified by the Department of Revenue.
) Tax Levy Limit less Tax Levy.
) Primary Levy Ceiling less Growth Levy Limit.
) $300,000 not levied as an offset to debt exclusions for middle school and public safety complex; $200,000 in FY2021.

28



Initiative Petitions

Various proposals have been made in recent years for legislative amendments to the Massachusetts Constitution to impose
limits on state and local taxes. To be adopted, such amendments must be approved by two successive legislatures and
then by the voters at a state election.

Community Preservation Act

The Massachusetts Community Preservation Act (the “CPA”) permits cities and towns that accept its provisions to levy a
surcharge on its real property tax levy, dedicate revenue (other than state or federal funds), and to receive state matching
funds for (i) the acquisition, creation, preservation, rehabilitation and restoration of land for recreational use, open space,
and community housing and (ii) the acquisition, preservation, rehabilitation and restoration of historic resources. The
provisions of the CPA must be accepted by the voters of the city or town at an election after such provisions have first been
accepted by either a vote of the legislative body of the city or town or an initiative petition signed by 5% of its registered
voters.

A city or town may approve a surcharge of up to 3% (but not less than 1% under certain circumstances) and may make an
additional commitment of funds by dedicating revenue other than state or federal funds, provided that the total funds
collected do not exceed 3% of the real property tax levy, less any exemptions adopted (such as an exemption for low-
income individuals and families and for low and moderate-income senior citizens, an exemption for $100,000 of the value
of each taxable parcel of residential real property or $100,000 of the value of each taxable parcel of class three, commercial
property, and class four, industrial property as defined in Chapter 59, Section 2A of the General Laws, and an exemption
for commercial and industrial properties in cities and towns with classified tax rates). In the event that the municipality shall
no longer dedicate all or part of the additional funds to community preservation, the surcharge on the real property tax levy
of not less than 1% shall remain in effect, provided that any such change must be approved pursuant to the same process
as acceptance of the CPA. The surcharge is not counted in the total taxes assessed for the purpose of determining the
permitted levy amount under Proposition 274 (see “Tax Limitations” under “PROPERTY TAXATION” above). A city or town
may revoke its acceptance of the provisions of the CPA at any time after 5 years from the date of such acceptance and may
change the amount of the surcharge or the exemptions to the surcharge at any time, including reducing the surcharge to
1% and committing additional municipal funds as outlined above, provided that any such revocation or change must be
approved pursuant to the same process as acceptance of the CPA.

Any city or town that accepts the provisions of the CPA will receive annual state matching grants to supplement amounts
raised by its surcharge and dedication of revenue. The state matching funds are raised from certain recording and filing
fees of the registers of deeds. Those amounts are deposited into a state trust fund and are distributed to cities and towns
that have accepted the provisions of the CPA, which distributions are not subject to annual appropriation by the state
legislature. The amount distributed to each city and town is based on a statutory formula and the total state distribution
made to any city or town may not exceed 100% of the amount raised locally by the surcharge on the real property tax levy.

The amounts raised by the surcharge on real property taxes, the amounts of other dedicated revenues and the amounts
received in state matching funds are required to be deposited in a dedicated community preservation fund. Each city or
town that accepts the provisions of the CPA is required to establish a community preservation committee to study the
community preservation needs of the community and to make recommendations to the legislative body of the city or town
regarding the community preservation projects that should be funded from the community preservation fund. Upon the
recommendations of the committee, the legislative body of the city or town may appropriate amounts from the fund for
permitted community preservation purposes or may reserve amounts for spending in future fiscal years, provided that at
least 10% of the total annual revenues to the fund must be spent or set aside for open space purposes, 10% for historic
resource purposes and 10% for community housing purposes.

The CPA authorizes cities and towns that accept its provisions to issue bonds and notes in anticipation of the receipt of
surcharge and other dedicated revenues to finance community preservation projects approved under the provisions of the
CPA. Bonds and notes issued under the CPA are general obligations of the city or town and are payable from amounts on
deposit in the community preservation fund. In the event that a city or town revokes its acceptance of the provisions of the
CPA, the surcharge shall remain in effect until all contractual obligations incurred by the city or town prior to such revocation,
including the payment of bonds or notes issued under the CPA, have been fully discharged.
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The Town accepted the provisions of the Community Preservation Act and approved a surcharge of 3% in March of 2002,
and has used the funds strategically to enhance the quality and character of the community. It has also created an
Affordable Housing Trust to provide a variety in housing stock. The table below shows the amounts surcharged by the
Town, amounts received in state matching funds and CPA fund balance for the past five fiscal years.

Fiscal State Matching CPA Fund

Year Surcharge Funds Balance

2022 $ 1,836,299 $ 827,106 $ 5,494,170
2021 1,693,740 513,095 5,581,992
2020 1,576,496 417,101 4,224,350 (1)
2019 1,569,582 320,322 10,705,452
2018 1,494,185 273,119 9,475,549

(1) Decrease attributed to the $8.3M athletic field project approved in April 2019 which represents $5.22M of available
funds and $3.08M in initial borrowing.

As of December 31, 2019, the Massachusetts legislature increased the $20 surcharge on filing of documents at the registries
of deeds by $30 to $50 per document as well as increasing the $10 surcharge to file a municipal lien certificate to $25. The
additional funds will be credited to the Massachusetts Community Preservation Trust Fund. This increase in fees will directly
benefit communities that have accepted the Community Preservation Act statute by way of a material increase in state
matching funds.
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TOWN FINANCES

The Budget and Appropriation Process

The annual budget, and appropriation process is governed by the Town Charter, and General Bylaws. The Charter requires
the Town Administrator to submit, and recommend a balanced operation, and capital budget plan. These budgets are
submitted in accordance with established financial policies based on detailed revenue, and expenditure forecasting
established by the Town Administrator, the Financial Team, and the Financial Forecasting Committee.

In 2010, the budget process was overhauled with the establishment of policies and reserves.

The annual appropriations of the Town are ordinarily made at the annual meeting which usually takes place in April.
Appropriations may also be voted at special meetings. Every town must have an appropriation, advisory, or finance
committee. The committee provides recommendations on proposed expenditures recommended by the Town
Administrator, and the Select Board at the Annual Town meeting.

Water and sewer department expenditures are generally included in the budgets adopted by city councils and town
meetings, but electric and gas department funds may be appropriated by the municipal light boards. Under certain
legislation, any city or town which accepts the legislation may provide that the appropriation for the operating costs of any
department may be offset, in whole or in part, by estimated receipts from fees charged for services provided by the
department. The Town has no municipal gas or electric departments.

The school budget is limited to the total amount appropriated by the town meeting, but the school committee retains full
power to allocate the funds appropriated.

State and county assessments, abatements in excess of overlay, principal and interest not otherwise provided for, and final
judgments are included in the tax levy whether or not included in the budget. Revenues are not required to be set forth in
the budget, but estimated non-tax revenues are taken into account by the assessors in fixing the tax levy. (See "PROPERTY
TAXATION" above.)

Operating Budget Trends

The following table sets forth the trend in the Town’s operating budgets:

Appropriated Appropriated Appropriated Appropriated Appropriated

Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022 Fiscal 2021 Fiscal 2020
General Government $ 5,749,523 $ 5,296,441 $ 4,803,541 $ 4,514,123 $ 4,387,798
Public Safety 11,416,948 10,638,129 10,138,053 9,952,587 9,728,084
Public Works 5,189,063 5,085,370 4,956,221 4,454,085 4,341,297
Human Senvices 838,095 820,444 803,058 702,833 713,994
Education 46,527,057 43,971,057 42,151,174 40,147,466 39,297,063
Culture & Recreation 1,409,720 1,340,042 1,320,136 1,294,481 1,259,448
Debt 7,979,309 8,111,167 8,417,125 7,513,308 7,562,027
Employee Benefits 15,415,479 14,294,648 13,801,807 12,825,734 12,114,850
Total $ 94,525,194 $ 89,557,298 $ 86,391,115 $ 81,404,617 $ 79,404,561

Source: Town Accountant.
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Education Reform

State legislation known as the Education Reform Act of 1993, as amended, imposes certain minimum expenditure
requirements on municipalities with respect to funding for education and related programs, and may affect the level of state
aid to be received for education. The requirements are determined on the basis of formulas affected by various measures
of wealth and income, enrollments, prior levels of local spending and state aid, and other factors. Since its passage, the
Town has complied with the Act and appropriations for education have equaled or exceeded the minimum required level.

Revenues

Property Taxes: Property taxes are the major source of revenue for the Town. The total amount levied is subject to certain
limits prescribed by law; for a description of those limits see "PROPERTY TAXATION - Tax Limitations," above.

State Distributions: In addition to grants for specified capital purposes (some of which are payable over the life of the bonds
issued for the projects), the Commonwealth provides financial assistance to cities and towns for current purposes. Payments
to cities and towns are derived primarily from a percentage of the State’s personal income, sales and use, and corporate excise
tax receipts, together with the net receipts from the State Lottery. A municipality’s state aid entitlement is based on a number of
different formulas, of which the “schools” and “lottery” formulas are the most important. Both of the major formulas tend to
provide more state aid to poorer communities. The formulas for determining a municipality’s state aid entitlement are subject to
amendment by the state legislature and, while a formula might indicate that a particular amount of state aid is owed, the amount
of state aid actually paid is limited to the amount appropriated by the state legislature. The state annually estimates state aid,
but the actual state aid payments may vary from the estimate.

In the fall of 1986, legislation was enacted placing limits on the growth of state tax revenues. In essence, the growth in state tax
revenue is limited to the average rate of growth in wages and salaries in the Commonwealth over the previous three calendar
years. The effect of this legislation could be to restrict the amount of state tax revenue available to provide state financial
assistance to the Commonwealth’s cities, towns and regional school districts.

Following are state aid payments received by the Town for the following fiscal years:

Fiscal Aid to Total

Year Education Other State Aid
2022 $6,114,553 $2,401,617 $8,516,170
2021 6,047,883 2,342,255 8,390,038
2020 5,873,903 2,321,040 8,194,943
2019 5,521,321 2,299,118 7,820,439
2018 5,437,381 2,217,846 7,655,227

Source: Town Accountant.

State School Building Assistance Program: Under its school building assistance program, The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts provides grants to cities, towns and regional school districts for school construction projects. Until July 26,
2004, the State Board of Education was responsible for approving grants for school projects and otherwise administering
the program. Grant amounts ranged from 50% to 90% of approved project costs. Municipalities generally issued bonds to
finance the entire project cost, and the Commonwealth disbursed the grants in equal annual installments over the term of
the related bonds.

Pursuant to legislation which became effective on July 26, 2004, the state legislature created the Massachusetts School
Building Authority (the “Authority”) to finance and administer the school building assistance program. The Authority has
assumed all powers and obligations of the Board of Education with respect to the program. In addition to certain other
amounts, the legislation dedicates a portion of Commonwealth sales tax receipts to the Authority to finance the program.

The range of reimbursement rates for new project grant applications submitted to the Authority is between 31% and 80% of
approved project costs. The Authority promulgated new regulations with respect to the application and approval process
for projects submitted after July 1, 2007. The Authority expects to pay grants for such projects as project costs are incurred
pursuant to project funding agreements between the Authority and the municipalities. None of the interest expense incurred
on debt issued by municipalities to finance their portion of the costs of new projects will be included in the approved project
costs eligible for reimbursement.

On December 3, 2014, the Town approved a $75,000,000 high school/middle school renovation project in which the Town
received 44.06% reimbursement from the MSBA. The Town’s local share of the project was $54,248,947. $50,000,000
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bond proceeds and $19,248,983 grants have been received to date. The new middle school opened to students in
September 2017.

The Town filed two statements of interest in 2019 for renovation/replacement of the Hatherly and Cushing Elementary
Schools. The Town was not accepted into the program and re-filed statements of interest for the two schools in 2020. The
Hatherly Elementary School was accepted and $1.1 million was appropriated at the October 2021 special town meeting for
a feasibility study. An OPM has been retained and the designer selection process is underway.

In March 2022, the Town filed a Statement of Interest with the MSBA for the Accelerated Repair Program for replacement
of the Scituate High School Roof. The roof replacement project was approved at the April 11, 2022 ATM, Article 3 for
$1,045,000.

Motor Vehicle Excise Tax: An excise is imposed on the registration of motor vehicles (subject to exemptions) at the rate
of $25 per $1,000 of valuation. The excise is collected by and for the benefit of the municipality in which the motor vehicle
is customarily kept. Valuations are determined by a statutory formula based on manufacturers' list price and year of
manufacture. Bills not paid when due bear interest at 12 percent per annum. Provision is also made, after notice to the
owner, for suspension of the owner's operating license or registration by the registrar of motor vehicles. The following table
presents a five-year history of motor vehicle excise tax collections of the Town:

Fiscal Year Receipts (1)
2022 $3,529,748
2021 3,468,427
2020 3,146,036
2019 3,377,751
2018 3,150,523

(1) Net after refunds. Includes receipts from prior years' levies.

Water Rates and Services: The Water Division of the Department of Public Works is responsible for the operation and
maintenance of the water treatment plant, six water wells, two booster stations, two water storage tanks, three corrosion
control stations, three surface water supplies, 300 acres of watershed, 105 miles of water distribution system, 275 fire
hydrants, and 8,400 water meters.

The Water Division employs a staff of fifteen appropriately licensed professional individuals who are responsible for the
maintenance and operation of over 50 million dollars of assets with an annual operating budget of $6,664,027. A population
of more than 19,000 - which increases to approximately 30,000 during the summer months - consumes an average of 1.25
million gallons of water each day.

On July 1, 1999, the Town placed water services, which are provided to nearly 100 percent of the Town, on an enterprise
fund basis. The Town has a planned upgrade program in place for water system infrastructure improvements while keeping
the fund self-supporting and has a policy of reviewing and adjusting rates each year. Charges for water usage are billed
quarterly. Water rates increased 19% in fiscal 2015, 19% in fiscal 2016, 20% in fiscal 2019, 15.2% in fiscal 2020, 11% in
fiscal 2021, 9% in fiscal 2022 and 10% in fiscal 2023 to finance the $55,000,000 in improvements to the system including
25 miles of water pipes and other improvements and upgrades to the water system.

The Town has appropriated $4 million for the design of a new water treatment plant. An owner’s project manager and
designer have both been retained and a $50 million new water treatment was approved on April 11, 2022.

As of July 1, 2022, the rates per quarter for residential water consumption are $2.13 per 100 cubic feet up to the first 1,200
cubic feet, with a minimum charge of $113.64 for a 5/8 inch meter. The service charge is higher for larger sized meters.
Usage between 1,201-3,000 cubic feet is billed at a rate of $9.28 per 100 cubic feet. Usage between 3,000-5,000 cubic
feet is billed at a rate of $14.90 per 100 cubic feet and usage over 5,000 gallons is billed at a rate of $20.86. All commercial
usage is billed at a rate of $9.90 per 100 cubic feet. The rate review process is done annually.

Sewer Rates and Services: The Sewer Division of the Department of Public Works is responsible for the operations and
maintenance of the Scituate Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and 24 miles of sewers, which make up the Scituate
Sewer Collection System. This serves 33% of the community. The WWTP was operational in November 1967 and was
originally designated to treat an average daily flow of 1.0 million gallons per day (mgd). The WWTP was designated as a
secondary treatment plant utilizing the extended aeration mode of the activated sludge (microorganisms) process.
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The purpose of the WWTP is to remove and treat settleable and floating solids, to reduce suspended solids and dissolve
organic material, and to disinfect the final effluent (treated water leaving the WWTP) to reduce the possibility of water-borne
diseases.

A septage receiving station, aerobic sludge digesters and a sludge dewatering building were added during an upgrade in
1984. The additions allowed further treatment of the sludge (settled solids), which is dewatered by a belt filter press and
disposed of by a contractor at a nearby landfill. The Sewer Division completed $1.2 million in upgrades to its facility.

A second upgrade was completed in 2000 increasing the design of the WWTP from 1.0 mgd to 1.6 mgd along with upgrading
the secondary treatment to an advanced treatment capable of nitrogen removal (nitrification/denitrification). The use of
ultraviolet light (UV) has replaced chlorination (residual chlorine can be toxic to aquatic life) as the means of disinfecting the
final effluent.

The sewer rate is a minimum charge of $82.70 per quarter plus $6.62 per hundred cubic feet of water consumption. The
Town has a comprehensive plan for sewer expansion funded by users, and sewer rates have been increased to fund
upgrade expansions. The rate review process is conducted annually with the last renew resulting in a 16% increase in rates
effective July 1, 2022.

The Town is currently discussing the option of a regional sewer agreement with the Towns of Hull and Cohasset.

Transfer Station: The Transfer Station Division of the Department of Public Works is responsible for the operation and
maintenance of the Transfer Station and Recycling Center. The Transfer Station is operated as a Pay-As-You-Throw facility
and will accept only household refuse contained in Pay-As-You-Throw trash bags. These trash bags can be purchased at
the Transfer Station or at local retailers at a cost of $20.00 for a package of ten 30-gallon bags or $10.00 for a package of
ten 15 gallon bags. The Town has a current recycling rate of 50%. The rate for construction debris was increased to
+240/ton effective December 1, 2019. The Select Board voted effective December 1, 2021 to increase some fees in
response to rising disposal costs. The sticker fees were increased by $15 effective for calendar year 2023 which support
the addition of one staff person and capital needs.

Local Option Meals Tax: Effective July 1, 2013, the Town adopted the local meals excise tax. The local meals excise tax
is a 0.75% tax on the gross receipts of a vendor from the sale of restaurant meals. The tax is paid by the vendor to the
State Commissioner of Revenue, who in turn pays the tax to the municipality in which the meal was sold. This tax generated
the following in prior fiscal years:

Fiscal Year Amount
2023 $ 230,000 (1)
2022 355,026
2021 257,358
2020 265,281
2019 261,318

(1) Estimated. The Town returned its revenue projections to pre-pandemic levels.

Local Rooms Occupancy Excise: The Town accepted the local option room occupancy excise tax at 6% effective July
1,2019. The DOR estimated receipts for the Town from $24,000-$60,000. The Town reduced the room occupancy excise
tax from 6% to 4% at the annual town meeting in the spring of 2020 to address concerns raised regarding a negative impact
as surrounding communities were at 4%. The Town does not utilize room occupancy excise as a revenue source for the
operational budget at this time. The Town received $135,953 in revenue in FY2021 and $180,519 in FY2022.
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Annual Audits

The Town of Scituate is audited annually by Powers & Sullivan, Certified Public Accountants, of Wakefield, Massachusetts.
A copy of the fiscal 2022 audit is attached hereto as Appendix A.

The attached report speaks only as of its date, and only to the matters expressly set forth therein. The auditors have not
been engaged to review this Official Statement or to perform audit procedures regarding the post-audit period, nor have the
auditors been requested to give their consent to the inclusion of their report in Appendix A. Except as stated in their report,
the auditors have not been engaged to verify the financial information set out in Appendix A and are not passing upon and
do not assume responsibility for the sufficiency, accuracy or completeness of the financial information presented in that
appendix.

Financial Statements
Set forth on the following pages is a Governmental Funds Balance Sheets for fiscal years ending June 30, 2022, June 30,

2021, and June 30, 2020 and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and changes in Fund Balance for fiscal years ended
June 30, 2022 through June 30, 2018. Said statements were extracted from the Town’s audited financials.
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2022 (1)

Nonmajor Total
Community Town Capital Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24282259 § 5547519 $ 409,768 $ 18,663,498 $ 48,903,044

Receivables, net of uncollectibles
Real estate and personal property taxes 866,118 - 866,118
Tax liens 930,114 24,537 954,651
Community preservation fund surtax - 13,558 13,558
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 216,587 - - 216,587
Departmental and other 255,015 - 105,235 360,250
Intergovernmental - - 1,731,555 1,731,555
Community preservation state share - 642,700 - 642,700
Special assessments 105,123 - 140,736 245,859
Tax foreclosures 1,599,406 - - 1,599,406
Due from other funds 605,179 - - - 605,179
Total assets $ 28,859,801 $ 6228314 $ 409,768 $§ 20,641,024 $ 56,138,907

LIABILITIES
Warrants payable 1,325,827 40,513 - 506,485 1,872,825
Accrued payroll 480,326 - - 49,724 530,050
Other liabilities 79,865 - - 1,738,145 1,818,010
Unearned revenue - - - 990,374 990,374
Notes payable - - 494 841 32,000 526,841
Total liabilities 1,886,018 40,513 494 841 3,316,728 5,738,100
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes paid in advance 535,355 12,838 548,193
Deferred inflows related to lease receivables 1,599,406 - - 1,599,406
Unavailable revenue 2,730,137 38,095 807,262 3,575,494
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,864,898 50,933 807,262 5,723,093
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - 27,051 27,051
Restricted 808,246 6,136,868 10,823 16,629,421 23,585,358
Committed 8,044,347 - - - 8,044,347
Assigned 992,943 - - - 992,943
Unassigned 12,263,349 - (95,896) (139,438) 12,028,015
Total fund balances 22,108,885 6,136,868 (85,073) 16,517,034 44,677,714
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances $ 28,859,801 $ 6228314 $ 409768 $§ 20,641,024 $ 56,138,907

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statements of the Town.
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2021 (1)

Nonmajor Total
Community Town Capital Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 19571488 $ 5586285 $§ 1984725 § 15426435 § 42,568,933

Receivables, net of uncollectibles
Real estate and personal property taxes 916,896 - 916,896
Tax liens 1,000,164 27,459 1,027,623
Community preservation fund surtax - 13,772 - 13,772
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 254,660 - - 254,660
Departmental and other 301,848 - 99,930 401,778
Intergovernmental - - 3,298,223 3,298,223
Community preservation state share - 742,423 - - 742,423
Special assessments 117,881 - 116,644 234,525
Tax foreclosures 605,179 - - 605,179
Due from other funds 1,111,409 - - - 1,111,409
Total assets $ 23,879,525 $ 6,369,939 § 1984725 § 18941232 § 51175421

LIABILITIES
Warrants payable 933,228 388 141,145 922,998 1,997,759
Accrued payroll 1,165,702 - - 36,163 1,201,865
Due to other funds - 1,111,409 1,111,409
Other liabilities 75,392 1,260,528 1,335,920
Fees collected in advance - - 1,066,212 1,066,212
Notes payable - - 2,200,000 32,000 2,232,000
Total liabilities 2,174,322 388 2,341,145 4,429,310 8,945,165
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes paid in advance 236,906 3,904 - 240,810
Unavailable revenue 2,936,195 41,231 1,011,826 3,989,252
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,173,101 45,135 1,011,826 4,230,062
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - 27,051 27,051
Restricted 516,622 6,324,416 826,279 13,561,383 21,228,700
Committed 5,316,034 - - - 5,316,034
Assigned 617,081 - - - 617,081
Unassigned 12,082,365 - (1,182,699) (88,338) 10,811,328
Total fund balances 18,532,102 6,324,416 (356,420) 13,500,096 38,000,194
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances $ 23,879,525 $ 6,369,939 § 1984725 § 18941232 § 51175421

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statements of the Town.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net of uncollectibles
Real estate and personal property taxes
Tax liens
Community preservation fund surtax
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
Departmental and other
Intergovernmental
Community preservation state share
Special assessments

Tax foreclosures

Due from other funds
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Warrants payable
Accrued payroll
Due to other funds
Other liabilities
Fees collected in advance
Notes payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes paid in advance
Unavailable revenue
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2020 (1)

Nonmajor Total
Community Town Capital Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
$ 16,512,100 $ 4349458 § 8134900 $ 11,520,846 $ 40,517,304
1,280,903 - - - 1,280,903
849,548 22,469 - - 872,017
- 26,505 - - 26,505
242,420 - - - 242,420
151,558 - - 151,558
- - 2,070,644 2,070,644
- 417,101 - 417,101
127,692 - 156,009 283,701
605,179 - - 605,179
210,095 - - 210,095
$ 19,979,495 $ 4815533 § 8134900 § 13,747,499 § 46,677,427
805,864 120,948 2,210,473 1,191,467 4,328,752
1,017,277 - - 67,585 1,084,862
- - 210,095 210,095
66,371 - - 66,371
- - 8,311 8,311
- - 1,160,433 154,222 1,314,655
1,889,512 120,948 3,370,906 1,631,680 7,013,046
239,739 4,160 - - 243,899
2,851,733 48,974 - 444,529 3,345,236
3,091,472 53,134 - 444,529 3,589,135
- - - 27,051 27,051
450,184 4,641,451 11,061,930 11,773,573 27,927,138
4,178,317 - - - 4,178,317
958,348 - - - 958,348
9,411,662 - (6,297,936) (129,334) 2,984,392
14,998,511 4,641,451 4,763,994 11,671,290 36,075,246
$ 19,979,495 $ 4815533 § 8134900 § 13,747,499 § 46,677,427

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statements of the Town.
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REVENUES:

Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds

Tax liens
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
Hotel/motel tax
Meals tax
Penalties and interest on taxes
Fees and rentals
Payments in lieu of taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental - state aid
Intergovernmental - Teachers Retirement
Intergovernmental - other
Departmental and other
Community preservation taxes
Special assessments
Contributions and donations
Investment income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public w orks
Human services
Culture and recreation
Community preservation
Pension benefits
Pension benefits - Teachers Retirement
Employee benefits
State and county charges
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Principal on right to sue leases
Interest on right to use leases
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of bonds
Premium fromissuance of bonds
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
Fund Balances - End of Year

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 (1)

Town Nonmajor Total
Community Capital Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
$ 71,960,076 $ - $ - $ - $ 71,960,076
389,031 9,508 - - 398,539
3,571,560 - - - 3,571,560
180,519 - - - 180,519
355,022 - - - 355,022
444,179 4,724 - 10 448,913
543,677 - - 57,725 601,402
28,563 - - - 28,563
1,346,155 - - 326,710 1,672,865
50,654 - - - 50,654
8,520,355 - - - r 8,520,355
6,631,157 - - - 6,631,157
87,996 727,383 - 8,571,642 9,387,021
1,534,557 - - 5,124,327 6,658,884
- 1,801,117 - - 1,801,117
18,493 - - 14212 F 32,705
- - 13,181 614,847 628,028
129,606 17,898 - 4,373 151,877
$ 95,791,600 $ 2,560,630 $ 13,181 $ 14,713,846 $ 113,079,257
4,075,080 - - 1,372,767 5,447,847
10,908,931 - 598,027 1,694,108 13,201,066
41,137,337 - - 5,579,698 46,717,035
5,321,277 - 1,567,429 2,096,255 8,984,961
684,351 - 375,855 430,368 1,490,574
1,236,577 - - 480,576 1,717,153
- 2,413,415 - - 2,413,415
5,422,657 - - - 5,422,657
6,631,157 - - - 6,631,157
7,211,515 - - - 7,211,515
660,370 - - - 660,370
5,143,452 202,000 - - 5,345,452
3,270,751 132,763 - - 3,403,514
1,041,960 - - - 1,041,960
41,340 - - - 41,340
92,786,755 2,748,178 2,541,311 11,653,772 109,730,016
3,004,845 (187,548) (2,528,130) 3,060,074 3,349,241
- - 2,165,500 - 2,165,500
- - 80,737 69,950 150,687
- - 553,240 494,840 1,048,080
571,938 - - - 571,938
- - - (607,926) (607,926)
571,938 - 2,799,477 (43,136) 3,328,279
3,576,783 (187,548) 271,347 3,016,938 6,677,520
18,532,102 6,324,416 (356,420) 13,500,096 38,000,194
$ 22,108,885 $ 6,136,868 $ (85073) § 16,517,034 $ 44,677,714

(1) Extracted from Tow n's audited Financial Statements.



REVENUES:

Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds

Taxliens
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
Hotel/motel tax
Meals tax
Penalties and interest on taxes
Fees and rentals
Payments in lieu of taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental - state aid
Intergovernmental - Teachers Retirement
Intergovernmental - other
Departmental and other
Community preservation taxes
Special assessments
Contributions and donations
Investment income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public works
Human services
Culture and recreation
Community preservation
Pension benefits
Pension benefits - Teachers Retirement
Employee benefits
State and county charges
Debt senvice:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of bonds
Issuance of refunding bonds
Premium from issuance of bonds
Premium from issuance of refunding bonds
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
Fund Balances - End of Year

(1) Extracted from Town's audited Financial Statements.

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 (1)

Town Nonmajor Total
Community Capital Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
$  68,145481 $ - $ - $ - $  68,145481
378,650 6,948 - - 385,598
3,511,969 - - - 3,511,969
135,953 - - - 135,953
257,378 - - - 257,378
416,433 5219 - 1,137 422,789
573,898 - - 27,675 601,573
49,109 - - - 49,109
1,544,104 - - 344,410 1,888,514
92,772 - - - 92,772
8,416,453 - - - 8,416,453
13,159,250 - - - 13,159,250
193,855 838,417 - 8,709,177 9,741,449
1,105,741 - - 3,661,344 4,767,085
- 1,676,751 - - 1,676,751
19,773 - - 85,821 105,594
- - 242,500 144,815 387,315
165,107 18,468 - 3,337 186,912
$§ 98,165,926 $§ 2545803 $ 242500 § 12,977,716 $§ 113,931,945
3,789,945 - - 1,509,687 5,299,632
10,505,080 - 179,735 1,359,924 12,044,739
40,597,688 - - 4,222,727 44,820,415
4,650,775 - 913,509 4,411,131 9,975,415
601,584 - 7,826,566 447,201 8,875,351
1,440,363 - 1,051,537 381,578 2,873,478
- 146,738 - - 146,738
4,891,451 - - - 4,891,451
13,159,250 - - - 13,159,250
7,079,630 - - - 7,079,630
648,239 - - - 648,239
4,399,092 - - - 4,399,092
2,904,933 25,667 - - 2,930,600
94,668,030 172,405 9,971,347 12,332,248 117,144,030
3,497,896 2,373,398 (9,728,847) 645,468 (3,212,085)
- - 1,718,833 1,084,222 2,803,055
1,214,100 - - -
- - 2,141,167 106,531 2,247,698
200,847 - - -
(1,400,000) - - -
591,688 - 748,433 446,070 1,786,191
(570,940) (690,433) - (622,800) (1,884,173)
35,695 (690,433) 4,608,433 1,014,023 4,952,771
3,533,591 1,682,965 (5,120,414) 1,659,491 1,740,686
14,998,511 4,641,451 4,763,994 11,840,605 36,244,561
$§ 18,532,102 $§ 6324416 §  (356420) $ 13,500,096 $§ 38,000,194
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REVENUES:

Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds

Taxliens
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
Hotel/motel tax
Meals tax
Penalties and interest on taxes
Fees and rentals
Payments in lieu of taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental - state aid
Intergovernmental - Teachers Retirement
Intergovernmental - other
Intergovernmental - COVID-19 relief
Departmental and other
Community preservation taxes
Special assessments
Contributions and donations
Investment income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public works
Human services
Culture and recreation
Community preservation
CovID-19
Pension benefits
Pension benefits - Teachers Retirement
Employee benefits
State and county charges
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of bonds
Premium from issuance of bonds
Capital lease financing
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
Fund Balances - End of Year

(1) Extracted from Town's audited Financial Statements.

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 (1)

Town Nonmajor Total
Community Capital Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
$ 65,246,226 $ - $ - $ - $ 65,246,226
265,883 4,837 - - 270,720
3,188,551 - - - 3,188,551
104,145 - - - 104,145
265,281 - - - 265,281
306,651 4,438 - - 311,089
539,478 - - - 539,478
17,437 - - - 17,437
1,157,659 - - 299,766 1,457,425
57,496 - - - 57,496
8,194,943 - - - 8,194,943
11,360,068 - - - 11,360,068
454,233 589,376 - 5,900,231 6,943,840
- - - 540,096 540,096
1,248,460 - - 3,823,053 5,071,513
- 1,576,496 - - 1,576,496
25,303 - - 7,842 33,145
- - - 684,841 684,841
425,007 111,132 - 23,578 559,717
$ 92,856,821 $ 2286279 $ - $ 11,279,407 $ 106,422,507
3,548,820 - 20,925 2,012,400 5,582,145
10,364,477 - 51,055 728,785 11,144,317
39,767,095 - - 4,861,489 44,628,584
4,514,498 - 527,797 1,910,463 6,952,758
689,773 - 3,598,633 567,649 4,856,055
1,417,046 - 3,328,463 785,327 5,530,836
- 8,271,373 - - 8,271,373
- - - 540,096 540,096
4,560,500 - - - 4,560,500
11,360,068 - - - 11,360,068
6,860,929 - - - 6,860,929
652,629 - - - 652,629
4,448,174 - - - 4448174
3,028,668 - - - 3,028,668
91,212,677 8,271,373 7,526,873 11,406,209 118,417,132
1,644,144 (5,985,094) (7,526,873) (126,802) (11,994,625)
- - 10,719,567 - 10,719,567
- - - 58,857 58,857
445,569 - - - 445,569
393,042 - 291,000 744970 1,429,012
(411,476) (100,000) (489,000) (608,615) (1,609,091)
427,135 (100,000) 10,521,567 195,212 11,043,914
2,071,279 (6,085,094) 2,994,694 68,410 (950,711)
12,927,232 10,726,545 1,769,300 11,602,880 37,025,957
$§ 14,998,511 $§ 4641451 $ 4763994 § 11,671,290 $§ 36,075,246
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REVENUES:

Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds

Tax liens
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
Meals tax
Penalties and interest on taxes
Fees and rentals
Payments in lieu of taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental - state aid
Intergovernmental - Teachers Retirement
Intergovernmental - other
Departmental and other
Community preservation taxes
Special assessments
Contributions and donations
Investment income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public w orks
Human services
Culture and recreation
Community preservation
Pension benefits
Pension benefits - Teachers Retirement
Employee benefits
State and county charges
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of bonds
Premium from issuance of bonds
Capital lease financing
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
Fund Balances - End of Year

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 (1)

Tow n Nonmajor Total
Community Capital Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Projects Funds Funds

$ 63,312,152 $ - $ - $ - $ 63,312,152
301,896 6,570 - - 308,466
3,420,299 - - - 3,420,299
264,699 - - - 264,699
331,905 4,094 - - 335,999
477,175 - - 2,360 479,535
18,914 - - - 18,914
785,478 - - 273,380 1,058,858
40,619 - - - 40,619
7,820,440 - - - 7,820,440
9,163,885 - - - 9,163,885
72,853 244,826 - 3,887,669 4,205,348
1,249,926 - - 4,658,937 5,908,863

- 1,543,895 - - 1,543,895

20,581 - - 575 21,156

- - - 1,182,551 1,182,551

565,524 210,188 - 35,275 810,987

$ 87,846,346 $ 2,009,573 $ - $ 10,040,747 $ 99,896,666
3,579,882 - 32,167 850,051 4,462,100
10,075,989 - 333,657 323,809 10,733,455
39,887,121 - - 5,068,569 44,955,690
4,814,497 - 189,866 2,122,886 7,127,249
1,453,842 - - 459,799 1,913,641
1,247,253 - - 606,970 1,854,223

- 1,078,901 - - 1,078,901
4,469,074 - - - 4,469,074
9,163,885 - - - 9,163,885
6,760,949 - - - 6,760,949
746,604 - - - 746,604
4,180,638 - - - 4,180,638
3,139,312 - - - 3,139,312
89,519,046 1,078,901 555,690 9,432,084 100,585,721
(1,672,700) 930,672 (555,690) 608,663 (689,055)
- - 6,133,000 - 6,133,000

- - 516,000 74,268 590,268

1,148,100 - - - 1,148,100
- - - 161,792 161,792

894,468 - - 123,142 1,017,610
(795,753) - - (1,020,646) (1,816,399)
1,246,815 - 6,649,000 (661,444) 7,234,371
(425,885) 930,672 6,093,310 (562,781) 6,545,316
13,353,117 9,795,873 (4,324,010) 11,655,661 30,480,641
$ 12,927,232 $ 10,726,545 $ 1,769,300 $ 11,602,880 $ 37,025,957

(1) Extracted from Tow n's audited Financial Statements.
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REVENUES:

Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds

Tax liens

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes

Meals tax

Penalties and interest

Fees and rentals

Payment in lieu of taxes

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Intergovernmental - Teachers Retirement

Intergovernmental - other

Departmental and other

Community preservation taxes

Contributions and donations

Investment income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public works
Human seniices
Culture and recreation
Community preservation
Pension benefits
Pension benefits - Teachers Retirement
Employee benefits
State and county charges
Debt senvice:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Issuance of bonds

Premium from issuance of bonds
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfer in

Transfer out

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
Fund Balances - End of Year

(1) Extracted from Town's audited Financial Statements.

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 (1)

Town Nonmajor Total
Community Capital Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Projects Funds Funds

$ 61,421,377 $ - $ - $ - $ 61,421,377
308,741 5,979 - - 314,720
3,190,904 - - - 3,190,904
261,318 - - - 261,318
431,904 4,449 - 584 436,937
350,894 - - 2,158 353,052
16,798 - - - 16,798
712,051 - - 270,229 982,280
44,011 - - - 44,011
9,203,248 - - - 9,203,248
8,027,707 375,664 - 7,356,143 15,759,514
1,270,710 - - 4,834,399 6,105,109
- 1,487,827 - - 1,487,827

- - - 458,024 458,024

387,529 117,884 - 20,617 526,030

$ 85,627,192 $ 1,991,803 $ - $ 12,942,154 $ 100,561,149
3,464,060 - 31,520 679,693 4,175,273
9,329,853 - 213,524 530,721 10,074,098
37,027,462 - - 11,279,299 48,306,761
6,201,707 - 841,129 5,387,053 12,429,889
535,719 - - 408,140 943,859
1,140,195 - - 659,850 1,800,045
- 1,085,695 - - 1,085,695
4,557,735 - - - 4,557,735
9,203,248 - - - 9,203,248
6,988,176 - - - 6,988,176
698,143 - - - 698,143
4,302,159 - - - 4,302,159
3,237,379 - - - 3,237,379
86,685,836 1,085,695 1,086,173 18,944,756 107,802,460
(1,058,644) 906,108 (1,086,173) (6,002,602) (7,241,311)
- - - 500,000 500,000

- - - 202,153 202,153

- - - 206,432 206,432

1,551,913 - - 319,953 1,871,866
(753,483) - - (879,988) (1,633,471)
798,430 - - 348,550 1,146,980
(260,214) 906,108 (1,086,173) (5,654,052) (6,094,331)
13,613,331 8,889,765 (3,237,837) 17,309,713 36,574,972
$ 13,353,117 $ 9,795,873 $ (4,324,010) $ 11,655,661 $ 30,480,641

43



Unassigned General Fund Balances and Free Cash

Under Massachusetts law an amount known as "free cash" is certified as of the beginning of each fiscal year by the state
Bureau of Accounts and this, together with certain subsequent tax receipts, is used as the basis for subsequent
appropriations from available funds, which are not required to be included in the annual tax levy. Subject to certain
adjustments, free cash is surplus revenue less uncollected and overdue property taxes from prior years.

The following table presents the history of the Town's unassigned general fund balances and free cash:

Unassigned Certified Free Cash
General Fund Balance for Fiscal Year
Year As of June 30 (1) Beginning July 1
2022 $12,263,349 $5,022,839
2021 12,082,365 5,044,671
2020 9,411,662 3,483,292
2019 7,694,737 2,501,361
2018 6,427,923 2,492,170
2017 8,486,498 3,252,678

(1) Source: Audited Financial Statements.

Stabilization Fund

The Town maintains a stabilization fund, which is accounted for in the Trust Funds. The Stabilization Fund plus interest
income may be appropriated by the Town Meeting for any municipal purpose. The following table sets forth the trend in the
Town’s Stabilization Fund for the following fiscal years:

Stabilization

Fund as of
Year June 30,
2023 $ 7,095,694 (est.)
2022 5,969,191
2021 5,339,325
2020 4,564,068
2019 4,290,899
2018 2,853,146 (1)

(1) Town appropriated $1 million at April 2018 Annual Town Meeting to fund emergency storm costs. At the November
2018 special town meeting, the Town restored $1 million to this fund.

The annual town meeting normally includes a warrant article to put any excess levy capacity into the stabilization fund.
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Capital Stabilization Fund

The Town established a capital stabilization fund at the November 2012 special town meeting. The following table sets
forth the trend in the Town’s Capital Stabilization Fund for the following fiscal years:

Capital
Stabilization
Year Fund
2023 $ 142,087 (est.)
2022 140,505
2021 491,195
2020 36,154
2019 221,586
2018 361,613

Economic Development Stabilization Fund

The Town established an economic development stabilization fund at the April 2013 town meeting. The following table sets
forth the trend in the Town’s Economic Development Stabilization Fund for the following fiscal years:

Economic
Development
Stabilization

Year Fund

2023 $ 34,940 (est.)
2022 34,437

2021 34,409

2020 34,311

2019 34,108

2018 33,888

Additional Funds

At the April 2015 special town meeting the Town created two additional stabilization funds. The Sewer Enterprise Capital
Stabilization Fund with an initial balance of $350,000 and a Water Enterprise Capital Stabilization Fund. Both funds were
used to support capital projects at the June 2020 annual town meeting. Projected as of June 30, 2023, the Water Enterprise
Fund has a projected balance of $153,535 and the Sewer Enterprise Fund has a projected balance of $255,384.

The Golf Course Capital Stabilization Fund was established in April 2017. The projected balance of this fund as of June
30, 2023 is $219,185.

The Town voted to establish a Waterways Enterprise Capital Stabilization Fund at the April 2019 Annual Town Meeting and
has not yet been funded.

The Town established a Transfer Station Capital Stabilization Fund in April 8, 2019 which was funded at the October 2021
special town meeting. The projected balance of this fund is $25,478 as of June 30, 2023.

The Town established a SPED Reserve Fund at the November 2020 Special Town Meeting which has not yet been funded.
The projected balance of this fund is $122,297 as of June 30, 2023.
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The following table sets forth the trend in the Town’s additional fund balances for the following fiscal years.

Sewer Water
Economic Enterprise Enterprise Transfer Waterways Widows Walk
Capital Development Capital Capital Station Capital Capital Capital
Balance as Stabilization Stabilization Stabilization Stabilization Stabilization Stabilization Stabilization Stabilization SPED Reserve
of June 30, Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund (1)
2022 $ 5,969,191 $ 140,505 $ 34,437 $ 251,100 $ 150,962 $ 25,053 $ - $ 215509 $ 100,047
2021 5,339,325 491,195 34,409 250,898 150,841 25,033 - 115,369 -
2020 4,564,068 36,154 34,311 566 641 25,011 - 15,194
2019 4,290,899 221,586 34,108 117,962 54,318 - - 15,104
2018 2,853,146 361,613 33,888 316,202 252,969 - - 15,006
2017 3,595,163 738,094 33,722 352,746 251,591 - -
2016 2,950,820 309,624 23,619 351,570 250,575
2015 2,374,384 924,071 13,540 350,446 -
2014 3,179,056 329,402 - -
2013 2,061,481 100,004

(1) The Town voted to appropriate an additional $20,000 to the SPED Reserve Fund at the September 2022 town
meeting.

Tax Increment Financing for Development Districts

Under recent legislation, cities and towns are authorized to establish development districts to encourage increased
residential, industrial and commercial activity. All or a portion of the taxes on growth in assessed value in such districts may
be pledged and used solely to finance economic development projects pursuant to the city or towns’ development program
for the district. This includes pledging such “tax increments” for the payment of bonds issued to finance such projects. As
a result of any such pledge, tax increments raised from new growth properties in development districts are not available for
other municipal purposes. Tax increments are taken into account in determining the total taxes assessed for the purpose
of calculating the maximum permitted tax levy under Proposition 274 (see “Tax Limitations under “PROPERTY TAXATION”
above). The Town is in the process of determining whether or not to develop such districts in the immediate future, and has
re-established its Economic Development Industrial Commission (EDIC).

Investment of Town Funds

Investments of funds of cities and towns, except for trust funds, are generally restricted by Massachusetts General Laws,
Chapter 44, Section 55. That statute permits investments of available revenue funds and bond and note proceeds in term
deposits and certificates of deposits of banks and trust companies, in obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by
the federal government or an agency thereof with a maturity of not more than one year, in repurchase agreements with a
maturity of not more than 90 days secured by federal or federal agency securities, or in participation units in the
Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust ("MMDT"), or in shares in SEC-registered money market funds with the highest
possible rating from at least one nationally recognized rating organization.

MMDT is an investment pool created by the Commonwealth. The State Treasurer is the sole trustee, and the funds are managed
under contract by an investment firm under the supervision of the State Treasurer’s office. According to the State Treasurer the
Trust’s investment policy is designed to maintain an average weighted maturity of 90 days or less and is limited to high-quality,
readily marketable fixed income instruments, including U.S. Government obligations and highly-rated corporate securities with
maturities of one year or less.

Trust funds, unless otherwise provided by the donor, may be invested in accordance with Section 54 of Chapter 44, which
permits a broader range of investments than Section 55, including any bonds or notes that are legal investments for savings
banks in the Commonwealth. The restrictions imposed by Sections 54 and 55 do not apply to city and town retirement
systems.
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INDEBTEDNESS

Authorization Of General Obligation Bonds and Notes

Serial bonds and notes are authorized by vote of two-thirds of all the members of the city council (subject to the mayor’s
veto where the mayor has a veto power) or a two-thirds vote of the town meeting. Provision is made in some cities and
towns for a referendum on the borrowing authorization if there is a timely filing of a petition bearing the requisite number of
signatures. Refunding bonds and notes are authorized by the city council, the selectmen or either the prudential committee
or the commissioners of a district if there is no prudential committee. Borrowings for some purposes require State
administrative approval .

When serial bonds or notes have been authorized, bond anticipation notes may be issued by the officers authorized to issue
the serial bonds or notes. Temporary loans in anticipation of revenue of the fiscal year in which the debt is incurred or in
anticipation of authorized federal and state aid generally may be incurred by the Treasurer with the approval of the
selectmen.

Debt Limits

General Debt Limit. The general debt limit of the Town consists of a normal debt limit and a double debt limit. The normal
debt limit is 5 percent of the valuation of taxable property as last equalized by the State Department of Revenue. The Town
can authorize debt up to this amount without State approval. It can authorize debt up to twice this amount (the double debt
limit) with the approval of the State Municipal Finance Oversight Board.

There are many categories of general obligation debt which are exempt from and do not count against the General Debt Limit
if such debt is authorized by a two-thirds vote of the city or town and such debt is payable within the periods so specified in
Mass. Gen. Laws. c. 44, §8. Among others, these exempt categories include revenue anticipation notes and grant anticipation
notes; emergency loans; loans exempted by special laws; certain school bonds, certain sewer bonds, solid waste disposal
facility bonds and economic development bonds supported by tax increment financing, bonds for water, housing, urban renewal
and economic development (subject to various debt limits), and electric, gas, community antenna television systems, and
telecommunications systems. Revenue bonds are not subject to these debt limits. The General Debt Limit applies at the time
the debt is authorized. The special debt limits generally apply at the time the debt is incurred.

Revenue Anticipation Notes. The amount borrowed in each fiscal year by the issue of revenue anticipation notes is limited
to the tax levy of the prior fiscal year, together with the net receipts in the prior fiscal year from the motor vehicle excise and
certain payments made by the Commonwealth in lieu of taxes. The fiscal year ends on June 30. Notes may mature in the
following fiscal year, and notes may be refunded into the following fiscal year to the extent of the uncollected, unabated
current tax levy and certain other items, including revenue deficits, overlay deficits, final judgments and lawful
unappropriated expenditures, which are to be added to the next tax levy, but excluding deficits arising from a failure to
collect taxes of earlier years. (See “Taxation to Meet Deficits” above.) In any event, the period from an original borrowing
to its final maturity cannot exceed one year.

Types Of Obligations

General Obligations. Massachusetts cities and towns are authorized to issue general obligation indebtedness of these
types:

Serial Bonds and Notes. These are generally required to be payable in annual principal amounts beginning no later than the
end of the next fiscal year commencing after the date of issue and ending within the terms permitted by law. A level debt service
schedule, or a schedule that provides for a more rapid amortization of principal than level debt service, is permitted. The principal
amounts of certain economic development bonds supported by tax increment financing may be payable in equal, diminishing
or increasing amounts beginning within 5 years after the date of issue. The maximum terms of serial bonds and notes vary from
one year to 40 years, depending on the purpose of the issue. The maximum terms permitted are set forth in the statutes. In
addition, for many projects, the maximum term may be determined in accordance with useful life guidelines promulgated by the
State Department of Revenue (“DOR”). Serial bonds and notes may be issued for the purposes set forth in the statutes. In
addition, serial bonds and notes may be issued for any other public work improvement or asset not specifically listed in the
Statutes that has a useful life of at least 5 years. Bonds or notes may be made callable and redeemed prior to their maturity,
and a redemption premium may be paid. Refunding bonds or notes may be issued subject to the maximum applicable term
measured from the date of the original bonds or notes and must produce present value savings over the debt service of the
refunded bonds. Generally, the first required annual payment of principal of the refunding bonds cannot be later than the end
of the fiscal year in which any of the bonds or notes being refunded thereby is payable, however, principal payments made
before the first principal payment of any of the bonds or notes being refunded thereby may be in any amount.

Serial bonds may be issued as “qualified bonds” with the approval of the state Municipal Finance Oversight Board composed of
the State Treasurer, the State Auditor, the Attorney General and the Director of Accounts, subject to such conditions and
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limitations (including restrictions on future indebtedness) as may be required by the Board. Qualified bonds may mature not
less than 10 nor more than 30 years from their dates and are not subject to the amortization requirements described above.
The State Treasurer is required to pay the debt service on qualified bonds and thereafter to withhold the amount of the debt
service paid by the State from state aid or other state payments; administrative costs and any loss of interest income to the
State are to be assessed upon the city or town.

Tax Credit Bonds or Notes. Subject to certain provisions and conditions, the officers authorized to issue bonds or notes may
designate any duly authorized issue of bonds or notes as “tax credit bonds” to the extent such bonds and notes are otherwise
permitted to be issued with federal tax credits or other similar subsidies for all or a portion of the borrowing costs. Tax credit
bonds may be made payable without regard to the annual installments required by any other law, and a sinking fund may be
established for the payment of such bonds. Any investment that is part of such a sinking fund may mature not later than the
date fixed for payment or redemption of the applicable bonds.

Bond Anticipation Notes. These generally must mature within two years of their original dates of issuance but may be
refunded from time to time for a period not to exceed ten years from their original dates of issuance, provided that for each
year that the notes are refunded beyond the second year they must be paid in part from revenue funds in an amount at
least equal to the minimum annual payment that would have been required if the bonds had been issued at the end of the
second year. The maximum term of bonds issued to refund bond anticipation notes is measured from the date of the
original issue of the notes.

Revenue Anticipation Notes. These are issued to meet current expenses in anticipation of taxes and other revenues. They
must mature within one year but, if payable in less than one year, may be refunded from time to time up to one year from
the original date of issue.

Grant Anticipation Notes. These are issued for temporary financing in anticipation of federal grants and state and county
reimbursements for any purpose for which the city or town may incur debt that may be payable over a term of five years or
longer. Generally, they must mature within two years but may be refunded from time to time as long as the municipality
remains entitled to the grant or reimbursement.

Revenue Bonds. Cities and towns may issue revenue bonds for solid waste disposal facilities and for projects financed
under the Commonwealth's Clean Water or Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs and for certain economic
development projects supported by tax increment financing. In addition to general obligation bonds and notes, cities and
towns which are members of the New England Power Pool may issue electric revenue bonds, and notes in anticipation of
such bonds, subject to the approval of the Department of Public Utilities.

Revenue Anticipation Note Borrowing

The Town has not borrowed for operating purposes during the last five fiscal years.
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Direct Debt Summary
Projected as of June 30, 2023 (1)

Long-Term Indebtedness
General Obligation Bonds:

Water (2) $ 25,667,800
School (3) 33,645,200
General (4) 34,952,807
Sewers & Drains (5) 6,917,300
MCWT (6) 11,256,390
Golf 1,200,000
Transfer Station 234,500
Waterways 727,900
CPA 1,575,000
Total $ 116,176,897
Short-Term Debt
Bond Anticipation Notes Outstanding $ 295,000
New Money Bond Anticipation Notes 5,655,000
Total Bond Anticipation Notes Outstanding after This Issue (7) $ 5,950,000
Total Direct Debt after This Issue: $ 122,126,897

(1) Excludes overlapping debt, lease and installment purchase obligations, unfunded pension liability, and other post-employment
benefits liability.

) $24,825,800 is outside the Town’s general debt limit, subject to a separate debt limit equal to 10% of the Town’s equalized valuation.
) $31,545,000 is outside the Town’s general debt limit and $33,071,800 is exempt from the limitations of Proposition 2 V4.
) $23,004,500 is exempt from the limitations of Proposition 2 4.

(5) $582,700 is outside the Town’s general debt limit.
)
)

$9,752,376 is outside the Town'’s general debt limit and $182,929 is exempt from the limitations of Proposition 2 V4.
Payable December 15, 2023.

Debt Ratios

As of June 30,

2022 2021

2020 2019 2018
Long Term Debt Outstanding (1) $110,311,630 $119,333,787 $95,576,510 $102,888,286 $102,742,241
Debt per Capita $5,697.91 $6,163.94 $4,936.80 $5,314.48 $5,306.93
Percent of Assessed Valuation (2) 1.93% 2.32% 1.96% 2.21% 2.31%
Percent of Equalized Valuation (3) 2.12% 2.30% 1.98% 2.13% 2.32%
Debt per Capita as a Percent of per
Capita Income 16.79% 18.16% 14.55% 15.66% 15.64%

(1) Excludes short-term debt, lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt, unfunded pension liability, and other post-
employment benefits liability.

(2) Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue - Assessed valuation as of the prior January 1.

(3) Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue - Equalized valuation in effect for that fiscal year (equalized valuations are
established for January 1 of each even-numbered year).

49



Principal Payments by Purpose

Outstanding Bonded Debt (1)
Principal Payment by Purpose
Projected as of June 30, 2023

Fiscal Sewers &
Year Water (2) School (3) General (4) Drains (5) MCWT (6) Golf Transfer Station Waterw ays CPA Total
2024 § 1715100 § 2619800 $ 2536061 $ 654,600 $ 1349511 § 150,000 § 39500 § 306200 § 200,000 § 9,570,773
2025 1,709,700 2,608,200 2,464,305 596,100 922,503 150,000 30,000 106,700 200,000 8,787,508
2026 1,656,300 2,067,700 2,373,224 461,600 934,949 150,000 25,000 70,000 200,000 7,938,773
2027 1,577,200 1,926,500 2,377,120 456,900 645,234 150,000 25,000 60,000 195,000 7,412,954
2028 1,553,100 1,929,900 2,371,094 447,600 652,100 150,000 25,000 60,000 195,000 7,383,794
2029 1,532,400 1,925,100 2,375,748 447,500 659,116 150,000 20,000 60,000 195,000 7,364,864
2030 1,524,900 1,928,400 2,299,884 406,700 666,283 150,000 20,000 55,000 195,000 7,246,167
2031 1,509,100 1,914,600 2,249,103 396,300 673,605 150,000 20,000 10,000 195,000 7,117,708
2032 1,340,000 1,870,000 1,998,406 340,000 681,088 - 15,000 - 6,244,494
2033 1,340,000 1,870,000 1,977,796 335,000 688,733 15,000 - 6,226,529
2034 1,325,000 1,855,000 1,817,274 305,000 339,750 - 5,642,024
2035 1,325,000 1,855,000 1,816,842 305,000 339,976 - 5,641,818
2036 1,305,000 1,855,000 1,821,502 305,000 340,208 - 5,626,710
2037 1,305,000 1,855,000 1,604,662 260,000 340,445 - 5,365,107
2038 1,305,000 1,855,000 1,449,785 260,000 340,687 - - 5,210,472
2039 1,305,000 1,855,000 1,405,000 260,000 340,934 - - 5,165,934
2040 1,285,000 1,855,000 1,335,000 230,000 341,186 - - 5,046,186
2041 725,000 - 550,000 230,000 341,444 - - 1,846,444
2042 165,000 - 65,000 110,000 329,319 - 669,319
2043 165,000 - 65,000 110,000 329,319 - 669,319
$ 25667800 § 33645200 § 34952807 § 6917300 $ 11256390 § 1200000 § 234500 § 727900 § 1575000 § 116,176,897

(1) Excludes overlapping debt, lease and installment purchase obligations, unfunded pension liability, and other post-employment

benefits liability.
) $24,825,800 is outside the Town’s general debt limit, subject to a separate debt limit equal to 10% of the Town'’s equalized valuation.
) $31,545,000 is outside the Town’s general debt limit and $33,071,800 is exempt from the limitations of Proposition 2 V5.
(4) $23,004,500 is exempt from the limitations of Proposition 2 5.
)
)

$582,700 is outside the Town’s general debt limit.
$9,752,376 is outside the Town’s general debt limit and $182,929 is exempt from the limitations of Proposition 2 %%.
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Debt Service Requirements (1)

Annual Debt Service
Projected as of June 30, 2023

Cumulative
Fiscal Outstanding (2) MCWT Net % Principal
Year Principal Interest Subsidy Debt Service Retired
2024 $ 9,570,773 $ 4,316,150 $ (25,112)  $ 13,861,811 8.2 %
2025 8,787,508 3,902,409 - 12,689,918 15.8
2026 7,938,773 3,524,602 - 11,463,375 22.6
2027 7,412,954 3,171,663 - 10,584,617 29.0
2028 7,383,794 2,849,606 - 10,233,401 354
2029 7,364,864 2,549,015 - 9,913,880 1.7
2030 7,246,167 2,253,646 - 9,499,813 47.9
2031 7,117,708 1,971,385 - 9,089,093 541
2032 6,244,494 1,716,918 - 7,961,412 59.4
2033 6,226,529 1,493,333 - 7,719,862 64.8
2034 5,642,024 1,285,323 - 6,927,348 69.7
2035 5,641,818 1,093,560 - 6,735,379 74.5
2036 5,626,710 901,782 - 6,528,492 79.4
2037 5,365,107 712,705 - 6,077,812 84.0
2038 5,210,472 532,706 - 5,743,178 88.5
2039 5,165,934 354,900 - 5,520,834 92.9
2040 5,046,186 177,744 - 5,223,930 97.3
2041 1,846,444 68,339 - 1,914,783 98.8
2042 669,319 34,848 - 704,167 99.4
2043 669,319 13,811 - 683,130 100.0

$ 116,176,897 $ 32,924,449 $ (25,112)  $ 149,076,235

(1) Excludes short-term debt, lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt, unfunded pension liability and other post-
employment benefits liability.

(2) Principal totaling $56,259,229 and interest totaling $18,171,788 is exempt from the provisions of Proposition 2 %%, subject to the
provisions of Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws.
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Authorized Unissued Debt and Prospective Financing

Currently, the Town has approximately $102,982,710 of authorized unissued long-term debt, as follows:

Purpose Amount
Sewer Phase IV Planning $ 400,000
Oceanside Drive Seawall Replacement 2,000,000
Harbor/River Dredging 65,000
Widow's Walk Golf Course Irrigation System 2,200,000
Well Upgrade 810,510
Foreshore Protection 3,500,000
Humarock Water Mains Engineering 395,000
Green Sand Filter & SCADA Engineering/Construction 1,413,613
Senior Center Construction and Veterans Memorial Gym Renovation (1) 32,450
Cedar Point Sewer Project 846,205
Oceanside Sewer Infiltration/Inflow 4,900,000
Dolan Field Well Construction 3,255,000
New Water Tank 2,720,000
Widow's Walk Golf Course Improvement 295,000
Sewer Facilities Plan 660,000
Water Mains 3,000,000
Foreshore Repairs - Seawall Turner Road/Oceanside 4,000,000
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA 3rd Cliff 2,500,000
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA 2nd Cliff 715,000
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA 1st Cliff 635,000
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA - Minot 717,500
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA Glades 724147
High School Roof Replacement 1,045,000
Inflow & Infiltration 4,043,285
Humarock Water Mains - Construction 6,300,000
Water Treatment Plant Design, Construction & SCADA Equipment (1) 50,000,000
Jenkins Roof 1,235,000
Additional Funds to replace CPM Docks 1,275,000
Water Mains (Phase 7) 3,300,000

$ 102,982,710

(1) The Town voted to exempt the debt service associated with this project from the limitations of Proposition 2 Y2, subject to the provisions of
Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws.

Overlapping Debt
The following are the principal entities whose indebtedness is chargeable to the Town or payable from taxation of property

within the Town:
Outstanding

Bonded Debt Scituate's Fiscal 2023 Dollar
as of 6/30/22 Estimated Share % Assessment (1)
Plymouth County (2) $550,000 5.74% $99,791
South Shore Regional Vocational-
Technical School District (3) $0 7.58% $552,944

(1) Dollar assessment is based upon total net operating expenses, inclusive of debt service where applicable.

(2) Source: Treasurer, Plymouth County. County expenses are assessed upon the cities and towns within the County in proportion to their
valuations of taxable property as last equalized by the State Commissioner of Revenue. Assessment shown is based on the most recent
equalized valuation.

(8) Source: Treasurer, South Shore Regional Vocational-Technical School District. The operating expenses and debt service of regional
school districts are apportioned among the member municipalities in accordance with the agreements establishing the districts, subject to
the provisions of the Education Reform Act of 1993. The Town approved the District’s authorization of $18,960,537 in April 2021. The
School District has not yet issued for this project.
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Contracts

Municipal contracts are generally limited to currently available appropriations. A city or town generally has authority to enter into
contracts for the exercise of any of its corporate powers for any period of time deemed to serve its best interests, but generally
only when funds are available for the first fiscal year; obligations for succeeding fiscal years generally are expressly subject to
availability and appropriation of funds. Municipalities have specific authority in relatively few cases to enter long-term contractual
obligations that are not subject to annual appropriation, including contracts for refuse disposal and sewage treatment and
disposal. Municipalities may also enter into long-term contracts in aid of housing and renewal projects. There may be implied
authority to make other long-term contracts required to carry out authorized municipal functions, such as contracts to purchase
water from private water companies.

Municipal contracts relating to solid waste disposal facilities may contain provisions requiring the delivery of minimum amounts
of waste and payments based thereon and requiring payments in certain circumstances without regard to the operational status
of the facilities.

Pursuant to the Home Rule Amendment to the Massachusetts Constitution, cities and towns may also be empowered to make
other contracts and leases.

Municipal electric departments have statutory power to enter into long-term contracts for joint ownership and operation of
generating and transmission facilities and for the purchase or sale of capacity, including contracts requiring payments without
regard to the operational status of the facilities.

The Town has entered in contract with International Golf Maintenance of Champions Gate, Florida, to maintain its golf
course, for the following sums: $524,896 January 1, 2019 — December 31, 2019, $538,018 January 1, 2019 — December
31, 2020, $551,469 January 1, 2021 — December 31, 2021 and $562,498 January 1, 2022 — December 31, 2022.
Performance reviews will take place each November 1 to determine satisfaction and subsequent release of annual
retainage.

The Town also contracts annually with SEMASS Partnership for solid waste disposal at $111.21 per ton. The cost of this
contract for FY2022 was $351,362. In FY2023, the Town budgeted $880,000 for this contract.

Additionally, the Town has a number of lease agreements for school buses totaling $244,301 in FY2020, $244,301 in
FY2021, $232,710 in FY2022 and $458,537 in FY2023.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Massachusetts General Laws provide for the establishment of contributory retirement systems for state employees, for
teachers and for county, city and town employees other than teachers. Teachers are assigned to a separate statewide teachers’
system and not to the city and town systems. For all employees other than teachers, this law is subject to acceptance in each
city and town. Substantially all employees of an accepting city or town are covered. If a town has a population of less than
10,000 when it accepts the statute, its non-teacher employees patrticipate through the county system and its share of the county
cost is proportionate to the aggregate annual rate of regular compensation of its covered employees. In addition to the
contributory systems, cities and towns provide non-contributory pensions to a limited number of employees, primarily persons
who entered service prior to July 1, 1937 and their dependents. The Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission
(“PERAC”) provides oversight and guidance for and regulates all state and local retirement systems.

The obligations of a city or town, whether direct or through a county system, are contractual legal obligations and are required
to be included in the annual tax levy. If a city or town, or the county system of which it is a member, has not established a
retirement system funding schedule as described below, the city or town is required to provide for the payment of the portion of
its current pension obligations which is not otherwise covered by employee contributions and investment income. “Excess
earnings,” or earnings on individual employees’ retirement accounts in excess of a predetermined rate, are required to be set
aside in a pension reserve fund for future, not current, pension liabilities. Cities and towns may voluntarily appropriate to their
system’s pension reserve fund in any given year up to five percent of the preceding year’s tax levy. The aggregate amount in
the fund may not exceed ten percent of the equalized valuation of the city or town.

If a city or town, or each member city and town of a county retirement system, has accepted the applicable law, it is required to
annually appropriate an amount sufficient to pay not only its current pension obligations, but also a portion of its future pension
liability. The portion of each such annual payment allocable to future pension obligations is required to be deposited in the
pension reserve fund. The amount of the annual city or town appropriation for each such system is prescribed by a retirement
system funding schedule which is periodically reviewed and approved by PERAC. A system (other than the state employees’
retirement system and the teachers’ retirement system) which conducts an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2009, or later,
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may establish a revised schedule which reduces the unfunded actuarial liability to zero by not later than June 30, 2040, subject
to certain conditions. If the schedule is so extended under such provisions and a later updated valuation allows for the
development of a revised schedule with reduced payments, the revised schedule shall be adjusted to provide that the
appropriation for each year shall not be less than that for such year under the prior schedule, thus providing for a shorter
schedule rather than reduced payments.

City, town and county systems may choose to participate in the Pension Reserves Investment Trust Fund (the “PRIT Fund”),
which receives additional state funds to offset future pension costs of participating state and local systems. If a local system
participates in the PRIT Fund, it must transfer ownership and control of all assets of its system to the Pension Reserves
Investment Management Board, which manages the investment and reinvestment of the PRIT Fund. Cities and towns with
systems participating in the PRIT Fund continue to be obligated to fund their pension obligations in the manner described above.
The additional state appropriations to offset future pension liabilities of state and local systems participating in the PRIT Fund
are required to total at least 1.3 percent of state payroll. Such additional state appropriations are deposited in the PRIT Fund
and shared by all participating systems in proportion to their interests in the assets of the PRIT Fund as of July 1 for each fiscal
year.

Cost-of-living increases for each local retirement system may be granted and funded only by the local system, and only if it has
established a funding schedule. Those statutory provisions are subject to acceptance by the local retirement board and approval
by the local legislative body, which acceptance may not be revoked.

Plymouth County Retirement System

The Town participates in the contributory retirement system of Plymouth County (the “Plymouth County”) that is partially
funded by employee contributions. More information can currently be found at www.pcr-ma.org including annual reports,
annual statements, actuarial valuation reports and actuarial valuation statements. The Town meets its share of costs
primarily on a pay-as-you-go basis by contributing annually the amount determined by the State Division of Insurance. This
contribution is a legal obligation of the Town and is required to be included in its annual tax levy. The Town also maintains
a noncontributory retirement plan for certain eligible veterans who were employed in public service before July 1, 1939.

As of January 1, 2022, the total unfunded pension benefit obligation of the Plymouth County System was $594,407,012,
assuming a 7.875% discount rate as follows:

Total pension benefit obligation $1,908,113,973
Actuarial value of assets 1,313,706,961
Unfunded pension benefit obligation 594,407,012
Town's estimated share $ 38,851,389

Effective July 1, 1991, the System elected to fully fund the accrued actuarial liability under Chapter 32, Section 22 of the
Massachusetts General Laws. Under provisions of this law, participating employers are assessed their share of the
retirement cost based on the entry age normal actuarial cost method.

The System assesses participating employers for their share of pension benefits (less certain interest credits) expected to
be paid during the year ("pay-as-you-go" method). This amount is determined in advance by the Public Employee
Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC) and is based in part on the previous year's benefit payout.

The Retirement System’s current funding schedule amortizes its unfunded pension liability through fiscal 2029 as shown
below.
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Plymouth County Regional Retirement Funding Schedule (As of January 1, 2022)

Appropriation Forecast

Fiscal Employer Amortization Employer Employer
Year Employee MNormal Cost Payments Total Cost Total Cost
Ending Contmbution  with Interest  with Interest with Interest % of Payroll
2023 $28.368,227 56,605,074 BRR.050.868  $94,655,942 29.9
2024 $29.673.467 56,597,255 $97,334.970 $103,932,225 3l6
2025 £31.036,706 £6.579.562  5106,642.410 $113,221.972 332
2026 $32.460.461 $6.551.264 5114104693  $120.655.957 34.1
2027 $33.947.351 £6,511,592  S122,089.336 $128.600.928 35.0
2028 $35.500,111 56,459,732  5130,632.904 $137.092,636 36.0
2029 $37.121,589 £6,394.824  §139,736.154 $146,130,978 37.0
2030 $38.814.756 56,315,965 50 56,315,965 1.5
2031 $40,582,709 56,222,199 50 56,222,199 1.5
2032 $42.428.674 56,112,519 50 56,112,519 1.4
2033 $44.356,018 55,985,862 50 55,985,862 1.3
2034 $46.368,247 55,841,111 50 55,541,111 1.2
2035 $48.469.018 55677085 50 55,677,085 1.2
2036 $50.662,141 55,492,544 50 55,492,544 1.1
2037 $52,951,589 55,286,179 50 55,286,179 1.0
2038 $55.341,501 55,056,612 50 55,056,612 0.9
2039 $57.836,194 54,802,394 50 54,802,394 0.8
2040 560,440,165 54,521,999 50 54,521,999 0.8
2041 $63.158,102 54,213,821 50 54,213,821 0.7
2042 565,994,890 53,876,170 50 53,876,170 0.6
2043 568,955,621 53,507.270 s0 £3.507.270 0.5
2044 572,045,601 53,105,252 50 53,105,252 0.5
2045 £74,747,311 53,221,699 50 53,221,699 0.5
2046 $77.550,335 53,342,513 50 53,342,513 0.5
2047 $80.458.473 53.467.857 50 53,467 857 0.5
2048 $83.475.666 53,597,902 50 £3.597.902 0.5
2049 §R6.606,003 53,732,823 50 53,732,823 0.5
2050 589,853,728 53,872,804 50 53,872,804 0.5
2051 $93,223,243 54,018,034 50 54,018,034 0.5
2052 $96.719.115 54,168,710 50 54,168,710 0.5
2053 5100,346,082 54,325,037 50 54,325,037 0.5
2054 $104,109,060 54.487.226 50 54,487,226 0.5

Source: Plymouth County Contributory Retirement System revised funding schedule, PERAC.

For additional information see Appendix A.
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Unfunded Funded
Liability Ratip %%+
£504,407.012 688
$551.704,957 T1.4
£496,007,.859 T4.8
$426,293,991 T8.8
£343,478.679 832
$245,997.382 28.2
$£132,125.052 938
50 100.0
0 100.0
50 100.0
0 100.0
50 100.0
0 100.0
50 100.0
0 1000
50 100.0
0 1000
50 100.0
0 1000
50 100.0
0 1000
50 100.0
0 1000
50 100.0
0 1000
50 100.0
50 100.0
0 100.0
50 100.0
0 100.0
50 100.0
0 100.0



The annual contributions of the Town to the Plymouth County System budgeted for fiscal year 2024 and for the last five
fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal

Year Contributory
2024 (budgeted) $6,841,463
2023 6,213,897
2022 5,759,996
2021 5,228,790
2020 4,875,453
2019 4,730,553

The foregoing data do not include the retirement system costs or liabilities of any larger entity of which the Town is
constituent part and for which it is assessed a share of expenses.

Other Post-Employment Benefits
In addition to pension benefits, cities and towns may provide retired employees with health care and life insurance benefits.

The portion of the cost of such benefits paid by cities or towns is generally provided on a pay-as-you-go basis. The pay-as-
you-go cost to the Town for such benefits in recent years has been as follows:

Fiscal Benefit

Year Costs

2022 $ 2,735,317
2021 2,766,737
2020 2,493,739
2019 2,678,011
2018 2,785,095

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) promulgated accounting standards that require public sector entities
to report the future costs of these non-pension, post-employment benefits in their financial statements. These accounting
standards do not require pre-funding the payment of these costs as the liability for such costs accrues, but the basis applied by
the standards for measurement of costs and liabilities for these benefits is conservative if they continue to be funded on a pay-
as-you-go basis and will result in larger yearly cost and liability accruals than if the cost of such benefits were pre-funded in a
trust fund in the same manner as traditional pension benefits. Cities and towns that choose to self-insure all or a portion of the
cost of the health care benefits they provide to employees and retirees may establish a trust fund for the purpose of paying
claims. In addition, cities and towns may establish a trust fund for the purpose of pre-funding other post-employment benefits
liability in the same manner as traditional pension benefits.

The Town was required to implement the GASB reporting requirements for other post-employment benefits beginning in fiscal
year 2009. As of June 30, 2021 the Town’s estimated unfunded actuarial accrued liability was approximately $112,989,389. As
of July 1, 2021, the Town’s actuarially determined contribution (‘ADC’) was approximately $7,833,681 assuming a 2.09%
discount rate. At the April 11, 2011 Annual Town Meeting the Town created an OPEB fund with an initial contribution of
$14,983. The Town’s financial policies prescribe that a minimum 2% of the required Plymouth County Retirement
Assessment be added to the OPEB Liability Trust Fund as part of the operating budget annually.

Below are balances for the OPEB Liability Trust Fund for the following fiscal years:

Fiscal Year Balance
2022 $ 1,907,393
2021 1,507,842
2020 1,161,484
2019 1,044,773
2018 924,837

The Town transferred an additional $100,000 into the fund in fiscal 2021 and again at the October 2021 special town
meeting in the amount of $278,341.
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COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

City and town employees (other than managerial and confidential employees) are entitled to join unions and to bargain
collectively on questions of wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.

The Town has approximately 762 full and part-time employees, including those in the School Department. Approximately
86 percent belong to unions or other collective bargaining groups as shown below:

Number of Contract
Employee by Category Represented by Employees Expires (1)
General Government
Police MASS COP AFL-CIO 37 6/30/2023
Firefighters International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) 44 6/30/2024
Clerical Workers SEIU 888 35 6/30/2024
Public Works Laborers District Council 40 6/30/2023
Administrators and Managers SEIU 888 25 6/30/2024
Communication Specialists SEIU 8 6/30/2024
Total General Government Professionals 189
School
Teachers Scituate Teachers Assoc./Mass. Teachers Assoc. 299 8/31/2025
Custodians AFSCME Local 1700 25 6/30/2025
Administrative Assistants SEIU/Local 888 16 6/30/2025
Bus Workers AFSCME Local 1700 23 8/31/2025
Paraprofessionals SEIU/Local 888 84 8/31/2025
Cafeteria Workers SEIU/Local 888 20 8/31/2022
Total School 467
Total 656

(1) In negotiations currently.

LITIGATION

In the opinion of Town Counsel, no litigation is pending which is likely to result either individually or in the aggregate, in a
final judgment against the Town which will materially affect its financial position.

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS
/s/ Ms. Pamela Avitabile, Town Treasurer

May 18, 2023
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Introductory Section

After three years, the replacement of the Humarock Fire Station was completed in December 2021 at a cost of
$1.67M. The new station is updated to meet accessibility and flood guidelines.
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TOWN OF SCITUATE
600 CHIEF JUSTICE CUSHING HIGHWAY
SCITUATE, MA 02066
Tel: (781) 545-8700, Fax: (781) 545-8704

Letter of Transmittal
December 22, 2022
To the Honorable Select Board and the Citizens of the Town of Scituate:

State law requires the Town of Scituate to publish at the close of each year a complete set of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
that are audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
(ACFR) of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts, for the year ending June 30, 2022, for your consideration.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the Town. Consequently,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in
this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Town has
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to both protect the Town’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. As management, we assert that this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects.

The ACFR is designed to be used by the elected and appointed officials of Scituate in addition to those entities
concerned with the Town’s management and development including citizens, credit rating agencies, bond
analysts, investors and financial institutions. The format of the report enables the Town to present complex
financial data in a manner that is easier for citizens and taxpayers of the Town of Scituate to review and
understand.

The Town of Scituate’s financial statements have been audited by Powers & Sullivan, LLC a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the Town of Scituate for the year ended June 30, 2022, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded,
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion on the Town of
Scituate’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022, and that they are fairly presented in conformity
with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the Town of Scituate was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of Federal grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of
the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of
Federal awards. These reports are available in the Town of Scituate’s separately issued Single Audit Report.
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GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Town of Scituate’s MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of Town

The Town of Scituate was incorporated in 1636 and occupies a land area of approximately 31.79 square miles.
The Town is bordered by the Atlantic Ocean on the east and north, Marshfield on the south, Norwell on the
southwest, Hingham on the west and Cohasset on the northwest. Scituate is a coastal town located in east
central Plymouth County approximately 23 miles southeast of Boston, 18 miles northeast of Brockton and 227
miles from New York City. State routes 3 and 3A are the principal highways and roads serving the Town. The
commuter rail has two stations in Scituate, giving residents ready access into the City of Boston and other
adjacent communities.

Local legislative decisions are made by an open town meeting consisting of all of the registered voters in the
Town. Subject to the legislative decisions made by the town meeting, the affairs of the Town are administered by
a five member Select Board who appoint a professional Town Administrator and Finance Director to manage day-
to-day and financial matters. The annual town census for 2022 lists the Town’s population as 19,011.

Local school affairs are administered by a school committee of five persons. Local taxes are assessed by a board
of three assessors; all elected for staggered three-year terms on an at large basis.

The Town of Scituate provides general governmental services for the area within its boundaries, including police
and fire protection, public education in grades kindergarten through twelve, water and sewer services, solid waste
disposal, library, streets, golf course, waterways and parks and recreation.

The Town’s commitment to open space, historical preservation and community housing is evidenced by its
acceptance of the Community Preservation Act in 2002 at the maximum 3% surcharge. These funds have been
authorized by town meeting for the purchase of hundreds of acres of open space preserving and protecting
aquifers, habitats, woodlands, marshland and meadows. The Town has also dedicated funds for recreational
purposes including tennis courts, athletic fields, playgrounds, basketball courts and walking/bike trails. Historic
preservation projects include preservation of historical logbooks and journals, preservation of historic sites and
the acquisition of historically significant property such as the Mordecai Lincoln property. Community housing
support with rehabilitation funds for existing units as well as support for the creation of new units including the 30-
unit Lawson Green Apartments.

Budgetary Controls

Under the Town Charter, the Town Administrator sets budget guidelines and prepares and recommends a budget
to the Select Board and Advisory Committee which is then reviewed, amended and voted. The nine member
Advisory Committee holds public hearings to review all departmental budgets and normally makes
recommendations on the budget to town meeting in April.

The level of budgetary control is established by town meeting and this approval defines the level at which
expenditures may not exceed appropriations. This level is typically at the individual department salary and
expense level. The Finance Director/Town Accountant is responsible for ensuring all payroll and invoices are
within the budgetary control level before authorizing payment. Additional appropriations may be approved at
subsequent Town Meetings. The Advisory Committee may approve during the year a transfer from a reserve fund
established at Town Meeting. These controls ensure compliance with the budget approved by Town Meeting.

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts 4 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report



The school budget is limited to the total amount appropriated by Town Meeting, but the School Committee retains
full power to allocate the appropriated funds.

Factors Affecting Economic Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town operates.

The Town reestablished its Economic Development Commission in 2012 to examine ways to foster commercial
development to strengthen the commercial tax base. This includes a multi-phase study by the Metropolitan Area
Planning Council to examine existing commercial areas, perform traffic and parking studies and provide
recommendations to encourage further commercial/industrial growth including tourism because of the Town’s
existing amenities. The Commission has worked on branding of the Town with the ‘Sea Scituate’ design and
continues to examine and recommend amendments to the zoning bylaws to encourage and support economic
growth. The Town continues to experience residential housing growth in various stages of development and
construction as well as mixed use projects. To assist in coordinating these endeavors the Town added a Director
of Planning & Community Development in 2017.

The Scituate Harbor Cultural District was designated by the Massachusetts Cultural Council in 2015. At the center
of the district is the Town’s harbor which includes a number of galleries, restaurants and specialty stores. There
are a number of cultural offerings in the area including the annual Heritage Days Festival, Luminaria, St. Patrick’s
Day Parade, Santa Stroll, Farmer’'s Market and Harbor Art Walk. This designation supports the Town’s economic
development by encouraging tourism and highlighting the numerous cultural, historical and recreational activities.

The Town was the first municipality in the Commonwealth to provide 100% of its energy needs through renewable
sources including a 1.5 megawatt wind turbine and a 3.0 megawatt solar array.

The Town continues to manage its financial affairs in a prudent manner. Standard & Poor’s confirmed the Town’s
bond rating to AA+ with a stable outlook which is reflective of management’s incorporation of long range planning
tools such as a five year rolling capital plan; building of reserve balances including multiple special purpose
stabilization funds for future capital needs; addressing long term liabilities, such as OPEB, within its financial
policies; investing in technology and security to ensure efficient operations; and maintaining an aggressive debt
management strategy for capital improvements and pursuing pay-as-you-go options whenever possible. The
Town is consistently successful at attaining federal, state and local grants for operational services, new initiatives
as well as capital improvements including the Massachusetts School Building Authority, Massachusetts Board of
Library Commissioners, Commonwealth’s Clean Water Trust, Executive of Energy & Environmental Affairs,
Commonwealth’s Seawall & Dam Repair Fund, Commonwealth’s Coastal Zone Management, Green
Communities, Massworks, Aid to Firefighters Assistance, Municipal Vulnerability, Federal Emergency
Management Agency Hazard Mitigation and Flood Mitigation, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Association and
the Army Corps of Engineers.

The Town has also enhanced its revenue flexibility by establishing five enterprise funds. This has allowed the
Town to shift 100% of the operating cost and capital improvements to the users of sewer, water, solid waste, golf
course and waterways services so that no tax support goes towards providing operational support for these
services. All related debt, except one sewer plant upgrade which matured in 2021, is funded through user fees
and a new water treatment plant that was approved in 2022. By doing so the Town is able to provide the
maximum tax dollars available to all other services.
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Major Initiatives

The Select Board adopted a Master Facilities Plan in November of 2011 and created a Public Facilities Master
Planning Committee in 2012 to assess the condition of the Town’s aging facilities, assess the suitability of the
buildings for current needs and provide recommendations for addressing the deficiencies. To date, the Town has
completed a $12M renovation to its public library which was partially offset by a $5M Massachusetts Board of
Library Commissioners grant and over $1.2M in private donations. An $18M public safety complex and emergency
operations center replaced a 1959 police station and fire station. A $75M middle school project replaced a 100
year old school and was partially financed with $20M in Massachusetts School Building Authority funding. All three
of those facilities opened in calendar year 2017. The old police station was demolished and is now green space
while the old fire station has been put to use as office space, storage and a bus repair area. In May 2019, the next
phase of that plan was approved by voters when a $12M new senior center including accessibility updates to the
adjacent Veterans Memorial Gym on the site of the old middle school was approved. This new facility opened in
spring 2021 serving congregate meals four days a week and offering enhanced programming. The Town was
accepted in the Massachusetts School Building Program for a feasibility study for the Hatherly Elementary School
in 2021.

In FY 2014, the Town approved a $22M water infrastructure project to replace approximately 21 miles of cast iron
pipe was completed in three phases involving nine construction contracts. The Town continues to invest heavily
into its water infrastructure including an aggressive pipe replacement and flushing program to improve water
quality. Three additional authorizations for water pipe replacement totaling $8M have been authorized and that
work started in early 2021 and is expected to be completed in fall of 2022 including replacing 2” galvanized pipes,
adding additional valves and hydrants to eliminate dead ends in the system and support the flushing program.
Design for replacement of the water mains in the Humarock area has been completed and $6.3M for replacement
has been authorized but the work has not yet been put out to bid due to pipe shortages. A $6M new green sand
filter facility was also completed in 2021 to assist in eliminating manganese to bring a dormant well back online.
Permitting is ongoing for the Dolan Well Field to provide additional water sources and the 2021 annual town
meeting authorized funding for a third water storage tank. The most anticipated project is the ongoing design of a
new water treatment plant to replace the outdated 1960s plant that does not meet the treatment needs of the town
or current standards for redundancy which was approved in April 2022 at an estimated cost of $50M. The Town
voted to use over $5M in available American Rescue Plan Act funds to offset the impact to taxpayers of the
project.

The Town continues to participate in a regional study with the Towns of Hull and Cohasset to expand the sewer
system to the residents and businesses of North Scituate. Access to Town sewer is key to the economic
sustainability and future development of that business district. The Town is also aggressively tackling its inflow and
infiltration problem to ease the burden on the system as well as create additional capacity for expansion. The
replacement of the gravity sewer line in the Cedar Point area was expected to be one of the most egregious
sources of inflow and infiltration. The 2021 annual town meeting approved $4.9M to continue this work in the
Oceanside area and an additional $4M in 2022 for additional work.

As a coastal community, the Town has dedicated significant resources to foreshore protection in supporting over
$31.5M in improvements since 2010. Funding for foreshore protection is included in the Town’s operational budget
as well as annually on its five-year rolling capital plan. The Town has been successful in obtaining matching grants
and low interest loans from the Massachusetts Seawall and Dam Repair Fund for seawall construction totaling
$10M in the last few years. The Town is currently working with the Massachusetts Emergency Management
Agency (MEMA), the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the Army Corps of Engineers to repair
damages to foreshore structures damaged in the last four presidentially declared disasters as well as other
significant storms. The repairs would be funded with public assistance funds, hazard mitigation grants,
construction grants and Town funds. The first of these “legacy” projects to restore the Egypt Beach berm was
completed in FY21 at a total cost of over $1.44M of which $1.08M was reimbursed by FEMA. The Town completed
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two more legacy projects in FY22 and is awaiting reimbursements in excess of $600,000 from FEMA. In April
2022, town meeting approved $5.6M to cover its 25% share of the remaining legacy projects. The Town
recognizes the complexity of foreshore protection and has successfully applied for several grants to study sea
level rise, explore coastal resiliency options and priorities, elevate severe repetitive loss homes and utilities, obtain
design and permitting funding for beach nourishment projects and study managed retreat. The Town has a
dedicated full-time employee for the last seven years focused on coastal resources that works with residents,
government agencies and other Town departments on how to manage the Town’s unique geographic challenges.
The bulk of these endeavors are funded through local, state and federal grant programs.

The Town dedicates operational budget and capital funds to roadway improvements. This includes creating trails
with Community Preservation funding with matching funds from the state, coordinating sewer and water projects
so as not to waste resources on paving the same area repeatedly and utilizing Massachusetts Department of
Transportation Chapter 90 funds for major repairs, sidewalks and drainage improvements to roads throughout
Town. In the last seven years, the Town has invested $8.37M in improving its roads, sidewalks and drainage. The
Town’s Fire and Police Departments are also consistently successful in obtaining state and federal grants for
equipment such as stretchers, safety equipment, dewatering pumps, fire trucks, traffic safety and emergency
medical supplies, training as well as construction funds for improvements to existing facilities.

Reserves

Management has adopted financial policies to address key areas of concern including funding the following
reserves: Operational Budget Reserve Fund, Stabilization Fund, Capital Stabilization Fund, Economic
Development Stabilization Fund, Water Enterprise Capital Stabilization Fund, Sewer Enterprise Capital
Stabilization Fund, Widow’s Walk Golf Course Capital Stabilization Fund, Waterways Enterprise Capital
Stabilization Fund, Transfer Station Capital Stabilization Fund, Special Education Reserve Fund, Workers
Compensation Reserve and Other Postemployment Liability Trust Fund.

The Other Postemployment Liability Trust was established in 2011 and is funded at 2% of the annual pension
assessment pursuant to the Town’s financial policies. The Town created a Capital Stabilization Fund in 2012 to
complement the Town’s five-year capital plan to address future capital needs and associated debt burden. This
fund is a valuable tool for setting aside funds over several years to address costly projects identified on the five-
year rolling capital plan. In 2013, the Town approved an Economic Development Stabilization Fund to support
initiatives to develop and foster commercial growth. The Town has created capital stabilization funds for all of its
five enterprise funds over the last few years as a planning tool for future capital projects related to that
infrastructure. In FY21, town meeting approved the establishment of a Special Education Reserve Fund and
$100,000 was allocated to that fund in FY22. Annually, the Town approves the transfer of excess levy capacity to
the Stabilization Fund and allocates additional funds to its reserves as available. In the last seven years, $3.17M
has been added to the fund by this method. The Town maintains an annual reserve fund in its general fund
operational budget and over the last several years has been adding emergency reserves into the enterprise fund
operating budgets.

Internal Controls

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to
ensure the assets of the Town are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting
data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. The Town Administrator and the Finance Director/Town Accountant are responsible for
evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control structure and implementing improvements.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town of Scituate’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the
financial statements will be free of material misstatement.
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Financial Management

The Town adopted comprehensive financial policies in 2012 to address and document prudent strategies for the
Town of Scituate to ensure stability during periods of economic downturn and that allocations to reserves are
made to secure against future obligations. These policies provide an adequate level of services for the welfare of
the citizens of the community in conjunction with its mission and statutory responsibilities. They afford balance
and equity in providing services and have the flexibility to tolerate external economic and environmental events
and other factors and variables over which the Town does not have control. The Select Board and financial team
of the Town have been reviewing the financial policies to further improve financial management and support
transparency.
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Financial Section

Water Main Replacement

Phases 4A and 4B of the ongoing water main replacement work continued the aggressive upgrades to the water
infrastructure at a cost of $4.8M.



Financial Section
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. 100 Quannapowitt Parkway, Suite 101

Wakefield, Massachusetts 01880

Powers & Su“I‘Ian’ LLC T.781.914.1700 | F. 781.914.1701
CPAs AND ADVISORS info@pas.cpa | www.pas.cpa

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Select Board
Town of Scituate, Massachusetts

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts’ ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 6 to the financial statements, in the year ending June 30, 2022, the Town adopted new
accounting guidance, Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinions
are not modified with respect to this matter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts’ internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts’ ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
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appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements. The accompanying combining statements, as
listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. The
other information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 2022,
on our consideration of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town of Scituate, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of
Scituate, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 22, 2022
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Scituate, we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Town complies with financial
reporting requirements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Management’s
discussion and analysis is part of these requirements.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Scituate’s basic financial
statements. These basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, human services, culture and
recreation, community preservation, and interest. The business-type activities include the water, sewer, transfer
station, Widow’s Walk golf course and waterways activities.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance
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sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town of Scituate adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for the general fund as required supplementary information to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer, transfer station,
Widow’s Walk golf course and waterways activities.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds. The Town uses fiduciary funds to account for the other postemployment
benefits trust fund and private purpose trust fund.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government'’s financial position. The Town of Scituate’s
assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $89.1 million
at the close of 2022, which was an increase in the overall financial position of $16.2 million from the prior year.

Net position of $171.7 million reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure,
machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The
Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the investment in its capital assets is reported net of its related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of net position, $10.4 million, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position has a year-end deficit balance of $92.7
million.

The governmental activity and business-type activity components are presented below.

Governmental Activities

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
Governmental assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$30.1 million at the close of 2022.

Governmental net position of $124.0 million reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
machinery and equipment, vehicles, right-to-use vehicles and infrastructure), less any related debt used to

acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in its capital assets is
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reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the net position, $10.4 million represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is a deficit of $104.3 million. The
deficit is the result of the Town recording its net pension liability of $28.4 million along with the net other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability of $81.3 million. These are long term unfunded liabilities that will not
require significant short-term resources. Unrestricted net position increased by $6.5 million. This increase was
mainly due to the change in the net pension and net OPEB liabilities and the related deferred inflows/outflows of
resources.

Condensed financial data for 2022 and 2021 is presented below.

Governmental Activities

2022 2021
Assets:
Current @sSSetS........cviviiiiiiiii e 54,670,695 $ 50,064,012
Noncurrent assets (excluding capital)................. 1,468,212 -
Capital assets, nondepreciable.......................... 25,962,629 22,039,167
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.... 175,545,143 179,258,373
Total assets......ccoooviiiiiiiiiiii e, 257,646,679 251,361,552
Deferred outflows of resources..........c.ccccvvuvnnens 20,578,676 26,753,773
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt)....................... 7,145,633 7,714,515
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt).................. 110,209,934 146,093,343
Currentdebt.........c.ooi 6,477,940 9,164,798
Noncurrent debt..............cooiiiiiii 74,538,159 78,563,757
Total liabilities........c.cocvveiiiiiiiiiiciiceeenes 198,371,666 241,536,413
Deferred inflows of resources...........cccceevvnininene. 49,751,938 19,680,853
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets........................ 124,042,046 118,651,814
Restricted. ..o 10,375,880 9,059,958
Unrestricted. ... (104,316,175) (110,813,713)
Total net position...........ccceevviiiininiinnnnnnn. 30,101,751 $ 16,898,059

Noncurrent liabilities decreased $35.9 million mainly due to the net pension and net OPEB liabilities.

The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are primarily related to pension, OPEB, and
leases.
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2022 2021
Program Revenues:
Charges for SeriCes.........ovviviiiiiiiiiiiieie e 8,515,342 7,451,170
Operating grants and contributions........................... 21,426,516 28,390,377
Capital grants and contributions......................ooeee. 1,320,981 1,405,279
General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds payable.....................c.oeeieni. 71,921,732 67,926,608
Tax and other iens..........cooiiiiiiii e, 328,489 536,214
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes........................ 3,533,487 3,524,209
Hotel/motel taX. ..o 180,519 135,953
Meals taX.......c.oeinii 355,022 257,378
Community preservation tax..............ccoeoveeeiiininnnnn.n. 1,797,981 1,669,008
Penalties and interest ontaxes.............cccooevviiinnnn. 448,913 422,789
Payments in lieu of taxes............cocovviviiiiinininnnnn, 28,563 49,109
Grants and contributions not restricted to
SPECIfiC Programs........cccovuviiieiiiiieeeieieeeenes 2,470,602 2,517,585
Unrestricted investment income..............cocooevvinnnnn. 151,877 186,912
Gain on sale of capital assets...............cccceeviiinnnn. 1,039,580 -
Miscellaneous. ..........cvieiiii i 185,475 34,080
Total revenues........c.vvieviiiiiiie i rerrrieraees 113,705,079 114,506,671
Expenses:
General government...........coevviiiiiiineiinie e 6,564,163 6,225,534
Public safety.........cooooeiiiiii 15,561,327 14,949,553
Education..........coiiiiii 62,353,757 73,638,269
Public WOrKS.......ooiiiii 8,578,931 9,071,595
HUMAaN SEIVICES .. ... 1,767,701 1,592,184
Culture and recreation...........c.ooeviiiiiiiiiiiieeeenn, 2,781,089 2,607,980
Community preservation.............ccocoveeiiiiiiiiineinenn. 532,980 508,564
Interest......cooinii 2,325,451 2,115,059
Total eXpPenses......cccceoveiiiiiiiiiiiirir e, 100,465,399 110,708,738
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers.......................... 13,239,680 3,797,933
Transfers... ..o (35,988) (97,982)
Change in net position...........ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeens 13,203,692 3,699,951
Net position, beginning of year...........c.ccoceveieienenne. 16,898,059 13,198,108
Net position, end of year...........cccccceeeeieeevennceeeeeeeenn, $ 30,101,751 $ 16,898,059

Operating grant revenue came in lower from the previous year due to decreased state financing for the
Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS), which decreased revenue and the corresponding expense
by $6.5 million over the prior year. The Town also received less additional grant funding from the state for ongoing
projects and to reimburse costs related to the COVID-19 pandemic. Property taxes are the most significant
revenue source for the Town’s governmental activities. They comprise 63% of all governmental revenues.

Expenses decreased $10.0 million from the prior year which was mainly related to the $1.5 million change in the
net pension and net OPEB liabilities and the related deferred inflows/outflows of resources and a $6.5 million
decrease in nonemployer contributions to the MTRS.
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Business-type Activities

Assets:
Current @sSetS........cccovviiiiiiii $
Noncurrent assets (excluding capital).................
Capital assets, nondepreciable..........................
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation....
Total assets........cocveviiiiiiiiciiii e,

Deferred outflows of resources...........ccoccvvivvnnnns

Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt).......................
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt)..................
Current debt.... ...
Noncurrent debt.............
Total liabilities........c.ccccviiiiiiiiiiiiins

Deferred inflows of resources...........cccvevivinnnnnns
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets........................

Unrestricted..........coiiiiiii i

Total net position.........c.cceeuveueeeiencenirenenns $

2022 2021
18,211,067 19,944,219
4,105,369 4,329,013
10,256,531 17,829,765
86,057,743 71,233,765
118,630,710 113,336,762
704,130 777,122
1,593,674 3,240,826
5,106,619 6,262,088
4,859,915 8,103,329
46,318,650 39,560,839
57,878,858 57,167,082
2,184,765 677,196
47,678,454 45,181,269
11,592,763 11,088,337
59,271,217 56,269,606

At the end of the current year, the Town reports $59.3 million in net position for its combined business-type

activities. Of this balance, $47.7 million reflects the Town’s investment in capital assets of the enterprise funds

less debt outstanding related to the construction of those assets.

Noncurrent liabilities decreased by $1.2 million mainly due to the net pension and net OPEB liabilities.
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Program

Revenues:

Charges for ServiCeS.........oovviviiiiiiiiiiiiei e,
Capital grants and contributions..............................

General
Other

Revenues:
EXCISE tAXES .. e

Unrestricted investment income...............coooveeininnne.
Total revenuUEeS......c.cccviiviiiiiii i e reas

Expenses:

Widow's Walk golf course...........cccoeeviiiiiinininennn,
Waterways. ..o
Total eXPeNSeS....ccuieieiiiiiiirirrr e

Excess b

efore transfers.........cocvvviiiiiiiiiiiirc e

B =1 4157 (=

Change in net position..............cooeeiiiiiiiiiiiinnean,

Net position, beginning of year.............c.cceoviivnennnen,

Net position, end of year..........ccevveveiviiiiiirinccennenn,

2022 2021
15,448,979 $ 14,149,103
246,797 3,575,144
41,875 43,691
36,312 50,993
15,773,963 17,818,931
5,183,382 4,069,886
3,751,452 2,912,067
1,399,147 1,344,058
1,283,272 1,450,465
1,191,087 703,181
12,808,340 10,479,657
2,965,623 7,339,274
35,988 97,982
3,001,611 7,437,256
56,269,606 48,832,350
59,271,217 $ 56,269,606

There was a net increase of $3.0 million in net position reported in connection with the Town’s business-type
activities (enterprise funds). The changes by fund are listed in the following table:

2022 2021 Change
Net Position:

Water.......cocovveiiiiiiiiienn. $ 18,501,439 $ 16,217,518 $ 2,283,921
SeWer. ... 31,403,124 31,433,317 (30,193)
Transfer Station................. 764,816 571,378 193,438
Widow's Walk golf course.... 1,821,878 1,463,260 358,618
Waterways.............cocuvee. 6,779,960 6,584,133 195,827

Total Net Position........ $ 59,271,217 $ 56,269,606 $ 3,001,611

All of the enterprise funds set their user rates to recover the expected cash basis expenses in the current year.
Therefore, changes in the long-term assets and liabilities compared to the cash received or paid will explain the
change in net position. One example is that the Town sets user rates to recover debt service principal expense
and not depreciation. Therefore, a consistent factor that explains why net position changed is the difference
between long-term debt principal payments compared to depreciation expense. If the principal payment exceeds

depreciation, then

net position will increase.

The water enterprise fund reported an increase in net position of $2.3 million compared to a $3.6 million increase
in fiscal year 2021. The increase is a result of user charges increasing offset with an increase in net pension and

OPEB expenses.
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The sewer enterprise fund reported a decrease in net position of $30,000 compared to a $2.0 million increase in
fiscal year 2021. The decrease was mainly from the increase in net pension and OPEB expenses.

The transfer station fund reported an increase of $193,000 in net position compared to a $358,000 increase in
fiscal year 2021. The decrease is mainly from the increase in net pension and OPEB expenses.

The Widow’s Walk golf course fund reported a $359,000 increase in net position compared to an increase of
$291,000 in fiscal year 2021. This was mainly from a decrease in net pension and OPEB expenses.

The waterways enterprise fund reported a $196,000 increase in net position compared to an increase of $1.2
million in fiscal year 2021. The decrease is primarily attributable to capital contributions decreasing by $624,000,
and an increase in net pension and OPEB expenses.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the current year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $44.7 million,
which is comprised of $22.1 million in the general fund, $6.1 million in the community preservation fund, a deficit
of $85,000 in Town capital projects, and $16.5 million in the nonmajor governmental funds. Cumulatively there
was an increase of $6.7 million in fund balances from the prior year, which is due to the activities of the Town’s
general fund, and the nonmajor governmental funds.

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was $12.3 million, restricted fund balance was $808,000, committed fund balance was $8.0 million,
and assigned fund balance was $993,000 while total fund balance was $22.1 million. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 13.2% of total general fund budgetary expenditures, while
total fund balance represents 23.8% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the general fund increased by $3.6 million. This increase was due to positive budgetary
results where actual revenues exceeded the budget and actual expenditures were less than budgeted, which was
offset by the use of free cash. Revenues for motor vehicle and other excise, licenses and permits and
departmental and other, all came in over budget. The Town conservatively budgets these revenues. The
Stabilization Funds and Workers’ Compensation Fund, which are reported as components of the general fund for
GAAP basis reporting totaled $6.2 million and $808,000, respectively.

The Town reports the Worker's Compensation Fund as restricted fund balance in the general fund.

The Community Preservation Fund had a fund balance at year-end of $6.1 million. These funds are attributable to
the Town’s acceptance of the Community Preservation Act, which allows the Town to impose a surcharge on
property taxes and to receive matching state funds for specified uses related to the acquisition, creation,
preservation and support of open space, historic resources, land for recreational use and community housing.
The Community Preservation fund decreased by $188,000 in 2022. The change in fund balance is entirely
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dependent on the timing of the planned use of accumulated revenues for the projects authorized. The Town spent
$2.7 million on various projects in 2022.

The Town Capital Projects Fund had a year-end fund deficit of $85,000. Included in this fund is the construction of
the Humarock Fire Station and the purchase of eight parcels of land totaling 15.3 acres of vacant land on the
westerly side of Chief Justice Cushing Highway, more particularly described as follows; 443, 445, 447, 449, 451,
453, 455, 457 and 461 Chief Justice Cushing Highway, which the Town spent $1.9 million in 2022. During 2022,
the fund balance increased by $271,000 which was due to the timing of expenditures and the permanent funding
of the projects.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original 2022 operating budget totaled $93.6 million and consisted of $87.7 million in appropriations and $5.9
million in budgeted articles and encumbrances carried over from prior years. The increase between the original
budget and the final amended budget was primarily due to supplemental appropriations of free cash (available
fund balance) totaling $4.6 million for capital articles. Actual revenues came in over budget by approximately $3.0
million, mainly due to an increase in licenses and permits and increase in departmental and other and
conservative excise budgeting. Actual expenditures came in under budget by approximately $10.3 million. Of this
balance, the Town reserved $9.0 million in articles and encumbrances for spending in subsequent years. The
remaining balance turned back related to personal services, contributory group insurance, and unemployment
insurance costs coming in under budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

In conjunction with the operating budget, the Town annually prepares a capital budget for the upcoming year and
a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that is used as a guide for future capital expenditures.

The Town’s major governmental capital asset activity in 2022 includes additions of $1.5 million for Humarock fire
station renovations, $591,000 for the senior center project and energy savings project, $1.9 million for machinery
and equipment and vehicles, $1.8 million for infrastructure, $3.7 million for land, and $440,000 for land
improvements.

The Town’s 2022 business-type capital asset activity includes $6.6 million in additions related to well projects,
$2.2 million related to Massworks infrastructure, $4.6 million related to Cedar Point Infrastructure, $2.5 million
related to Widow’s Walk clubhouse improvements, $659,000 of various machinery, equipment and vehicle
additions $73,000 in land improvements, and $1.4 million in other infrastructure.

Outstanding governmental long-term debt, as of June 30, 2022, totaled $80.5 million, of which approximately
$38.9 million relates to various school construction projects, $11.8 million relates to the public safety complex,
$3.7 million relates to the library, $4.2 million relates to energy saving projects, $3.1 million relates to seawall
repair projects, $8.4 million relates to the senior center, and $5.6 million relates to other various projects and
equipment.

The enterprise funds long-term debt totaled $50.4 million at year end; comprised of $26 million in water debt,
$13.0 million in sewer debt, $250,000 in transfer station debt, $1.7 million in golf course debt, and $1.2 million in
waterways debt. Approximately $44,000 of the sewer debt is scheduled to be subsidized by the Massachusetts
Clean Water Trust (MCWT). In 2022, the Town implemented GASB Statement #87, Leases. Therefore, the
Town’s several agreements to finance the acquisition of golf equipment previously reported as leases have been
reclassified as capital financing long-term debt in the current year totaling $124,000.
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Please refer to Notes 4, 6, 7, and 8 of the notes to the financial statements for further discussion of the major
capital and debt activity, respectively.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Scituate’s finances for all those with
an interest in the Town’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests

for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Town Hall, 600 Chief Justice
Cushing Way, Scituate, Massachusetts 02066.
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Basic Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents..............cooovveiiirieeiiieeeiieeeens $ 48,903,044 $ 13,516,941 § 62,419,985
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible:
Real estate and personal property taxes. 866,118 - 866,118
Tax liens 954,651 136,431 1,091,082
Community preservation fund surtax... 13,5658 - 13,558
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.. . 216,587 - 216,587
User charges . - 3,845,677 3,845,677
Departmental and other. 360,250 - 360,250
Intergovernmental 1,731,555 18,393 1,749,948
Community preservation state share 642,700 - 642,700
Special assessments. 245,859 594,110 839,969
Lease receivables 131,194 82,039 213,233
Tax foreclosures . 605,179 - 605,179
INVENEOTY. ...t - 17,476 17,476
Total current @ssets.............coeevveiiiieiiiiieeiie e 54,670,695 18,211,067 72,881,762
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Intergovernmental . - 25,113 25,113
Special assessments. - 3,533,028 3,533,028
Lease receivables 1,468,212 547,228 2,015,440
Capital assets, nondepreciable . 25,962,629 10,256,531 36,219,160
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation..................... 175,545,143 86,057,743 261,602,886
Total noncurrent assets..............cceevveeiiieeeiiieeiiieeeinnnns 202,975,984 100,419,643 303,395,627
TOTAL ASSETS ..o 257,646,679 118,630,710 376,277,389
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions................ccccvvvineeennn 3,820,546 399,568 4,220,114
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits..... 16,758,130 304,562 17,062,692
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.................. 20,578,676 704,130 21,282,806
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable. 1,872,825 873,710 2,746,535
Accrued payroll.... 530,050 38,907 568,957
Accrued interest. 899,414 401,716 1,301,130
Other liabilities.. 1,818,010 87,405 1,905,415
Unearned revenue 990,374 - 990,374
Landfill closure.. - 77,000 77,000
Compensated absences. 1,034,960 114,936 1,149,896
Notes payable. 526,841 770,000 1,296,841
Long-term debt. 5,951,099 4,089,915 10,041,014
Total current liabilities................cccovveeiiieiiiieieeenns 13,623,573 6,453,589 20,077,162
NONCURRENT:
Landfill closure. . - 620,000 620,000
Compensated absences. 534,223 53,609 587,832
Net pension liability. 28,371,729 2,967,232 31,338,961
Net other postemployment benefits liabil . 81,303,982 1,465,778 82,769,760
Long-term debt............cccooiiiiiiiii 74,538,159 46,318,650 120,856,809
Total noncurrent liabilities. ..................ccoocci 184,748,093 51,425,269 236,173,362
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......ooiiiiiiiiiisiiccc e 198,371,666 57,878,858 256,250,524
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes paid in @dVANCE........ccoerriiiiii e 548,193 - 548,193
Deferred inflows related to lease receivable 1,599,406 629,267 2,228,673
Deferred inflows related to pensions.. 7,989,050 835,527 8,824,577
Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits. 39,615,289 719,971 40,335,260
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES..............c....... 49,751,938 2,184,765 51,936,703
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital @ssets...............cooevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee, 124,042,046 47,678,454 171,720,500
Restricted for:
Permanent funds:
Expendable.............c.coooviiiiiiiii 311,440 - 311,440
Nonexpendable. 27,051 - 27,051
Gifts and grants... 3,862,426 - 3,862,426
Community preservation 6,174,963 - 6,174,963
Unrestricted (104,316,175) 11,592,763 (92,723,412)
TOTAL NET POSITION. .....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciicc e $ 30,101,751 $ 59,271,217 $ 89,372,968

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government..................coeeevnneenn. $ 6,564,163 $ 3,277,459 $ 936,439 $ - % (2,350,265)
Public safety........c.oooviiiiiiii, 15,561,327 2,262,647 489,988 - (12,808,692)
Education...........ccooiiiiiiiiii, 62,353,757 1,378,904 18,253,069 35,098 (42,686,686)
Public WOrKS........uviiiiiiiiiiii e, 8,578,931 720,790 1,252,748 558,500 (6,046,893)
Human services...........ccoceviiiiiiiiiiiininnn, 1,767,701 232,544 407,658 - (1,127,499)
Culture and recreation.................ccoeuvnennns 2,781,089 642,998 86,614 - (2,051,477)
Community preservation.......................... 532,980 - - 727,383 194,403
Interest.......cooovviviiii 2,325,451 - - - (2,325,451)
Total Governmental Activities................ 100,465,399 8,515,342 21,426,516 1,320,981 (69,202,560)
Business-Type Activities:
Water.....o.oiiiiii 5,183,382 7,443,362 - - 2,259,980
SEWET ...ttt 3,751,452 3,455,296 - 234,966 (61,190)
Transfer Station............ccoooevviiiiiinnennn. 1,399,147 1,586,157 - - 187,010
Widow's Walk golf course.................ccu.... 1,283,272 1,638,373 - - 355,101
Waterways. ........ocevuieiiiniiiieiiecee, 1,191,087 1,325,791 - 11,831 146,535
Total Business-Type Activities............... 12,808,340 15,448,979 - 246,797 2,887,436
Total Primary Government.................... $ 113,273,739 $ 23,964,321 $ 21426516 $ 1,567,778 $ (66,315,124)
See notes to basic financial statements. (Continued)
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Changes in net position:
Net (expense) revenue from previous page............. $ (69,202,560) $ 2,887,436 $ (66,315,124)
General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds payable............................. 71,921,732 - 71,921,732
Taxandotherliens........ccooevviiiiiiiiiiiiieennn 328,489 - 328,489
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................. 3,533,487 41,875 3,575,362
Hotel/motel taX.......cooovieiiiii e, 180,519 - 180,519
Meals tax.....ccooviiiii i 355,022 - 355,022
Community preservation tax................cooeeeennn. 1,797,981 - 1,797,981
Penalties and interest on taxes..............c.oooeeen 448,913 - 448,913
Payments in lieu of taxes............c.cocvviiiiiinn. 28,563 - 28,563
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs..........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiineene. 2,470,602 - 2,470,602
Unrestricted investment income........................ 151,877 36,312 188,189
Gain on sale of capital assets.......................... 1,039,580 - 1,039,580
Miscellaneous.........c.ov i 185,475 - 185,475
Transfers, net ... (35,988) 35,988 -
Total general revenues and transfers..................... 82,406,252 114,175 82,520,427
Change in net position..............cococviiiiiinnnnn, 13,203,692 3,001,611 16,205,303
Net position:
Beginning of year...........coooiiiii 16,898,059 56,269,606 73,167,665
Endofyear.....ccooiiiiiiii $ 30,101,751 $ 59,271,217 $ 89,372,968
See notes to basic financial statements. (Concluded)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2022

Nonmajor Total
Community Town Capital Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents........................................ $ 24282259 $ 5,547,519 $ 409,768 $ 18,663,498 $ 48,903,044
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes................... 866,118 - - - 866,118
TaX IENS..ceeiiiei e 930,114 24,537 - - 954,651
Community preservation fund surtax........................ - 13,558 - - 13,558
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes....................... 216,587 - - - 216,587
Departmental and other................coooiiiiiiiinin.e. 255,015 - - 105,235 360,250
Intergovernmental.............coooiiiiiiii - - - 1,731,555 1,731,555
Community preservation state share........................ - 642,700 - - 642,700
Special assessments..................... 105,123 - - 140,736 245,859
Lease receivables..... 1,599,406 - - - 1,599,406
Tax foreCloSUIES........covivieiiiri e 605,179 - - - 605,179
TOTAL ASSETS...oiiiiiiiiie e $ 28,859,801 $ 6,228,314 $ 409,768 $ 20,641,024 $ 56,138,907
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable.....................ccoooiiiiiiiiii, $ 1,325,827 $ 40,513 $ -3 506,485 $ 1,872,825
Accrued payroll...........coviiiiiii 480,326 - - 49,724 530,050
Other liabilities. ...........cveiveeiieeieeieeeeeeeee 79,865 - - 1,738,145 1,818,010
Unearned reVeNUE............oeuuiunieiiiiiieeeeeeeeas - - - 990,374 990,374
Notes payable. ..o - - 494,841 32,000 526,841
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot 1,886,018 40,513 494,841 3,316,728 5,738,100
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes paid in advancCe............cocoviviiiiiiin, 535,355 12,838 - - 548,193
Deferred inflows related to lease receivables............... 1,599,406 - - - 1,599,406
Unavailable revenue...............ccocevviiiiiiieenns 2,730,137 38,095 - 807,262 3,575,494
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES......... 4,864,898 50,933 - 807,262 5,723,093
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable.............cooiiiiiiii - - - 27,051 27,051
ReStricted........oovviiiiic 808,246 6,136,868 10,823 16,629,421 23,585,358
Committed. ......couniiiii e 8,044,347 - - - 8,044,347
ASSIGNEA. ... 992,943 - - - 992,943
UN@ssigned..........oovvniiiieiiieeiee e 12,263,349 - (95,896) (139,438) 12,028,015
TOTAL FUND BALANCES........oiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee 22,108,885 6,136,868 (85,073) 16,517,034 44,677,714
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES.................... $ 28,859,801 $ 6,228,314 $ 409,768 $ 20,641,024 $ 56,138,907

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Total governmental fund balancCes. ....... ... $ 44 677,714

Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.................co 201,507,772

Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are unavailable inthe funds..............ccooiiiiiii 3,575,494

The statement of net position includes certain deferred inflows of resources
and deferred outflows of resources that will be amortized over future periods.
In governmental funds, these amounts are not deferred.................cooiiiiin (27,025,663)

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due............................ (899,414)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds:

Long-term debt. ... (80,489,258)
Net pension liability.......... oo (28,371,729)
Net other postemployment benefits liability.................... (81,303,982)
Compensated @DSENCES. ... . cuiuitiii s (1,569,183)
Net effect of reporting long-term liabilities. ..o, (191,734,152)
Net position of governmental activities.......... ..o $ 30,101,751

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Nonmajor Total
Community Town Capital Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds.. . $ 71,960,076 $ -8 - $ -8 71,960,076
Tax liens................. 389,031 9,508 - - 398,539
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 3,571,560 - - - 3,571,560
Hotel/motel tax 180,519 - - - 180,519
Meals tax................ 355,022 - - - 355,022
Penalties and interest on taxes.. 444,179 4,724 - 10 448,913
Fees and rentals 543,677 - - 57,725 601,402
Payments in lieu of taxes.... 28,563 - - - 28,563
Licenses and permits 1,346,155 - - 326,710 1,672,865
Fines and forfeitures 50,654 - - - 50,654
Intergovernmental - state aid.. 8,520,355 - - - 8,520,355
Intergovernmental - Teachers Retirement. 6,631,157 - - - 6,631,157
Intergovernmental - other. 87,996 727,383 - 8,571,642 9,387,021
Departmental and other 1,634,557 - - 5,124,327 6,658,884
Community preservation taxes - 1,801,117 - - 1,801,117
Special assessments 18,493 - - 14,212 32,705
Contributions and donations... - - 13,181 614,847 628,028
Investmentincome................ccccoooi 129,606 17,898 - 4,373 151,877
TOTALREVENUES.......ccooiiiiiiii 95,791,600 2,560,630 13,181 14,713,846 113,079,257
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government... TR 4,075,080 - - 1,372,767 5,447,847
Public safety........ 10,908,931 - 598,027 1,694,108 13,201,066
Education... 41,137,337 - - 5,579,698 46,717,035
Public works.. 5,321,277 - 1,567,429 2,096,255 8,984,961
Human services... 684,351 - 375,855 430,368 1,490,574
Culture and recreation. . 1,236,577 - - 480,576 1,717,153
Community preservation - 2,413,415 - - 2,413,415
Pension benefits 5,422,657 - - - 5,422,657
Pension benefits - Teachers Retirement... 6,631,157 - - - 6,631,157
Employee benefits 7,211,515 - - - 7,211,515
State and county charges... 660,370 - - - 660,370
Debt service:
PriNCIPal. ... 5,143,452 202,000 - - 5,345,452
Interest. 3,270,751 132,763 - - 3,403,514
Principal on right to use leases.... 1,041,960 - - - 1,041,960
Interest on right to use leases............ccceviviiicicnicicne 41,340 - - - 41,340
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........ciiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeie 92,786,755 2,748,178 2,541,311 11,653,772 109,730,016
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES...........couviiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnns 3,004,845 (187,548) (2,528,130) 3,060,074 3,349,241
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of bonds - - 2,165,500 - 2,165,500
Premium from issuance of bonds.. - - 80,737 69,950 150,687
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets - - 553,240 494,840 1,048,080
Transfers in R 571,938 - - - 571,938
Transfers OUt...........couuiiiiiiiiiii e - - - (607,926) (607,926)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)....... 571,938 - 2,799,477 (43,136) 3,328,279
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..........couiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinens 3,576,783 (187,548) 271,347 3,016,938 6,677,520
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR....................... 18,532,102 6,324,416 (356,420) 13,500,096 38,000,194
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.......cccuniiiiiiiiiaeiii, $ 22,108,885 $ 6,136,868 $ (85,073) $ 16,517,034 $ 44,677,714

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds...............cooiiiiiiiiiii e $ 6,677,520

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

CaPItal OUEIAY.. .. e e 10,381,079
DEPrECIAtION EXPENSE. ... ettt (10,162,347)
Net effect of reporting capital @ssets.............coeiiiiiiiii 218,732

The Statement of Activities reports the gain on the sale of capital assets whereas
the governmental funds report the entire proceeds of the sale.................ccovviiiiiiiiiiiin . (8,500)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are unavailable in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable differ between the two statements. This amount
represents the net change in unavailable revenue...................cooooiiiii i (413,758)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect
on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are unavailable and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Principal payments on right to use [eases...............cooiiiiiiii 1,041,960
ISSUANCE Of DONAS. ... et e e (2,165,500)
Premium from issuance of bonds... . (150,687)
Net amortization of premium from issuance of bonds..............coviiiiiii 936,072
Long-term debt service principal payments. ............oouiiiiiiii 5,345,452
Net effect of reporting long-term debt.............ccoiiiiiiii 5,007,297
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.
Net change in compensated abSENCES aCCrUal............c.uvuiiiiiiii i (5,966)
Net change in accrued interest on long-term debt.............................. . 183,331
Net change in deferred outflow/(inflow) of resources related to pensions.... . (3,793,345)
Net change in net pension liability. ... 6,185,182
Net change in deferred outflow/(inflow) of resources related to other postemployment benefits..... (30,546,048)
Net change in net other postemployment benefits liability. ..o 29,699,247
Net effect of recording long-term liabilities...............c.ooiiiiiiiii e 1,722,401
Change in net position of governmental activities. .............c.iiiiiiii $ 13,203,692

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Transfer Widow's Walk
Water Sewer Station Golf Course Waterways Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents.. 7,624,934 $ 2,231,842 $ 1,073,108 $ 1,238,013 § 1,349,044 $ 13,516,941
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible:
Liens - user charges. . 60,993 75,438 - - - 136,431
User charges........ . 2,833,850 1,011,827 - - - 3,845,677
Intergovernmenta - 18,393 - - - 18,393
Special assessments - 594,110 - - - 594,110
Lease receivables. . - - - - 82,039 82,039
Inventory. - - - 17,476 - 17,476
Total current @ssets..............ccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiiii 10,519,777 3,931,610 1,073,108 1,255,489 1,431,083 18,211,067
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Intergovernmental - 25,113 - - - 25,113
Special assessments... - 3,533,028 - - - 3,533,028
Lease receivables - - - - 547,228 547,228
Capital assets, nondepreciable... 6,371,965 209,566 - - 3,675,000 10,256,531
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation................c........... 38,985,012 38,318,959 1,405,888 3,591,866 3,756,018 86,057,743
Total noncurrent @ssets...............cocvveieiiiiiiiccieee e 45,356,977 42,086,666 1,405,888 3,591,866 7,978,246 100,419,643
TOTAL ASSETS. .. .ottt 55,876,754 46,018,276 2,478,996 4,847,355 9,409,329 118,630,710
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 159,539 88,864 39,934 37,823 73,408 399,568
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits... 131,287 93,600 36,799 16,170 26,706 304,562
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.. 290,826 182,464 76,733 53,993 100,114 704,130
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable.............cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiii 532,616 147,915 179,784 9,611 3,784 873,710
Accrued payroll... 15,734 9,418 3,150 4,059 6,546 38,907
Accrued interest.. 264,268 107,003 - 16,500 13,945 401,716
Other liabilities.... - - - 87,405 - 87,405
Landfill closure.... - - 77,000 - - 77,000
Compensated absences 48,973 31,171 11,755 5,456 17,581 114,936
Notes payable - - - 770,000 - 770,000
Long-term debt..............oooiiiiiiiiii 1,880,478 1,552,353 15,000 264,309 377,775 4,089,915
Total current liabilities.................cccoiiiiiiiii e 2,742,069 1,847,860 286,689 1,157,340 419,631 6,453,589
NONCURRENT:
Landfill CloSUre............ooiiiiiiiiii s - - 620,000 - - 620,000
Compensated absences 23,108 13,412 5,064 - 12,025 53,609
Net pension liability 1,184,748 659,915 296,557 280,876 545,136 2,967,232
Net other postemployment benefits liability.. 628,312 454,936 177,605 79,396 125,529 1,465,778
Long-term debt 32,443,941 11,414,405 234,500 1,444,542 781,262 46,318,650
Total noncurrent liabilities. ..............c....coocoii 34,280,109 12,542,668 1,333,726 1,804,814 1,463,952 51,425,269
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...t 37,022,178 14,390,528 1,620,415 2,962,154 1,883,583 57,878,858
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to leases...................ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii, - - - - 629,267 629,267
Deferred inflows related to pensions. 333,607 185,822 83,506 79,090 153,502 835,527
Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits.. 310,356 221,266 86,992 38,226 63,131 719,971
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES.............ccccuieeiiis 643,963 407,088 170,498 117,316 845,900 2,184,765
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets... 13,367,385 25,605,273 1,156,388 1,113,015 6,436,393 47,678,454
Unrestricted 5,134,054 5,797,851 (391,572) 708,863 343,567 11,592,763
TOTAL NET POSITION. ..ottt $ 18,501,439 $ 31,403,124 § 764,816 $ 1,821,878 $ 6,779,960 $ 59,271,217

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Transfer Widow's Walk
Water Sewer Station Golf Course Waterways Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services 7411771 $ 3,245,655 $ 1,586,157 $ 1,638,373 $ 1,109,081 § 14,991,037
Other operating revenues.. - - - - 216,710 216,710
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES .........ccocoviiiiiiiiienn, 7,411,771 3,245,655 1,586,157 1,638,373 1,325,791 15,207,747
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services and administration. 2,181,266 1,419,523 1,037,073 876,792 365,443 5,880,097
Salaries and wages 1,056,586 569,619 272,642 216,637 441,116 2,556,600
Pension and other postemployment benefits expense.. (90,781) (22,846) (11,328) (29,241) (19,821) (174,017)
Depreciation 1,452,937 1,518,334 95,767 216,733 383,285 3,667,056
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.........cccvvviiiiiiieeeinnnnn. 4,600,008 3,484,630 1,394,154 1,280,921 1,170,023 11,929,736
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....cccoiiiieiiiiiiieaciieeeee, 2,811,763 (238,975) 192,003 357,452 155,768 3,278,011
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income 22,040 4,627 3,188 3,227 3,230 36,312
Interest expense... (583,374) (266,822) (4,993) (2,351) (21,064) (878,604)
Penalties and interest.. 31,591 209,641 - - - 241,232
Boat excise taxes.................ouiiiiiiiiiiii - - - - 41,875 41,875
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.......cccoiiviiiiiiiieeiiienn. (529,743) (52,554) (1,805) 876 24,041 (559,185)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS.......coveercricricirininens 2,282,020 (291,529) 190,198 358,328 179,809 2,718,826
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS.......viiiiiiiiiiiieeeiieee e - 234,966 - - 11,831 246,797
TRANSFERS:
TranSTers iN........oeiiiiiiieiiee e 1,901 26,370 3,240 290 4,187 35,988
CHANGE IN NET POSITION......cccoiiiiiiaiiiiieieiiiieeeene 2,283,921 (30,193) 193,438 358,618 195,827 3,001,611
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.......cccccccovriiineannnnnn. 16,217,518 31,433,317 571,378 1,463,260 6,584,133 56,269,606
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR.......ovviiiiiiiieieiiiee e $ 18,501,439 $ 31,403,124 $ 764,816 $ 1,821,878 $ 6,779,960 $ 59,271,217

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and user:
Payments to vendors.
Payments to employees

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES...........oouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers in.............

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes
Premium from the issuance of bonds
Capital contributions
Acquisition and construction of capital assets.
Principal payments on long-term debt and notes.
Interest expense

NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES..........

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment INCoOMe........... ...

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS..

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR..............................

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating iNCOME (IOSS)......cccvvuiieeiiiie e
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Deferred (outflows)/inflows related to pensions
Deferred (outflows)/inflows related to other postemployment benefit:
Receipts from users penalties and interest.
Boat excise taxes
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Liens - user charges
User charges.
Inventory....
Warrants payable.
Accrued payroll.
Other liabilities..
Landfill closure
Compensated absences
Net pension liability.
Net other postemployment benefits........................

Total adjustments...............ooooiiii
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.......ccccooiviiiiiiiiiciicec

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital purchase financing
Intergovernmental subsidy of debt servic
Acquisition of capital assets on account..

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Transfer Widow's Walk
Water Sewer Station Golf Course Waterways Total
6,958,025 $ 3,272,721 1,586,157 $ 1,638,373 $ 1,367,666 $ 14,822,942
(1,993,226) (1,813,091) (987,058) (1,125,518) (391,418) (6,310,311)
(1,093,237) (580,928) (282,213) (227,278) (457,148) (2,640,804)
3,871,562 878,702 316,886 285,577 519,100 5,871,827
1,901 26,370 3,240 290 4,187 35,988
14,881,079 4,589,810 338,670 770,000 - 20,579,559
113,000 - 9,670 - - 122,670
960,377 1,007,691 - - 11,831 1,979,899
(7,757,750) (1,517,974) (465,472) (2,033,919) (89,948) (11,865,063)
(10,117,997) (5,630,505) (193,070) (222,371) (358,600) (16,522,543)
(1,173,552) (386,293) (14,663) (100,876) (70,727) (1,746,111)
(3,094,843) (1,937,271) (324,865) (1,587,166) (507,444) (7,451,589)
22,040 4,627 3,188 3,227 3,230 36,312
800,660 (1,027,572) (1,551) (1,298,072) 19,073 (1,507,462)
6,824,274 3,259,414 1,074,659 2,536,085 1,329,971 15,024,403
7,624,934 $ 2,231,842 1,073,108 $ 1,238,013 § 1,349,044 $ 13,516,941
2,811,763 $ (238,975) 192,003 $ 357,452 $ 155,768 $ 3,278,011
1,452,937 1,518,334 95,767 216,733 383,285 3,667,056
158,319 88,516 39,626 37,718 72,999 397,178
238,699 170,598 66,085 31,096 47,638 554,116
31,591 209,641 - - - 241,232
- - - - 41,875 41,875
6,572 5,212 - - - 11,784
(491,909) (187,787) - - - (679,696)
- - - 3,601 - 3,601
188,040 (393,568) 97,015 (276,511) (25,975) (410,999)
(35,198) (18,056) (9,636) (10,925) (20,668) (94,483)
- - - 24,184 - 24,184
- - (47,000) - - (47,000)
(1,453) 6,747 65 284 4,636 10,279
(265,901) (117,719) (66,898) (46,008) (108,403) (604,929)
(221,898) (164,241) (50,141) (52,047) (32,055) (520,382)
1,059,799 1,117,677 124,883 (71,875) 363,332 2,593,816
3,871,562 $ 878,702 316,886 $ 285,577 $ 519,100 $ 5,871,827
-3 - -3 33237 § -3 33,237
- 53,839 - - - 53,839
- - - (33,237) - (33,237)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Other
Postemployment Private
Benefit Purpose
Trust Fund Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents................cocooiiiiiiiii e, $ 1,907,394 252,439
NET POSITION
Restricted for other postemployment benefits............................ 1,907,394 -
Held in trust for other purposes.............cocvviiiiiiiii i - 252,439
TOTAL NET POSITION. ...t $ 1,907,394 252,439

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Other
Postemployment Private
Benefit Purpose
Trust Fund Trust Fund
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer contributions..............coooiiiiiii $ 393,541 $ -
Employer contributions for other postemployment benefit payments... 2,735,317 -
Private donations. ..o - 1,016
Total contribUtioNS.......c.oieii 3,128,858 1,016
INVESIMENt INCOME. ... e 6,010 201
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ..., 3,134,868 1,217
DEDUCTIONS:
Other postemployment benefit payments................cooon, 2,735,317 -
Educational scholarships.............cccoooiiiiiiiii - 1,500
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. ... 2,735,317 1,500
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION...........c.......... 399,551 (283)
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.......ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeean 1,507,843 252,722
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR. ...t $ 1,907,394 $ 252,439

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (Town) have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant Town accounting policies are
described herein.

A. Reporting Entity

The Town of Scituate, Massachusetts is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Select Board.

For financial reporting purposes, the Town has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable
as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Town are such
that exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. As required by GAAP,
these basic financial statements present the Town (the primary government) and its component units. The Town
has not identified any component units requiring inclusion in these basic financial statements.

Joint Ventures — The Town is a member of the South Shore Vocational Technical High School District along with
the Towns of Abington, Cohasset, Hanover, Hanson, Norwell, Rockland and Whitman. The South Shore
Vocational Technical High School District serves the members’ students seeking an education in academic,
technical and agriculture studies. The members share in the operations of the South Shore Vocational Technical
High School District and each member is responsible for its proportionate share of the operational and capital cost
of the South Shore Vocational Technical High School District, which are paid in the form of assessments. The
Town does not have an equity interest in the South Shore Vocational Technical High School District and the 2022
assessment was $634,970. Separate financial statements may be obtained by writing to the Treasurer at 476
Webster Street, Hanover, Massachusetts 02339.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. Governmental activities, which are
primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges.

Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual

governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmaijor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2022

Major Fund Criteria
Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:

o If the total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
10 percent of the corresponding elements (assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, etc.) for all funds of that category or type (total governmental
or total enterprise funds), and

e |f the total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at
least 5 percent of the corresponding elements for all governmental and enterprise funds
combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particularly
significant to the basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific

function or segment. Program revenues include the following:

o Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

e Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular
function or segment.

e Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial

statements. Exceptions are charges between the general fund and the enterprise funds. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2022

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except
for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated
absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with
current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
year-end. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become measurable and
available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund.

The community preservation fund is used to account for funds received in accordance with the Massachusetts
Community Preservation Act (the CPA). Funds are received under the CPA through a surcharge of up to 3% of
the real property tax levy and matching state grants. These funds are spent for the acquisition, creation and
preservation of open space, historic resources and affordable housing.

The Town capital projects fund is used to account for the construction and renovation of Town projects.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The permanent fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are

recorded when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2022

proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary funds are reported:
The water enterprise fund is used to account for the activities of the public water system.
The sewer enterprise fund is used to account for the sewer activities.

The transfer station enterprise fund is used to account for user fees and costs associated with the Town’s pay-as-
you-throw facility for household refuse.

The Widow’s Walk golf course enterprise fund is used to account for the operations of the Town’s golf course
facility, which is maintained through the collection of user fees.

The waterways enterprise fund is used to account for user fees and costs associated with the protection, tracking,
oversight, and usage of waterways surrounding or within the Town'’s borders. Fees are primarily derived from
public marina slips and moorings maintained by the Town.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity by
the Town for others that cannot be used to support the governmental programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The other postemployment benefit trust fund is used to accumulate resources to provide funding for future other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities.

The private purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements that exclusively benefit individuals,
private organizations, or other governments. Some of these trusts have donor restrictions and trustee policies that
do not allow the endowment portion and any unrealized appreciation to be spent. The donor restrictions and
trustee policies only allow the trustees to authorize spending of the realized investment earnings. The Town’s
educational scholarship trusts are accounted for in this fund.

D. Cash and Investments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value. The fair values were determined by the closing price for those securities
traded on national stock exchanges and at an average bid-and-asked quotation for those securities traded in the

over-the-counter market.

E. Fair Value Measurements

The Town reports required types of financial instruments in accordance with the fair value standards. These
standards require an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs (such as quoted prices in active markets)
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (such as appraisals or valuation techniques) to determine fair value.
Fair value standards also require the government to classify these financial instruments into a three-level
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hierarchy, based on the priority of inputs to the valuation technique or in accordance with net asset value practical
expedient rules, which allow for either Level 2 or Level 3 depending on lock up and notice periods associated with
the underlying funds.

Instruments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical instruments as of the reporting date.
Instruments, which are generally included in this category, include actively traded equity and debt securities, U.S.
government obligations, and mutual funds with quoted market prices in active markets.

Level 2 — Pricing inputs are other than quoted in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable
as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.
Certain fixed income securities, primarily corporate bonds, are classified as Level 2 because fair values are
estimated using pricing models, matrix pricing, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs are unobservable for the instrument and include situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant management
judgment or estimation.

In some instances, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy
and is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Market price is affected by a number of factors, including the type of instrument and the characteristics specific to
the instrument. Instruments with readily available active quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of
market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. It is reasonably possible
that change in values of these instruments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially
affect amounts reported in these financial statements. For more information on the fair value of the Town’s
financial instruments, see Note 2 — Cash and Investments.

F. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of
accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1%t of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessors for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on August 15!, November 1%, February 15t and May 15t and are subject to penalties and interest if they are
not paid by the respective due date. Real estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables
in the year of the levy.

Real estate tax liens are processed during the year on delinquent properties and are recorded as receivables in
the year they are processed.
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Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% collectible. Accordingly, an
allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as
receivables in the year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by
$25 per $1,000 of value.

Boat excise taxes are assessed annually for each boat registered and are recorded as receivables in the year of
the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of boats registered and the fair value of
those boats. The tax calculation is the fair value of the boat multiplied by $10 per $1,000 of value.

The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.
User Charges

User charges are levied quarterly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if
they are not paid by the respective due date. Water and Sewer liens are processed every year and included as a
lien on the property owner’s tax bill. Water and Sewer charges and liens are recorded as receivables in the year
of the levy.

Since the receivables are secured via the lien process, these accounts are considered 100% collectible and
therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables are recorded as receivables in the year accrued. The allowance for
uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Special Assessments

The costs incurred on completed special projects that have been assessed to the benefited taxpayers which have
not been paid.

Since these receivables are secured via the lien process, they are considered 100% collectible and therefore do
not report an allowance for uncollectibles.

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred, and all other grant requirements are met.

These receivables are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
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Right to Use Lease Receivable

The Town is the lessor for leases of various Town assets. The receivable is recorded at the present value of
noncancellable future lease payments and is offset by a corresponding deferred inflow of resources. Revenue is
recognized when earned.

G. Inventories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories of the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are
not material in total to the government-wide and fund financial statements, and therefore are not reported.

Inventories held for resale of the Widow’s Walk golf course enterprise fund are carried at lower of cost or market
(first-in first-out).

H. Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles, right-to-use
vehicles and infrastructure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity column of the government-wide financial statements, and the
proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical cost,
if actual historical cost is not available. Intangible right to use leased assets are recorded at the net present value
of non-cancellable lease payments at inception. Donated capital assets; donated works of art, historical treasures
and similar assets; and capital assets received in service concession arrangements are recorded at acquisition
value.

All purchases in excess of $5,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition with expected useful life of greater
than two years. Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line
basis. The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated

Useful Life
Capital Asset Type (in years)
Land improvements............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 20-50
Building and improvements..............c.cocoiiiint. 20-50
Vehicles, machinery and equipment...................... 3-10
Infrastructure. ... 20-50

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the year of the purchase.
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|. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represent a
consumption of net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that time. The Town has reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
and deferred outflow of resources related to other postemployment benefits in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represent an
acquisition of net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The Town has reported taxes paid in advance, deferred inflows related to leases,
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and deferred inflows of resources related to other
postemployment benefits in this category.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

In addition to liabilities, the governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents assets that have not been recorded in the governmental fund financial statements, but the revenue is
not available and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until it becomes available. The
Town has recorded taxes paid in advance, deferred inflows related to leases, and unavailable revenue as
deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds balance sheet.

J. Unavailable Revenue

Fund Financial Statements

Unavailable revenue at the governmental fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not
meet the available criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Unavailable revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the
government-wide (full accrual) financial statements. Unavailable revenue consisted of taxes billed not yet
received and grant awards related to expenditure driven grants in which the grant requirements have not been
met.

K. Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds and internal service funds are
eliminated from the governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding

between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net position as
“internal balances”.
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Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

L. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as transfers in and transfers out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds and internal service funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

M. Net Position and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

Net position reported as “net investment in capital assets” included capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less the principal balance of outstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent proceeds of
capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets.

Net position is reported as restricted when amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net position has been “restricted for” the following:
“Permanent funds - expendable” represents the amount of realized and unrealized investment earnings of donor
restricted trusts. The donor restrictions and trustee policies only allow the trustees to approve spending of the

realized investment earnings that support governmental programs.

“Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents the endowment portion of donor restricted trusts that support
governmental programs.

“Gifts and grants” represents assets that have restrictions placed on them from outside parties.

“Community preservation” represents assets that are restricted for use in accordance with the Massachusetts
Community Preservation Act.

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant

proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and
unrestricted net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
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must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy to
consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned
based on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.

The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

“Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

“Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the Town’s highest level of decision-making authority. A Town Meeting vote on a
budget article (resolution) is the Town’s highest level of decision-making authority. Once voted, the limitation
imposed by the vote remains in place until the funds are used for their intended purpose or a Town Meeting vote
is taken to rescind the commitment.

“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the Town’s intent to be used for specific
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. The Finance Director/Town Accountant is authorized to assign
fund balance. Funds are assigned when the Town has an obligation to purchase goods or services from the
current years’ appropriation. Assignments generally only exist temporarily. Additional action does not have to be
taken for the removal of an assignment.

“Unassigned” fund balance includes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned
fund balance amount.

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from different components of fund balance. In order
to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources
are considered to be applied. When different components of fund balance can be used for the same purpose, it is
the Town’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted first, followed by committed fund
balance, and assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

N. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plymouth
County Retirement Association and the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System and additions to/deductions
from the System’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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O. Long-term Debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Long-term debt is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as
other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not

withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.

P. Intangible Right to Use Lease Liability

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Intangible right to use lease liabilities are reported at the present value of their future minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are reported as reductions of the lease liability and as interest expense during the lease term.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The present value of the future minimum lease payments are reported within the governmental funds as other
financing sources and a capital expenditure. Lease payments are reported as debt service expenditures.

Q. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, CPA fund and enterprise funds, investment income derived from major and
nonmajor governmental funds is legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts
General Law (MGL).

R. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon maturity of the liability.
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S. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

T. Individual Fund Deficits

At June 30, 2022, the Town’s other special revenue funds reported a deficit of $139,438, which is due to the
timing of police and fire detail costs and receipts. The Town’s capital projects fund reported a deficit of $85,073.
These deficits will be funded with available funds and bond proceeds in the subsequent year.

U. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents". The deposits and investments of the
trust funds are held separately from those of other funds.

Statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, instrumentalities, certificates of
deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment
Pool (Pool). The Treasurer may also invest trust funds in securities, other than mortgages or collateral loans,
which are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth.

The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the Massachusetts
Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth who serves
as Trustee. The MMDT Cash Portfolio is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as
an investment company but maintains a policy to operate in a manner as a qualifying external investment pool as
defined by GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External
Investment Pools.” The Cash Portfolio also adheres to GASB Statement No. 79, “Certain External Investment
Pools and Pool Participants,” which amends GASB Statement No. 31 and establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for state and local governments that participate in a qualifying external investment pool that
measures for financial reporting purposes all of its investments at amortized cost. The Cash Portfolio is managed
to seek to maintain a stable $1 unit price, although there is no guarantee that it will be able to do so. There are no
limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals, i.e. no redemption notice periods, maximum transaction
amounts, ability of pool to impose liquidity fees or redemption gates.
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Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town of Scituate’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year-end, the carrying
amount of deposits totaled $53,951,006 and the bank balance totaled $54,802,115. Of the bank balance,
$2,500,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $31,987,039 was covered by the Depositors Insurance
Fund, $14,856,052 was collateralized, and $5,459,024 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

The Town’s investments consisted solely of MMDT investments totaling $10,628,812. MMDT maintains a cash
portfolio with combined average maturities of approximately 27 days.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the Town will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in possession of an outside party. The Town’s
investment policy requires the Treasurer to review, on a quarterly basis, the Call Reports and/or the Uniform Bank
Performance Report of any institution conducting business with the Town that receives a “Yellow” classification or
less than three stars on the previous quarter’s Veribanc report. As of June 30, 2022, the Town’s investments in
MMDT cash portfolio which totaled $10,628,812 are not subject to custodial credit risk exposure because they are
not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form.

Interest Rate Risk

The Town’s investment policy limits investment maturities to seven years maintaining an average maturity no
greater than three years for the portfolio.

Credit Risk
The Town’s investment policy limits investing in corporate debt to a rating of “A” or better by either S&P or
Moody'’s rating services. During the year, the Town limited its deposits to certificates of deposits, money market

accounts, MMDT Cash Portfolio and bank deposits. At year end, the Town’s investment in MMDT is unrated.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town’s investment policy allows the Treasurer to invest an unlimited amount in MMDT, U.S. Treasury
Obligations, U.S. Agency Obligations or bank accounts and CD’s with final maturity no greater than one year from
date of purchase and they are fully collateralized or covered by Federal Depository Insurance Coverage (FDIC) or
Depositors Insurance Fund (DIF) insurance. The Treasurer may invest in uninsured or unsecured bank accounts
or CD’s with a maturity of no greater than one year from the date of purchase, however the uninsured portion at
any one institution cannot exceed 5% of the institution’s total deposits reflected on the bank’s last filed FDIC Call
Report and no more than 35% of the Town’s funds may be held in uninsured accounts. The Town did not have
any investments that were subject to concentration of credit risk.

Fair Value Measurement

The Town holds investments in the MMDT Cash Portfolio which are valued at amortized cost. The total value of
the portfolio as of June 30, 2022, is $10,628,812. Under the amortized cost valuation method, an investment is
valued initially at its cost and thereafter adjusted for the amount of interest income accrued each day over the
term of the investment to account for any difference between the initial cost of the investment and the amount
payable at its maturity. If amortized cost is determined not to approximate fair value, the value of the portfolio
securities will be determined under procedures established by MMDT’s adviser, Federated Hermes, Inc.
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NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2022, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor governmental funds in
the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:

Real estate and personal property taxes....... 927,005 $ (60,887) $ 866,118

Tax HeNS....ooveiiei e 954,651 - 954,651

Community preservation fund surtax............ 13,558 - 13,558

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes........... 248,811 (32,224) 216,587

Departmental and other............................. 810,835 (450,585) 360,250

Intergovernmental................co 1,731,555 - 1,731,555

Community preservation state share............ 642,700 - 642,700

Special assessments..............ccoceevviennnnnn. 245,859 - 245,859

Lease receivables...............cceiiiiiiiiinnns 1,599,406 - 1,599,406

Total. e 7,174,380 $ (543,696) $ 6,630,684

At June 30, 2022, receivables for the enterprise funds consist of the following:
Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:

Water liens - user charges.............c.cccoeeeneeinnnnnn. $ 60,993 $ - $ 60,993
Water user charges............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiis 2,833,850 - 2,833,850
Sewer liens - usercharges...........cccooviiieiiieeen... 75,438 - 75,438
Sewer USer Charges..........ooceveeeuieneiieiieienaneennsn 1,011,827 - 1,011,827
Sewer intergovernmental................cocoviiiiiiiieinnns 43,506 - 43,506
Sewer special assessments.............c.ocoeeeiieiiinan.. 4,127,138 - 4,127,138
Waterways lease receivables................c.coeeeeennen. 629,267 - 629,267
TOtAl e $ 8,782,019 $ - $ 8,782,019

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current year, the various
components of unavailable revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Receivables and other asset types:
Real estate and personal property taxes

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts

TaX NS ..o
Community preservation fund surtax...............ccocoeviiinnns
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes..............c..coeevveninnenn.
Departmental and other................oo
Intergovernmental
Special asSeSSMENtS........ccuviiiiiiiiieieieeeeea s
Tax foreCloSUreS.........c.uviuiiiiiii e

54

Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total

618,119 $ - % 618,119
930,114 24,537 954,651

- 13,558 13,558

216,587 - 216,587
255,015 105,235 360,250

- 561,291 561,291

105,123 140,736 245,859
605,179 - 605,179

$ 2,730,137 $ 845,357 $ 3,575,494

In addition the entire lease receivable is offset by a deferred inflow of resources until the revenue is earned.
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NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts

Business-Type Activities

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land. . ..o $ 21,493,654 $ 3,709,786 $ (8,500) $ 25,194,940
Construction in progress...........cccoeeeveeieeneanne. 545,513 503,723 (281,547) 767,689
Total capital assets not being depreciated.... 22,039,167 4,213,509 (290,047) 25,962,629
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements........... 8,160,745 439,696 - 8,600,441
Buildings and improvements . 172,004,357 2,352,091 - 174,356,448
Machinery and equipment................ccooeoieennne. 16,706,817 1,871,640 (43,700) 18,534,757
Infrastructure...........cooooviiiiiiii 51,388,551 1,785,690 - 53,174,241
VehiCleS.....ovviiiie 10,166,371 - (235,109) 9,931,262
Total capital assets being depreciated......... 258,426,841 6,449,117 (278,809) 264,597,149
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements.............ccociiiieiiiiiieieans (2,118,995) (372,081) - (2,491,076)
Buildings and improvements.................ccocounee. (33,432,638) (4,898,386) - (38,331,024)
Machinery and equipment.................cooeieennne. (12,491,263) (1,704,544) 43,700 (14,152,107)
Infrastructure . (22,915,697) (2,241,395) - (25,157,092)
VehiClES.....ovviiiii e (8,209,875) (945,941) 235,109 (8,920,707)
Total accumulated depreciation.................. (79,168,468) (10,162,347) 278,809 (89,052,006)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net............ 179,258,373 (3,713,230) - 175,545,143
Total governmental activities capital assets, net..... $ 201,297,540 $ 500,279 $ (290,047) $ 201,507,772
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Water:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress..........ccceeevveeiuneennnnnn. $ 6,537,262 $ 5,771,658 $  (5,936,955) $ 6,371,965
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements. 429,471 83,619 - 513,090
Machinery and equipment.... .. 1,515,947 112,013 - 1,627,960
Infrastructure. ..o, 40,564,189 6,881,969 (210,111) 47,236,047
VehiCles........ovuiiiiiii 647,884 - - 647,884
Total capital assets being depreciated......... 43,157,491 7,077,601 (210,111) 50,024,981
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements........................... (19,769) (11,782) - (31,551)
Machinery and equipment.... (694,586) (120,862) - (815,448)
Infrastructure. ... (8,585,003) (1,239,806) 210,111 (9,614,698)
Vehicles. ... (497,785) (80,487) - (578,272)
Total accumulated depreciation.................. (9,797,143) (1,452,937) 210,111 (11,039,969)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net............ 33,360,348 5,624,664 - 38,985,012
Total water activities capital assets, net................ $ 39,897,610 $ 11,396,322 $  (5,936,955) $ 45,356,977
55 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2022

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Sewer:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress............cooeevveeeevenneenn. $ 7,118,100 $ 209,566 $ (7,118,100) $ 209,566
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 10,667,669 336,410 - 11,004,079
Machinery and equipment... 8,205,692 94,454 - 8,300,146
Infrastructure..................... 33,648,059 7,860,590 - 41,508,649
VehiCIES......ouiiiiiiiiiie e 230,241 - - 230,241
Total capital assets being depreciated......... 52,751,661 8,291,454 - 61,043,115
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements........................... (6,536,497) (552,373) - (7,088,870)
Machinery and equipment................cooeiiienne. (4,678,565) (194,956) - (4,873,521)
Infrastructure...........c.coooiiiii (9,769,315) (768,807) - (10,538,122)
VEhiCIES.....vuiiiiiee e (221,445) (2,198) - (223,643)
Total accumulated depreciation.................. (21,205,822) (1,518,334) - (22,724,156)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net............ 31,545,839 6,773,120 - 38,318,959
Total sewer activities capital assets, net............... $ 38,663,939 $ 6,982,686 $ (7,118,100) $ 38,528,525
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Transfer Station:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 2,221,043 $ - $ - $ 2,221,043
Machinery and equipment...... 677,209 440,322 - 1,117,531
Infrastructure. ..o - 25,150 - 25,150
VEhiCIES...ceuiiiieiiie e 47,993 - - 47,993
Total capital assets being depreciated......... 2,946,245 465,472 - 3,411,717
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements..................ccc.uee. (1,310,268) (48,847) - (1,359,115)
Machinery and equipment..............ccocvveiinnns (551,801) (46,668) - (598,469)
Infrastructure...........c.oooiiiiiiii - (252) - (252)
VEhIiCIES.....uiiiieiiie (47,993) - - (47,993)
Total accumulated depreciation.................. (1,910,062) (95,767) - (2,005,829)
Total transfer station activities capital assets, net... $ 1,036,183 $ 369,705 $ - $ 1,405,888
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Widow's Walk golf course:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated........................

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements..
Machinery and equipment.....
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Total Widow's Walk golf course activities capital assets, net... $

Waterways:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements.............c.....coocenee
Machinery and equipment.............c..coooviiennns
VEhiCIES....vnviiiiii e
Infrastructure.............cooviiiiii

Total capital assets being depreciated.........

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements.............cccooveiiiiiiiiiineenns
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
VehiCles. .. .o
Infrastructure............ccoooiviiiiii

Total accumulated depreciation..................
Total capital assets being depreciated, net............

Total waterways activities capital assets, net.........

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
499,403 $ - $ (499,403) $ -
3,870,500 - - 3,870,500
970,509 2,554,207 - 3,524,716
1,623,201 12,352 - 1,635,553
....... 38,750 - - 38,750
6,502,960 2,566,559 - 9,069,519
(3,200,602) (105,958) - (3,306,560)
..... (552,810) (56,190) - (609,000)
..... (1,504,601) (52,647) - (1,557,248)
....... (2,907) (1,938) - (4,845)
(5,260,920) (216,733) - (5,477,653)
...... 1,242,040 2,349,826 - 3,591,866
1,741,443 $ 2,349,826 $ (499,403) $ 3,591,866
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
3,675,000 $ -3 - $ 3,675,000
6,080,531 73,275 - 6,153,806
1,426,250 16,673 - 1,442,923
2,264,765 - - 2,264,765
150,000 - - 150,000
519,243 - - 519,243
10,440,789 89,948 - 10,530,737
(4,347,569) (219,061) - (4,566,630)
(410,727) (35,477) - (446,204)
(1,461,190) (91,949) - (1,553,139)
(36,948) (21,798) - (58,746)
(135,000) (15,000) - (150,000)
(6,391,434) (383,285) - (6,774,719)
4,049,355 (293,337) - 3,756,018
7,724,355 $ (293,337) $ - $ 7,431,018

57

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2022

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government.........ccooveiiiiiii $ 410,955
Public safety........cooooiiii 1,503,809
Education.........cooiiiii 3,582,194
PUBliC WOTKS ... e 3,126,645
HUMAN SEMVICES. ... e e 318,253
Culture and recreation...........ccooviiiiiiiii i 713,697
Community presenation............cccoeeviiiiiiiiiin, 506,794
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities.............. $ 10,162,347

Business-Type Activities:

W aLET. ..t $ 1,452,937
S BT . ..t s 1,518,334
Transfer station...........cooiiiiii 95,767
Widow's Walk golf course...........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiin, 216,733
WaterWayS. ... 383,285
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities............. $ 3,667,056

NOTE 5 — INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2022, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Water Sewer Transfer Station ~ Waterways Golf
General Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise  Enterprise
Transfers Out: fund fund fund fund fund fund Total
Nonmajor governmental funds...... $ 571,938 $ 1,901 § 26,370 $ 3,240 $ 4,187 $ 290 § 607,926 (1)

(1) Represents budgeted transfers into the general fund and enterprise funds from nonmajor governmental
funds.

NOTE 6 — LEASES

Change in Accounting Principle

During the year 2022, the Town adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87,
Leases. This statement redefines a lease as a right to use another entity’s asset over a definitive period of time
and required the Town to record leases that were previously classified as operating leases where only footnote
disclosure was required. No restatement of beginning net position was required.
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Lease Receivables

The Town has several right to use lease agreements. The Town leases space for winter boat storage, Town land
and space on water towers. Under the current lease agreements, the Town is scheduled to receive lease
payments through 2034. In 2022, the Town received $272,209 of lease revenue.

The future scheduled lease revenues as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Lease Lease

Years ending June 30: Revenues Interest Total Revenues Interest Total

2023, . $ 131,194 $ 46,190 $ 177,384 $ 82,039 $ 17,961 $ 100,000
2024.....cciiii 140,576 42,124 182,700 84,528 15,472 100,000
2025, 150,400 37,772 188,172 87,093 12,907 100,000
2026.....cciiiiii 160,690 33,122 193,812 89,735 10,265 100,000
2027 ..o 171,484 28,148 199,632 92,457 7,543 100,000
2028.....cciiiiii 182,766 22,854 205,620 95,262 4,738 100,000
2029 194,592 17,201 211,793 98,153 1,847 100,000
2030, e 82,244 12,904 95,148 - - -
2037 87,637 10,367 98,004 - - -
2032, 93,285 7,659 100,944 - - -
2033, 99,188 4,780 103,968 - - -
2034 .. 105,350 1,729 107,079 - - -

Total future lease revenues.... $ 1,599,406 $ 264,850 $ 1,864,256 $ 629,267 $ 70,733 $ 700,000

Right to Use Lease Liabilities

The Town has entered into right-to-use lease agreements of vehicles for governmental activities. The lease
agreements qualify as leases for accounting purposes and have been recorded at the present value of their future
minimum lease payments as of the inception dates. The final lease payments were made during fiscal year 2022
and accordingly, the Town had no outstanding right to use lease liabilities as of June 30, 2022.
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NOTE 7 — SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

e Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

e Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest expenditures
and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise funds.

Details related to the short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Balance at Balance at
Rate June 30, Renewed/ Retired/ June 30,
Type Purpose (%) Due Date 2021 Issued Redeemed 2022
Governmental Funds:
BAN MCWT Interim Loan Note......... 2.00 (1) $ 32,000 $ - $ - $ 32,000
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 1.50 03/04/22 2,200,000 - (2,200,000) -
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 2.00 01/26/23 - 2,741,078 (2,246,237) 494,841 (3)
Total Governmental Funds............ccoooeiveiiiiiiiineins $ 2232000 $ 2,741,078 $ (4,446,237) $ 526,841
Water Enterprise Fund:
BAN MCWT Interim Loan Note......... 2.00 (2) $ 1968515 $ 4,062,782 $ (6,031,297) $ -
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 2.00 01/26/23 - 2,405,000 (2,405,000) - (3)
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 1.75 01/26/23 - 45,000 (45,000) - (3)
Total Water Enterprise Fund..............ccoviiiiiiiiiinninn, 1,968,515 6,512,782 (8,481,297)
Sewer Enterprise Fund:
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 1.50 03/04/22 1,830,000 - (1,830,000) -
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 2.00 01/26/23 - 2,170,000 (2,170,000) - (3)
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 1.75 01/26/23 - 120,000 (120,000) - (3)
Total Sewer Enterprise Fund.............cccooeviiiiiiinnnnn, 1,830,000 2,290,000 (4,120,000)
Transfer Station Enterprise Fund:
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 2.00 01/26/23 - 174,170 (174,170) - (3)
Widow's Walk Golf Course Enterprise Fund:
BAN Bond Anticipation Note............ 2.00 01/26/23 - 770,000 - 770,000 (3)
Total Enterprise FUNGS.............ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee, $ 3,798,515 $ 9,746,952 $ (12,775,467) $ 770,000

(1) The Town entered into an interim loan with the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (MCWT) in 2022
totaling $200,000 for Title V projects. As of June 30, 2022, the Town has incurred $32,000 of eligible
costs related to the project and has received the corresponding loan proceeds from MCWT. Once the
Town procures permanent financing, the interim loan will be disclosed as long-term debt.

(2) The Town entered into an interim loan with the MCWT in 2020 totaling $6,769,393 for construction on the
water treatment plant. As of June 30, 2022, the Town has incurred $6,031,297 of eligible costs related to
the project and has received the corresponding loan proceeds from MCWT. On December 14, 2022, the
Town procured permanent financing, and the loan has been disclosed as long-term debt.
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(3) On November 17, 2022, the Town issued $8,240,000 of long-term bonds. The proceeds and premiums of
these bonds were used to permanently finance $7,160,407 of bond anticipation notes (BANs) issued
during fiscal year 2022 all due on January 26, 2023. Accordingly, these BANs have been presented as
long-term debt in the financial statements. The remaining portion of $1,264,841 of BANs will be paid

down with available funds on their call date.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, Municipal Law authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the
equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being "inside the debt
limit". In addition, however, debt may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt, when

issued, is designated as being "outside the debt limit".

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2022, and the debt service requirements are as

follows:

Long-term Debt Schedule — Governmental Fund

Original Interest Outstanding
Maturities Loan Rate at June 30,
Project Through Amount (%) 2022
General Obligation Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds of 2013.................. 2033 $ 4,539,021 2.00-275 $ 2,240,000
General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2015... 2025 4,205,000 4.00-5.00 1,395,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2015.................. 2040 68,040,400 2.00-5.00 48,010,000
General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2016... 2025 529,100 2.00-4.00 165,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2019.................. 2039 5,441,000 3.00-5.00 4,370,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2020.................. 2041 12,618,500 2.00-5.00 11,790,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2021.................. 2031 2,611,000 2.00-5.00 2,261,100
General Obligation Bonds of 2022.................. 2043 2,165,500 4.00-5.00 2,165,500
Subtotal bonds payable. ... 72,396,600
Add: Unamortized premium on bonds ..o 4,803,396
Subtotal governmental general obligation bonds payable, net...............cccooooiiiiiinin. 77,199,996
Direct Borrowings Payable:
EOEEADam & Seawall Bonds of 2017.............. 2037 $ 3,500,000 2.00-4.00 2,671,878
EOEEA Seawall Repair Bonds 0f2019.............. 2038 500,000 2.00 426,221
MCWT Series 23 CWT-18-13........ccevvvviinnnnnn. 2041 199,222 2.00 191,163
Subtotal governmental direct borrowings payable...............cooiviiiiiiiiiii 3,289,262
Total long-term debt, Net.... ... $ 80,489,258
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental general obligation bonds and direct
borrowings payable in future years are as follows:

General Obligation Bonds Payable

Year Principal Interest Total
2023............. $ 5,139,100 $ 2,882,224 $ 8,021,324
2024............. 5,169,600 2,678,772 7,848,372
2025............. 5,082,500 2,429,880 7,512,380
2026............. 4,447,100 2,197,778 6,644,878
2027............. 4,300,900 1,981,346 6,282,246
2028............. 4,294,300 1,785,477 6,079,777
2029............. 4,290,100 1,604,606 5,894,706
2030............. 4,213,400 1,425,546 5,638,946
2031 4,144,600 1,253,688 5,398,288
2032............. 3,650,000 1,097,711 4,747,711
2033............. 3,625,000 960,600 4,585,600
2034............. 3,445,000 826,237 4,271,237
2035............. 3,440,000 698,837 4,138,837
2036............. 3,440,000 571,182 4,011,182
2037....ennn. 3,325,000 444,075 3,769,075
2038............. 3,260,000 321,001 3,581,001
2039............. 3,260,000 199,767 3,459,767
2040............. 3,190,000 78,468 3,268,468
2041t 550,000 12,264 562,264
2042............. 65,000 4,144 69,144
2043............. 65,000 1,381 66,381
Total............. $ 72,396,600 $ 23,454,984 $ 95,851,584

Direct Borrowings Payable

Year Principal Interest Total
2023............. $ 190,825 $ 64,878 $ 255,703
2024............. 194,674 61,041 255,715
2025............. 198,601 57,128 255,729
2026............. 202,606 53,139 255,745
2027............. 206,693 49,068 255,761
2028............. 210,863 44,914 255,777
2029............. 215,116 40,676 255,792
2030............. 219,455 36,352 255,807
2031....ccunene 223,882 31,944 255,826
2032............. 228,398 27,444 255,842
2033.........une 233,005 22,854 255,859
2034............. 237,705 18,173 255,878
2035............. 242,499 13,394 255,893
2036............. 247,391 8,522 255,913
2037............. 145,791 3,550 149,341
2038............. 56,151 1,842 57,993
2039............. 11,615 712 12,327
2040............. 11,867 480 12,347
2041............. 12,125 242 12,367
Total............. $ 3,289,262 $ 536,353 $ 3,825,615
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Long-term Debt Schedule — Enterprise Funds

Original Interest Outstanding

Maturities Loan Rate at June 30,
Project Through Amount (%) 2022
Water
General Obligation Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds 0f 2013.............oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiece 2033 $ 550,000 2.00-2.75% 125,000
General Obligation Bonds 0f 2015..............ccooiiiiiiiiiii e 2040 14,400,000 2.00-2.75 10,305,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2016 2025 353,400 2.00-4.00 115,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2019 2039 913,000 3.00-5.00 580,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2020 2041 11,457,000 2.00-5.00 10,870,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2021 2031 2,216,700 2.00-5.00 1,942,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2022 2043 2,337,000 4.00-5.00 2,337,000

Subtotal water general obligation bonds payable........ ... e 26,274,000
Add: Unamortized premium 0N DONdS ... .. ..o 2,019,122
Total water general obligation bonds payable, Net............cooiiiii i 28,293,122

Direct Borrowings Payable:

MCWT DW=19-18 i 2043 $ 6,031,297 2.00 6,031,297
Total water long-term debt, Net... ... —————— 34,324,419
Sewer
General Obligation Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds of 2012..........ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiec, 2033 § 483,341 2.00-2.75 255,000
General Obligation Bonds 0f 2016...........c.oeeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieciie. 2025 1,280,500 2.00-4.00 410,000
General Obligation Bonds 0f 2019..........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiicee 2039 1,087,250 3.00-5.00 775,000
General Obligation Bonds 0f 2020..............cocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecie. 2041 3,046,500 2.00-5.00 2,870,000
General Obligation Bonds 0f 2021...........c.coeiviiiiiiiiiiiece, 2031 648,900 3.00-5.00 550,000
General Obligation Bonds 0f 2022...............ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiiiece, 2043 2,290,000 4.00-5.00 2,290,000
Subtotal sewer general obligation bonds payable..............coiiiiiiiii s 7,150,000
Add: Unamortized premium 0N DONAS ... ... 339,389
Subtotal sewer general obligation bonds payable 7,489,389
Direct Borrowings Payable:
MCWT CW=02-22A. ...ttt 2024 $ 1,288,256 2.00 175,553
MCWT CW=04-38.... et 2026 3,654,137 2.00 903,853
MCWT CW=04-38-A. ...ttt 2026 929,694 2.00 247,132
MCWT CW=02-22. ... et e 2024 4,557,209 2.00 693,123
MCWT Series16 CWS-09-06...........oevuueeinieiiiaiiiieeiiieeiieeeieenne 2033 348,667 2.00 210,117
MCWT CW=10-25. ...t 2033 5,389,000 2.00 3,247,591
Subtotal sewer direct borrowings payable. .. ... ... 5,477,369
Total sewer long-term debt, Net. ... ... s 12,966,758
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Original Interest Outstanding
Maturities Loan Rate at June 30,

Project Through Amount (%) 2022

Waterways

General Obligation Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds 0f 2016...........ccouveiiiiiiiiiiiieiceeeans 2024 $ 1,642,000 2.00-4.00 405,000

General Obligation Bonds 0f 2019.........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiieveeeeans 2031 159,250 4.00-5.00 110,000

General Obligation Bonds 0f 2020............ccoeviiiiiiiiiiniiieenns 2030 471,000 5.00 415,000

General Obligation Bonds 0f 2021...........cooiiiiiiiiiiin e 2031 234,500 4.00-5.00 151,900
Subtotal waterways general obligation bonds payable................c.ooooiiiii 1,081,900
Add: Unamortized premium 0N DONAS .. .....iuii e e 77,137
Total waterways long-term debt, Net.... ... 1,159,037

Transfer Station

General Obligation Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds 0f 2020............cc.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeee 2031 § 103,900 3.00-5.00 85,000

General Obligation Bonds 0f 2022..............cooiiiiiiiiiiniins 2031 164,500 5.00 164,500
Total transfer station long-term debt, Net..... ... e 249,500

Widow's Walk Golf Course

Capital Financing:

Equipment Capital FInanCing.........cccocieemrnceiceerseeceeeeeese s 2025 § 336,785 3.00-545 124,938

General Obligation Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds 0f 2020............ccvvviiiiiiiiiiniinieeans 2031 1,502,000 4.00-5.00 1,350,000
Add: Unamortized premium ON DONGAS .. ....uiuiii et 233,913
Total Widow's Walk golf course general obligation bonds payable, net...............coooiiiiiiii, 1,708,851

Total Enterprise long-term debt, Net....... ..o $ 50,408,565

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for enterprise fund capital financing payable, general
obligation bonds and direct borrowings payable in future years are as follows:

Capital Financing Payable

Year Principal Interest Total
$ 64,271 $ 2,531 $ 66,802
35,260 844 36,104
25,407 352 25,759
Total............. $ 124,938 $ 3,727 $ 128,665
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General Obligation Bonds Payable

Year Principal Interest Total

2,640,900 $ 1,324,645 $ 3,965,545

2,796,400 1,295,717 4,092,117

2,525,500 1,168,509 3,694,009

2,295,900 1,048,503 3,344,403

2,202,100 935,007 3,137,107

2,168,700 829,058 2,997,758

2,142,900 729,785 2,872,685

2,090,600 634,127 2,724,727

2,021,400 544,555 2,565,955

1,632,000 467,056 2,099,056

1,627,000 403,838 2,030,838

1,568,000 349,328 1,917,328

1,568,000 299,432 1,867,432

1,548,000 249,876 1,797,876

1,503,000 202,257 1,705,257

1,503,000 156,116 1,659,116

1,503,000 109,774 1,612,774

1,453,000 63,298 1,516,298

893,000 29,523 922,523

214,000 13,607 227,607

209,000 4,536 213,536

Total.............. $ 36,105400 $ 10,858,547 $ 46,963,947

Direct Borrowings Payable
Year Principal Interest Total

990,295 $ 109,140 $ 1,099,435

1,313,343 209,834 1,523,177

886,152 181,014 1,067,166

898,412 163,229 1,061,641

608,506 148,222 756,728

615,177 136,049 751,226

621,993 123,742 745,735

628,957 111,297 740,254

636,072 98,714 734,786

643,342 85,987 729,329

650,770 73,116 723,886

301,565 60,313 361,878

301,565 54,282 355,847

301,565 48,251 349,816

301,565 42,218 343,783

301,565 36,187 337,752

301,565 30,157 331,722

301,565 24,126 325,691

301,565 18,095 319,660

301,565 12,062 313,627

301,562 6,031 307,593

Total............. $ 11,508,666 $ 1,772,066 $ 13,280,732
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The Town is scheduled to be subsidized by the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (MCWT) on a periodic basis for
principal in the amount of $43,506 and interest costs for $17,287 related to the MCWT Pool 10 loan and the
MCWT CW-02-22 loan. Thus, net sewer enterprise loan repayments for these projects, including interest, are
scheduled to be $649,618. The principal subsidies are guaranteed and therefore a $43,506 intergovernmental
receivable has been recorded in the sewer enterprise fund at June 30, 2022. Since the Town is legally obligated
for the total amount of the debt, such amounts have been reported in the accompanying basic financial
statements. The 2022 principal and interest subsidies totaled $9,810 and $44,029, respectively.

The remaining MCWT loans are issued at a flat 2% interest rate through the Commonwealth’s State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan program.

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

Sewer Phase IV Planning..........oo i $ 400,000
Oceanside Drive Seawall Replacement ......... ..., 2,000,000
Harbor/RIVEr Dredging. .. .. e 65,000
Widow's Walk Golf Course Irrigation System..............coooviiiiiiiiiiieeeeen, 2,200,000
AT | R oo r=To L= PSP 810,510
Foreshore Structure Design, Engineering and Repairs...............ccovvvviiiinieeeiiiinnnnnn. 3,500,000
Water Plant & SCADA ENngineering/Design..........couuuuiiiieiiiiiiiiiiie e 1,000,000
Humarock Water Mains ENgin€ering..........cc.uoviiiiiiiiiiiiii i 395,000
Green Sand Filter & SCADA Engineering/Construction................ccceevvueineeeerreennnnn. 1,230,607
Senior Center Construction and Veterans Memorial Gym Renovation...................... 32,450
Cedar Point SEWET PrOJECT. ......coiiiieeiii e 937,205
Oceanside Sewer Infiltration/INfloOW. ..........oii i 4,900,000
Dolan Field Well ConsStruCtioN...........c.oeieieiii e, 3,255,000
NEW W ater TaNK. ... .ottt e e eaans 2,720,000
Sewer FaCilities Plan...... ..o 660,000
WWaater MaiNS ... e e 3,000,000
Foreshore Repairs - Seawall Turner Rd./Oceanside..................cocoviviiiiiieininnene.. 4,000,000
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA - 3rd Cliff...... ..o 2,500,000
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA - 2nd Cliff..........coooiiiii e 715,000
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA - 1st Cliff.........cooooiiii e 635,000
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA - MinOt...........oouiiiii e 717,500
Foreshore Repairs - FEMA - Glades.........c.ociviiiiiiiiiii e 724,147
High School Roof Replacement............ ..o, 1,045,000
INlow & INfIRFAtioN. ... e 4,043,285
SCADA Phase B....uiiiiiiii e 286,950
Humarock Water Mains - CoNStrUCtION. ..........oviniei i 6,300,000
Water Treatment Plant Facility Design......... ..o 50,000,000
= | PRSP $ 98,072,654
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Long-term Long-term
Beginning Debt Debt Other Other Ending Due Within
Balance Issued Redeemed Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:

Long-term general obligation bonds payable....$ 75,389,500 $ 2,165,500 $ (5,158,400) $ - $ - $ 72,39,600 $ 5,139,100
Long-term direct borrowing payable............... 3,476,314 - (187,052) - - 3,289,262 190,825
Add: Unamortized premium on bonds......... 5,588,781 150,687 (936,072) - - 4,803,396 621,174
Total long-term debt..............cceeiennns 84,454,595 2,316,187 (6,281,524) - - 80,489,258 5,951,099
Right to use lease liabilities.. . 1,041,960 - - - (1,041,960) - -
Compensated absences..............ccccocevuiennnn 1,563,217 - - 1,035,980 (1,030,014) 1,569,183 1,034,960
Net pension liability...............ccoouiiiieiiinnn, 34,556,911 - - 2,861,174 (9,046,356) 28,371,729 -
Net other postemployment benefits............... 111,003,229 - - 5,915,089 (35,614,336) 81,303,982 -

Total governmental activity
long-term liabilities............cc.ccooeeviiiinnen. $ 232,619,912 2,316,187 $  (6,281,524) $ 9,812,243 $ (46,732,666) $ 191,734,152 $ 6,986,059

Business-Type Activities:

Long-term general obligation bonds payable....$ 34,025,500 4,791,500 $ (2,711,600) $ - $ - $ 36,105400 $ 2,640,900
Long-term direct borrowing payable............... 6,442,474 6,031,297 (965,105) - - 11,508,666 990,295
Long-term capital financing payable....... 162,072 33,237 (70,371) - - 124,938 64,271
Add: Unamortized premium on bonds........ 3,235,607 122,670 (688,716) - - 2,669,561 394,449
Total long-term debt..............ccoeviiiiiiiinnens 43,865,653 10,978,704 (4,435,792) - - 50,408,565 4,089,915
Landfill closure...........cc.oeeeiiiiinieiiiiiieees 744,000 - - 36,000 (83,000) 697,000 77,000
Compensated absences... 158,266 - - 125,778 (115,499) 168,545 114,936
Net pension liability................... 3,572,161 - - 299,234 (904,163) 2,967,232 -
Net other postemployment benefits............... 1,986,160 - - 142,873 (663,255) 1,465,778 -

Total business-type activity
long-term liabilities................ccovviviiiinnn. $ 50,326,240 $ 10,978,704 $ (4,435792) $ 603,885 $§ (1,765917)$ 55,707,120 $ 4,281,851

The long-term liabilities will be liquidated in the future by the general fund and enterprise funds.

NOTE 9 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

The Town utilizes a hierarchy for fund balance classifications based on the constraints imposed on the uses of
those resources. The Town reports two major types of fund balances, which are nonspendable and spendable.
Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted
to cash or that are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid
items, inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The Town has reported principal portions of
endowment funds as nonspendable.

In addition to the nonspendable fund balance, the Town utilizes a hierarchy of spendable fund balances, based on
a hierarchy of spending constraints.

e Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.

e Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the Town from its highest level of
decision making authority.

e Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the Town to be used for a particular
purpose.

e Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose.
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As of June 30, 2022, the governmental fund balances consisted of the following:

Town Nonmajor Total
Community Capital Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Projects Funds Funds
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal.................. $ - $ - $ - $ 27,0561 $ 27,051
Restricted for:
Workers compensation.................... 808,246 - - - 808,246
Community presenvation................... - 6,136,868 - - 6,136,868
Town capital projects.............c..c...... - - 10,823 - 10,823
School lunch...........ccooiiiiiiiin, - - - 715,931 715,931
School gifts and grants.................... - - - 1,763,699 1,763,699
School revolving.............. . - - - 1,060,781 1,060,781
Town gifts........ - - - 913,264 913,264
Town grantS.......c.oeeuvinieiniiiiiineanes - - - 469,532 469,532
Town revolving.......c.ovvveiveniiiiieenns - - - 7,556,331 7,556,331
Title V program.........c.cooeeveniinnennnnn. - - - 80,690 80,690
Affordable housing............c..cccceennen. - - - 617,148 617,148
Library renovation................c..cooeouee - - - 474,020 474,020
Middle school construction.. - - - 2,666,585 2,666,585
Town trust funds...............cooeieennt. - - - 311,440 311,440
Committed to:
Town administrator.......................... 81,295 - - - 81,295
Advisory committee......................... 38,561 - - - 38,561
Town accountant....................c.o.ee. 29,261 - - - 29,261
ASSESSOrS...ccuiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeee e, 6,887 - - - 6,887
Information technology.. 377,516 - - - 377,516
Police......ooiiiiiieeiiie e, 91,624 - - - 91,624
Fire. .o 126,044 - - - 126,044
Inspections... 308,541 - - - 308,541
Education........ 2,420,310 - - - 2,420,310
Public works. . 2,832,770 - - - 2,832,770
Facilities........ccooeeveiieiiiiiieeeeeee, 1,731,538 - - - 1,731,538
Assigned to:
Town administrator.......................... 11,876 - - - 11,876
Town accountant....................c.o.ee. 1,500 - - - 1,500
Assessors 29,500 - - - 29,500
Treasurer/Collector...............cccceeeeen. 6,777 - - - 6,777
Information technology....................... 69,426 - - - 69,426
Planning and community development. 2,900 - - - 2,900
38,308 - - - 38,308
16,061 - - - 16,061
347,609 - - - 347,609
342,458 - - - 342,458
36,857 - - - 36,857
36,425 - - - 36,425
832 - - - 832
37,054 - - - 37,054
Beautification... 8,860 - - - 8,860
Debt senice........cccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiin 6,500 - - - 6,500
Unassigned.........ocuvviiiiiiiiniiinieeeens 12,263,349 - (95,896) (139,438) 12,028,015
Total Fund Balances..............cccceveveninnennn. $ 22,108,885 $ 6,136,868 $ (85,073) $ 16,517,034 $ 44,677,714
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Massachusetts General Law Ch.40 §5B allows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes on an as needed basis. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body
and must clearly define the purpose of the fund. Any change to the purpose of the fund along with any additions
to or appropriations from the fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body. The stabilization fund balance
can be used for general and/or capital purposes upon approval of Town Meeting. Additions to and withdrawals
from the funds can only be made upon Town Meeting approval. In accordance with Massachusetts General Law
the Town has established a general stabilization fund, a capital stabilization fund and an economic development
stabilization fund.

At year end, the balance of the general stabilization fund, capital stabilization fund, economic development
stabilization fund and special education reserve fund totaled $5,969,191, $140,505, $34,437 and $100,047,
respectively. These funds are reported as unassigned fund balance within the general fund.

The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental
funds it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund balance amount. However, in the governmental
funds other than the general fund, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to other purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund
balance in that fund.

NOTE 10 — RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The amount of claim
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three years.

The Town participates in a premium-based health care for its active employees. The Town is self-insured for
workman’s compensation and unemployment benefits. The amount of the claim settlements has not exceeded
insurance coverage. The incurred but not reported liability related to workman’s compensation and unemployment
claims is immaterial and therefore not recorded.

NOTE 11 — PENSION PLAN
Plan Descriptions

The Town is a member of the Plymouth County Retirement Association (Association), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible employees of the 52 member units. The Association is
administered by five board members (Board) on behalf of all current employees and retirees except for current
teachers and retired teachers. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions
of the plan. The audited financial report may be obtained by visiting http://www.pcr-ma.org.

The Town is a member of the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS), a cost-sharing multi-
employer defined benefit plan. MTRS is managed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth) on
behalf of municipal teachers and municipal teacher retirees. The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor
and is responsible for 100% of the contributions and future benefit requirements of the MTRS. The MTRS covers
certified teachers in cities (except Boston), towns, regional school districts, charter schools, educational
collaboratives and Quincy College. The MTRS is part of the Commonwealth’s reporting entity and the audited
financial report may be obtained by visiting https://mtrs.state.ma.us/service/financial-reports/.
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Special Funding Situation

The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make 100% of all actuarially
determined employer contributions on behalf of the Town to the MTRS. Therefore, the Town is considered to be
in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and the Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor in MTRS. Since the Town does not contribute
directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. The total of the Commonwealth provided
contributions have been allocated based on each employer’s covered payroll to the total covered payroll of
employers in MTRS as of the measurement date of June 30, 2021. The Town’s portion of the collective pension
expense, contributed by the Commonwealth, of $6,631,157 is reported in the general fund as intergovernmental
revenue and pension expense in the current fiscal year. The portion of the Commonwealth’s collective net
pension liability associated with the Town is $82,635,526 as of the measurement date.

Benefits Provided

Both the Association and the System provide retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System benefits are, with certain minor exceptions,
uniform from system to system.

The Association provides for retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member's highest three-
year average annual rate of regular compensation. For persons who became members on or after April 2, 2012,
average salary is the average annual rate of regular compensation received during the five consecutive years that
produce the highest average, or, if greater, during the last five years (whether or not consecutive) preceding
retirement. Benefit payments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable service, level of compensation,
and group classification. Members become vested after ten years of creditable service.

Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a retirement allowance or are under the
age of 55 are entitled to request a refund of their accumulated total deductions. Survivor benefits are extended to
eligible beneficiaries of members whose death occurs prior to or following retirement.

Cost-of-living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the
Commonwealth’s state law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the
pension fund. Cost-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Board and are borne by the
System.

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected the total pension liability at December 31, 2021.
Contributions

Chapter 32 of the MGL governs the contributions of plan members and member units. Active plan members are
required to contribute to the Association at rates ranging from 5% to 9% of gross regular compensation with an
additional 2% contribution required for compensation exceeding $30,000. The percentage rate is keyed to the
date upon which an employee's membership commences. The member units are required to pay into the
Association a legislatively mandated actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers
based on active current payroll. The Town’s proportionate share of the required contribution equaled its actual
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2021, and totaled $5,759,996, 27.31% of covered payroll,
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with plan member contributions, is expected to finance
the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability.
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Pension Liabilities

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a liability of $31,338,961 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2021, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2022. The Town’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town’s long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At
December 31, 2021, the Town’s proportion was 6.700%, which increased from its proportion of 6.505% measured
at December 31, 2020.

Pension Expense
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized a net pension expense of $3,160,408. At June 30, 2022,
the Town reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $4,220,114 and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions of $8,824,577.

The balances of deferred outflows/(inflows) or resources related to pension at June 30, 2022, consist of the
following:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Deferred Category Resources Resources Total
Differences between expected and actual experience................ $ 3475763 $ - $ 3,475,763
Difference between projected and actual earnings, net.............. - (8,598,929) (8,598,929)
Changes in assumMpPioNS.........ocoviiiiiiii e 106,465 - 106,465
Changes in proportion and proportionate share of contributions... 637,886 (225,648) 412,238
Total deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources........................... $ 4,220,114 $ (8,824,577) $ (4,604,463)

The Town’s net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Year ended June 30:

20230 $ 532,983
2024 ..o i (2,472,818)
2025. .. 0o (1,478,689)
2026.....cce e (1,185,939)
Total.veeeeeeeee e $ (4,604,463

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the January 1, 2022, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified that was rolled back
to December 31, 2021:

Valuationdate...............cooiiiiiiiiinn. .. January 1, 2022

Actuarial cost method........................... Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method.
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Asset valuation method......................... Assets held by the fund are valued at fair value as reported by the
Public Employees' Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC).
The actuarial value of assets is determined using a five-year smoothing
of asset returns greater than or less than the assumed rate of return, with
a 20% corridor.

Investment rate of return/Discount rate...... 7.875% nominal rate, net of investment expense.

Projected salary increases..................... 3.75% per year.

Cost of living adjustments...................... 3.0% of the first $16,000 of retirement income.

Rates of disability..............ccoooin, For general employees, it was assumed that 45% of all disabilities

are ordinary (55% are senice connected). For police and fire employees,
10% of all disabilities are assumed to be ordinary (90% are senice
connected).

Mortality Rates............coovvviiiiiiinnnn. It is assumed that both pre-retirement mortality and beneficiary mortality
is represented by the RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality with Scale MP-2016,
fully generational. Mortality for retired members for Group 1 and 2 is
represented by the RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table set forward five
years for males and three years for females, fully generational. Mortality fo
retired members for Group 4 is represented by the RP-2014 Blue Collar
Mortality Table set forward three years for males, and six years for
females, fully generational. Morality for diabled members for Group 1 and 2
is represented by the RP-2000 Mortality Table set forward six years.
Mortality for disabled members for Group 4 is represented by the RP-2000
Mortiality Table set forward two years. Generational adjusting is based on
Scale MP-2016.

Investment Policy

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the
Board and pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws and Public Employee Retirement Administration guidelines.
Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully
funded status for the benefits provided through the pension plan.

The investment objective is to fully fund the Plan by generating sufficient long-term inflation adjusted capital
appreciation while providing sufficient liquidity to meet short-term withdrawal requirements. The Board desires to
balance the goal of higher long-term returns with the goal of minimizing contribution volatility, recognizing these
are often competing goals. This requires taking both assets and liabilities into account when setting investment
strategy.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of December 31, 2021, are
summarized in the table on the following page.
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Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic equity...........coviiiiinnan. 23.00% 6.80%
International deweloped equity.............. 3.00% 7.50%
Emerging markets equity.................... 9.00% 4.60%
Global equity........cooieiiiii 11.00% 7.20%
Corebonds.......cccooviviiiiiiiiiiii 10.00% 2.40%
Value-added fixed income................... 7.00% 4.00%
Hedge funds..........coooiiiiiiiiinn, 7.00% 4.40%
Real estate............c.coooviiiiiiin, 10.00% 7.40%
Private equity...........coooiiiiiiiiiin, 12.00% 7.30%
Real assets........cccovvviiiiiiiiciiinn, 6.00% 7.70%
Cash and cash equivalents................. 2.00% 1.70%
Total....oeee 100.00%

Rate of Return

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments,
net of pension plan investment expense, was 14.41%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.875%, which did not change from the prior
measurement date. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions will be made at rates equal to the
actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.875%, as well as what the

net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.875%)
or 1-percentage-point higher (8.875%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(6.875%) (7.875%) (8.875%)
The Town's proportionate share of the
net pension liability.......................... $ 44,412,434 $ 31,338,961 $ 20,195,342

Changes in Assumptions and Plan Provisions

There were no changes in assumptions and plan provisions in the January 1, 2022, actuarial valuation.
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NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
Plan Description

The Town administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Plan). The Plan provides lifetime
healthcare and life insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the Town’s group health insurance
plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of the Massachusetts General Law assigns
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are negotiated between the
Town and the unions representing Town employees and are renegotiated each bargaining period. The Plan does
not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established and may be amended by the
Town. The required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. The Town contributes 50
percent of the cost of current-year premiums for healthcare and life insurance for eligible retired plan members
and their spouses. Plan members receiving benefits contribute the remaining 50 percent of their premium costs
for healthcare and life insurance. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town’s average contribution rate was
6.31% of covered-employee payroll.

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts passed special legislation that has allowed the Town to establish a
postemployment benefit trust fund and to enable the Town to begin pre-funding its other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) liabilities. The Town has named the Board of Trustees to consist of five members including the Town
Administrator, the Finance Director, Advisory Committee Chair who serves as ex officio, a member appointed by
the Select Board, and a member who must be a registered voter is appointed by the Town Administrator with
consent by the Select Board. The Town Treasurer serves as a non-voting member of the Board of Trustees. The
Town has adopted a trust agreement detailing the duties and responsibilities of the Trustees which includes
taking actions as necessary and appropriate to manage the assets of the trust fund.

During 2022, the Town pre-funded future OPEB liabilities totaling $393,541 by contributing funds to the Other
Postemployment Benefit Trust Fund in excess of the pay-as-you-go required contribution. These funds are
reported within the Fiduciary Funds financial statements. As of June 30, 2022, the balance of this fund totaled
$1,907,394. The Town has adopted a policy of pre-funding future OPEB liabilities which includes allocating 2% of
the annual retirement assessment to the OPEB fund through the annual operating budget. This policy is adopted
by and may be amended at any time by the Town’s Select Board.

Plan Membership

The following table represents the Plan’s membership at July 1, 2020:

Active MEeMDErS .. ... 733
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits.......... 536
Ot e 1,269
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Components of OPEB Liability

The following table represents the components of the Plan’s OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022:

Total OPEB liability...........cccoiiiiiiiiiin, $ 84,677,154
Less: OPEB plan's fiduciary net position......... (1,907,394)
Net OPEB liability..............ccooioiiiii, $ 82,769,760

The OPEB plan's fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total OPEB liability..... 2.25%

Significant Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified, that was updated to
June 30, 2022:

Valuation date........................ July 1, 2020

Actuarial cost method.............. Entry Age Normal as a Level Percentage of Payroll.

Asset valuation method............ Fair Value of Assets.

Discount rate..............ccocoeeennn. 3.77%

Salary increases..................... 3.00% annually as of June 30, 2022, and for future periods.
Healthcare cost trend rate......... 7.0% as of July 1, 2022, decreasing .25% to an ultimate trend of

4.5% starting July 1, 2032.

Mortality.......ccoovviiiiin. Society of Actuaries Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Healthy
Male and Female Total Dataset Headcount-Weighted Mortality
based on Employee and Health Annuitant Tables for both pre and
post retirement projected with mortality improvements using the
most current Society of Actuaries Improvement Scale MP-2019.

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of investment
expense, was 0.34%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Investment Policy

The Town’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the Select

Board by a majority vote of its members. The OPEB plan’s assets are managed on a total return basis with a
long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the OPEB
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plan. The Town’s OPEB investments were invested using the Town’s investment policy. The Town invests their
OPEB trust funds in the MMDT cash portfolio account which is a cash pool and is not invested to achieve a
specific real rate of return. The MMDT cash portfolio is made up of commercial paper and notes, variable rate
instruments, bank instruments, and repurchase agreements. MMDT invests no more than 5% of their securities in
any single issuer except in U.S. government securities, its agencies, or repurchase agreements fully collateralized
by such obligations or money market mutual funds.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.77% as of June 30, 2022, and 2.09% as of June
30, 2021. The OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be insufficient to make all projected benefit
payments to current plan members. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to all periods to determine the
total OPEB liability. The Town'’s net OPEB liability was determined based on an average of the Bond Buyer 20-
year General Obligation Bond, the Standard & Poor’s Municipal Bond 20-year High Grade Rate Index, and the
Fidelity GA AA 20-year Bond as of June 30, 2022, which resulted in the selected discount rate of 3.77%.

Sensitivity of the Net Other Postemployment Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the net other postemployment benefit liability and service cost, calculated using the
discount rate of 3.77%, as well as what the net other postemployment benefit liability and service cost would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.77%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(4.77%) than the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.77%) (3.77%) (4.77%)
Net OPEB liability...............ccccooevni. $ 100,037,269 $ 82,769,760 $ 69,582,745

Sensitivity of the Net Other Postemployment Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend
The following table presents the net other postemployment benefit liability and service cost, calculated using the
current healthcare trend rate as well as what the net other postemployment benefit liability and service cost would

be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher.

1% Decrease Current Trend 1% Increase

Net OPEB liability...........ccccceeeiinnnn. $ 67,900,875 $ 82,769,760 $ 102,477,812

Changes in Assumptions
The discount rate increased from 2.09% to 3.77%.
Changes in Plan Provisions

None.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments
and participating interest-earning investment contracts (repurchase agreements) that have a maturity at the time
of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Plan
Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability

(@) (b) (@) -(b)
Balances at June 30, 2021............ccccvennnns $ 114,497,232 $ 1,507,843 $ 112,989,389

Changes for the year:

SEeniCe COSt....eniiiiiiieiiiii e 1,792,977 - 1,792,977
Interest.......ooiiii 4,264,986 - 4,264,986
Contributions - Employer........................ - 3,128,858 (3,128,858)
Net investment income.......................... - 6,010 (6,010)
Changes in assumptions......................... (33,142,724) - (33,142,724)
Benefit payments...........c.co (2,735,317) (2,735,317) -
Net change...........cooooiiiiiiiiiiinnnns (29,820,078) 399,551 (30,219,629)
Balances at June 30, 2022.......................... $ 84,677,154 $ 1,907,394 $ 82,769,760

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized an OPEB expense of $4,009,393. As of June 30, 2022,
there were $17,062,692 in deferred outflows and $40,335,260 in deferred inflows related to OPEB for changes in

assumptions.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2023, .., $  (2,042,560)
2024, (2,042,558)
2025, ..o, (4,960,794)
2026 ..o, (8,702,867)
2027 ..o, (5,523,789)
TOMAL. et $ (23,272,568)
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NOTE 13 — LANDFILL CLOSURE COSTS

The Town’s landfill is closed, and a final cover has been installed in accordance with Federal and State laws and
regulations. Those laws and regulations also require the Town to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions (post-closure care) at the site for thirty years after the landfill cover is installed. The Town presently
expends approximately $51,000 per year for post-closure care costs and has recorded a liability of $697,000 in
the business-type activities as a result of this activity. Actual costs may change due to inflation, deflation, changes
in technology, or changes in laws and regulations.

NOTE 14 — COMMITMENTS

The Town has various commitments related to the construction projects which will be financed through long-term
borrowing. These projects include $12.8 million for foreshore protection and repairs, $8.9 million for sewer
infiltration/inflow, $6.3 million for Humarock water main construction, $50.0 million for water treatment plant facility
project and $3.3 million for Dolan Field well construction.

The Town has entered into a long-term contract with South Eastern Massachusetts Partnership (SEMASS) to
provide solid waste disposal services. Total charges are based on a formula of tipping and transport fees with
costs rising gradually through 2023 when the contract expires. Actual expenditures under this contract for 2022
were $351,362.

The Town is working with the Federal Emergency Management Agency to close out several open claims for
damages from 2012 through 2018 for the presidentially declared disasters of Hurricane Sandy (DR-4097), Storm
Nemo (DR-4110), Storm Juno (DR-4214) and Storm Riley (DR-4372). The majority of these claims are related to
repairs to foreshore structures.

The general fund has various commitments for goods and services related to articles and encumbrances totaling
$8,044,347 and $992,943, respectively.

NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCIES

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited in
accordance with the provisions of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards through June 30, 2022, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although it is expected such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

Various legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at June 30, 2022,
cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial
position at June 30, 2022.

NOTE 16 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 22, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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NOTE 17 — IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
During 2022, the following GASB pronouncements were implemented:

e GASB Statement #87, Leases. The annual comprehensive financial report was updated to be in
compliance with this pronouncement.

o GASB Statement #89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. This
pronouncement did not impact the annual comprehensive financial report.

o GASB Statement #92, Omnibus 2020. This pronouncement did not impact the annual comprehensive
financial report.

o GASB Statement #93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. This pronouncement did not impact the
annual comprehensive financial report.

o GASB Statement #97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans — an amendment of GASB

Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. This pronouncement did
not impact the annual comprehensive financial report.

The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in the future:

o The GASB issued Statement #91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which is required to be implemented in
2023.

o The GASB issued Statement #94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements, which is required to be implemented in 2023.

o The GASB issued Statement #96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, which is
required to be implemented in 2023.

e The GASB issued Statement #99, Omnibus 2022, which is required to be implemented in 2023.

e The GASB issued Statement #100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which is required to be
implemented in 2024.

e The GASB issued Statement #101, Compensated Absences, which is required to be implemented in
2025.

Management is currently assessing the impact the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
annual comprehensive financial report.
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General Fund Budgetary
Comparison Schedule

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all the financial resources,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts

Amounts Current Year Actual Amounts Variance
Carried Forward Initial Original Final Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
From Prior Year Budget Budget Budget Amounts to Next Year Budget
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds. $ -3 71,842,078 $ 71,842,078 § 71,987,012 § 71972512 $ -8 (14,500)
Taxliens.............. - - - - 389,031 - 389,031
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. - 2,919,934 2,919,934 2,919,934 3,571,560 - 651,626
Hotel/motel tax. - - - - 180,519 - 180,519
Meals tax . - 172,500 172,500 172,500 355,022 - 182,522
Penalties and interest on taxes . - 350,000 350,000 350,000 444,179 - 94,179
Fees and rentals. . - 409,055 409,055 409,055 543,677 - 134,622
Payments in lieu of taxes, . - 16,000 16,000 16,000 28,563 - 12,563
Licenses and permits.... . - 680,877 680,877 680,877 1,346,155 - 665,278
Fines and forfeitures. . - 35,700 35,700 35,700 50,654 - 14,954
Intergovernmental - state aid - 8,493,759 8,493,759 8,493,759 8,520,355 - 26,596
Intergovernmental - other. - - - - 87,996 - 87,996
Departmental and other. - 996,500 996,500 996,500 1,534,557 - 538,057
Special assessments. - 10,000 10,000 10,000 18,493 - 8,493
Investment income. - 44,983 44,983 44,983 110,333 - 65,350
TOTALREVENUES...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiciie - 85,971,386 85,971,386 86,116,320 89,153,606 - 3,037,286
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government
Town Administrator
Personal Services.............ooouviiiiieiiiiniei - 341,500 341,500 341,500 341,500 - -
Purchase of services 6,454 171,160 177,614 177,614 132,412 7,303 37,899
Town Counsel 4,012 145,000 149,012 149,012 99,824 4,012 45,176
Labor Counsel 20 85,201 85,221 85,201 62,993 - 22,208
Materials and supplies. - 7,400 7,400 7420 5,779 561 1,080
Salary adjustment: 10,000 10,000 20,000 20,000 - - 20,000
Article - Ellis conservatio 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 -
Atrticle - Ellis surplus school lan 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 -
Article - Ellis conservation. . 35,000 - 35,000 35,000 - 35,000 -
Atrticle - Prior year bills. . - - - 4,195 4,195 - -
Atrticle - Prior year bills. 15 - 15 - - - -
Article - COVID-19 deficil . 103,000 - 103,000 - - - -
Atrticle - Prior year bills. . - - - 6,798 5,503 1,295 -
Atrticle - Affordable housing deed program - - - 25,000 - 25,000 -
178,501 760,261 938,762 871,740 652,206 93,171 126,363
Advisory Committee
Personal services. . - 2,225 2,225 - - - -
Purchase of services . - 250 250 250 245 - 5
Materials and supplies. - 4,300 4,300 6,525 6,525 - -
Atrticle - South Shore Community Action 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 5,000 -
Article - Athletic fields. 33,561 - 33,561 33,561 - 33,561 -
L Y 38,561 6,775 45,336 45,336 6,770 38,561 5
Reserve Fund.. . - 75,000 75,000 755 - - 755
Town Accountant
Personal services.... . - 354,629 354,629 354,629 354,443 - 186
Purchase of services . - 67,880 67,880 95,180 83,244 1,500 10,436
Materials and supplies. - 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,299 - 1
Atrticle - Integrated financial system. . 29,261 - 29,261 29,261 - 29,261 -
L 29,261 423,809 453,070 480,370 438,986 30,761 10,623
Assessors
Personal services.... . - 211,756 211,756 211,756 211,756 - -
Purchase of services 25,600 38,850 64,450 64,450 34,240 29,500 710
Materials and supplies. - 500 500 500 416 - 84
Assessor's revaluation. 6,887 - 6,887 6,887 - 6,887 -
Total 32,487 251,106 283,593 283,593 246,412 36,387 794
Treasurer/Collector
Personal services.... - 319,964 319,964 319,964 319,964 - -
Purchase of services 1,000 100,025 101,025 101,025 93,955 6,777 293
Materials and supplies. - 9,000 9,000 9,000 4,578 - 4,422
Total 1,000 428,989 429,989 429,989 418,497 6,777 4,715
Information Technology
Personal Services................ccoooeiieiiiiiiiiiiiei, - 209,331 209,331 209,331 197,091 - 12,240
Purchase of services.. 44,203 384,395 428,598 428,599 286,242 51,651 90,706
Materials and supplies. - 500 500 500 273 - 227
Capital outlay. - 30,000 30,000 50,738 29,997 17,775 2,966
Atrticle - IT upgrades and licensing 42,940 - 42,940 42,940 - 42,940 -
Article - Data infrastructure 72,103 - 72,103 72,103 42,236 29,867 -
Article - Permitting system. 140,190 - 140,190 140,190 - 140,190 -
Atrticle - Phone system expansion 55,000 - 55,000 55,000 2,481 52,519 -
Article - Network switches. - - - 112,000 - 112,000 -
354,436 624,226 978,662 1,111,401 558,320 446,942 106,139
- 39,000 39,000 42,500 39,070 - 3,430
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts

Amounts Current Year Actual Amounts Variance
Carried Forward Initial Original Final Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
From Prior Year Budget Budget Budget Amounts to Next Year Budget
Cable TV
Personal services.... . - 112,646 112,646 111,644 111,644 - -
Purchase of services . - 6,500 6,500 - - - -
Materials and supplies. - 2,000 2,000 - - - -
Capital outlay. - 150,000 150,000 17,202 17,202 - -
Total - 271,146 271,146 128,846 128,846 - -
Town Clerk
Personal services - 177,128 177,128 177,128 166,267 - 10,861
Purchase of services - 26,815 26,815 26,815 25,137 - 1,678
Materials and supplies. . - 4,530 4,530 4,530 2,241 - 2,289
L Y - 208,473 208,473 208,473 193,645 - 14,828
Planning and Community Development
Personal services.... . - 836,842 836,842 833,342 802,890 - 30,452
Purchase of services 20,972 54,600 75,572 76,647 60,116 2,900 13,631
Materials and supplies. 78 4,100 4,178 4,478 3,988 - 490
Article - Master plan update 1,500 - 1,500 - - - -
Total 22,550 895,542 918,092 914,467 866,994 2,900 44,573
Property/Liability Insurance....................cccocoeeiininn 281 819,214 819,495 869,495 867,934 - 1,561
Total General Government...............c.ococvieieiiiieiiiiiens 657,077 4,803,541 5,460,618 5,386,965 4,417,680 655,499 313,786
Public Safety
Police
Personal services.... . - 3,767,772 3,767,772 3,747,590 3,702,599 - 44,991
Purchase of services 720 128,991 129,711 141,239 131,111 3,069 7,059
Materials and supplies. 216 108,220 108,436 117,089 113,496 141 3,452
Capital outlay. 5,163 184,820 189,983 242,246 203,494 35,098 3,654
Atrticle - Marine unit repowering . 1,128 - 1,128 1,128 948 180 -
Article - ALPR and parking management. . - - - 82,500 77,944 4,556 -
Article - Ballistic vests. - - - 92,767 5,879 86,888 -
Total 7,227 4,189,803 4,197,030 4,424,559 4,235,471 129,932 59,156
Fire
Personal services.... . - 5,083,636 5,083,636 5,083,636 5,081,178 - 2,458
Purchase of services 811 57,987 58,798 75,798 71,451 3,426 921
Materials and supplies. 24,145 166,991 191,136 191,135 177,744 12,635 756
Capital outlay. - - - 26,412 22,149 - 4,263
Article - Renovate fire station. 159,630 - 159,630 159,630 159,630 - -
Atrticle - Station 4 phase Il renovation. 48,222 - 48,222 48,222 48,222 - -
Atrticle - Communications equipment.. 1,139 - 1,139 1,139 - 1,139 -
Article - Humarock fire station renovation 241,147 - 241,147 241,148 235,842 5,306 -
Article - Replace admin vehicle. 230 - 230 - - - -
Article - Replace ambulance. 4,590 - 4,590 4,537 4,537 - -
Atrticle - Humarock apparatus bay. 98,875 - 98,875 98,875 98,875 - -
Article - Fire station overhead doors. 70,000 - 70,000 70,000 67,401 2,599 -
Atrticle - Refurbish 2006 rescue pumper.. 70,000 - 70,000 70,000 68,000 2,000 -
Atrticle - Replace 2010 command vehicle. - - - 65,000 - 65,000 -
Article - Zoll monitor: - - - 50,000 - 50,000 -
718,789 5,308,614 6,027,403 6,185,532 6,035,029 142,105 3,398
Inspections
Article - Digitize department records..................... 308,541 - 308,541 308,541 - 308,541 -
Shellfish
Personal services. - 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 - -
Purchase of service - 200 200 200 - - 200
Materials and supplies. - 600 600 600 258 - 342
Total - 8,800 8,800 8,800 8,258 - 542
Public Safety Communications Center
Personal services. - 630,636 630,636 630,636 629,751 - 885
Materials and supplies. - 200 200 450 422 - 28
- 630,836 630,836 631,086 630,173 - 913
Total Public Safety...............cccooeiiiiiiiiiiiii 1,034,557 10,138,053 11,172,610 11,558,518 10,908,931 580,578 69,009
Education
School Committee. 201,989 41,523,693 41,725,682 41,815,681 41,457,602 347,609 10,470
South Shore Regional School Assessment 5,376 627,785 633,161 634,971 634,970 - 1
Article - Jenkins outside stairs. 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 - 50,000 -
Article - Cushing and high school fields irrigation. 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 -
Article - Ceiling tiles at Hatherly and Cushing 40,000 - 40,000 40,000 - 40,000 -
Article - School technology. 68,702 - 68,702 68,702 68,482 220 -
Article - School carpeting - High School. 1,500 - 1,500 - - - -
Article - Replace special education vans. 1,668 - 1,668 - - - -
Article - Wireless smoke detectors. 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 19,956 30,044 -
Article - Cushing Accessibility. . 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 - 50,000 -
Article - Kindergarten 2020-21. 450,000 - 450,000 - - - -
Article - Replace high school flooring. 250,000 - 250,000 250,000 - 250,000 -
Article - School technology... 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 39,627 60,373 -
Avrticle - Wampatuck parking lof 165,673 - 165,673 303,673 - 303,673 -
Article - Hatherly Feasibility Study. . - - - 1,100,000 - 1,100,000 -
Article - PAC rigging . - - - 26,000 - 26,000 -
Article - SHS floor replacement. . - - - 300,000 - 300,000 -
Article - School technology... . - - - 200,000 - 200,000 -
Total Education..............cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 1,444,908 42,151,478 43,596,386 44,999,027 42,220,637 2,767,919 10,471
(Continued)

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts 84 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report



GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts

Amounts Current Year Actual Amounts Variance
Carried Forward Initial Original Final Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
From Prior Year Budget Budget Budget Amounts to Next Year Budget
Public Works
Public Works
Personal services - 1,820,620 1,820,620 1,785,847 1,664,401 - 121,446
Purchase of services 37,707 557,503 595,210 595,210 550,607 44,603 -
Materials and supplies. 15,937 280,033 295,970 296,554 248,340 45,020 3,194
Capital outlay......... 143,181 435,360 578,541 577,565 324,730 252,835 -
Article - Roadway improvements. 9,715 - 9,715 9,715 9,715 - -
Atrticle - Cudworth cemetery. 8,259 - 8,259 8,259 8,259 - -
Atrticle - Foreshore protection 147,354 - 147,354 147,354 25,577 121,777 -
Atrticle - Road and sidewalk improvements. 30,601 - 30,601 30,601 - 30,601 -
Atrticle - Road and sidewalk improvements. 205,567 - 205,567 205,567 161,447 44,120 -
Atrticle - Foreshore protection 4,844 - 4,844 4,844 - 4,844 -
Article - Cudworth cemetery.. 16,747 - 16,747 16,747 16,747 - -
Atrticle - Expand Cudworth cemetery. 46,849 - 46,849 46,294 46,294 - -
Article - Stormwater compliance 24,654 - 24,654 24,654 24,654 - -
Atrticle - Road and sidewalk improvements. 271,941 - 271,941 271,941 191,051 80,890 -
Article - Cudworth cemetery. 89,932 - 89,932 23,100 18,500 4,600 -
Atrticle - Foreshore protection 189,781 - 189,781 189,781 - 189,781 -
Article - MS4 Compliance.. 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 13,255 36,745 -
Article - Roads & sidewalks. 200,000 - 200,000 200,000 - 200,000 -
Article - Tractor............ 1,338 - 1,338 - - - -
Atrticle - Truck replacement. 2,015 - 2,015 - - - -
Atrticle - Foreshore protection 200,000 - 200,000 200,000 - 200,000 -
Article - MS4 Complianc 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 11,521 38,479 -
Atrticle - Prior year bills... 530 - 530 - - - -
Article - Roads & sidewalks. 200,000 - 200,000 200,000 - 200,000 -
Article - Street sweepel 260,000 - 260,000 260,000 260,000 - -
Article - Flail Mower.... . 36,000 - 36,000 36,000 26,801 9,199 -
Article - Stump grinder. 45,000 - 45,000 45,000 33,501 11,499 -
Atrticle - Beach Improvement: . - - - 100,000 - 100,000 -
Article - Foreshore Protection . - - - 200,000 - 200,000 -
Article - FEMA Seaside Town Share - - - - 121,439 - 121,439 -
Article - FEMA Surfside Town Share.. . - - - 163,513 - 163,513 -
Article - FEMA Cole Prky Town Share . - - - 66,983 - 66,983 -
Atrticle - Harbor Resiliency Stud . - - - 250,000 - 250,000 -
Article - MS4 Compliance. . - - - 100,000 - 100,000 -
Article - Roadway and Sidewalk Improvement. . - - - 116,000 - 116,000 -
Atrticle - Replace truck 1-9. . - - - 65,000 - 65,000 -
Article - Replace truck 101. - - - 65,000 - 65,000 -
Atrticle - Replace forklift.. - - - 67,300 - 67,300 -
Atrticle - Replace truck 2-0. - - - 65,000 - 65,000 -
Article - Replace truck 2-2. - - - 65,000 - 65,000 -
Atrticle - Replace 2001 trash truck. - - - 170,000 - 170,000 -
Atrticle - Cemetery maintenance database. - - - 45,000 - 45,000 -
Total 2,287,952 3,093,516 5,381,468 6,935,268 3,635,400 3,175,228 124,640
Facilities
Personal services.... . - 417,883 417,883 417,883 391,919 - 25,964
Purchase of services 3,220 523,753 526,973 526,972 512,149 6,524 8,299
Materials and supplies. 35,689 235,955 271,644 324,066 288,936 141 34,989
Capital outlay. 430 63,000 63,430 63,430 4,114 30,192 29,124
Article - Police station demolition. 2,660 - 2,660 - - - -
Atrticle - Security upgrades. 41,960 - 41,960 41,960 41,095 865 -
Atrticle - Security upgrades Town buildings. 65,843 - 65,843 65,843 36,791 29,052 -
Atrticle - Facilities handyman vehicle. 32,000 - 32,000 32,000 - 32,000 -
Atrticle - Old gates sprinkler pump. 80,400 - 80,400 80,400 - 80,400 -
Article - Town wide facilities plan. 144,042 - 144,042 144,042 5,890 138,152 -
Article - HVAC improvements. 40,000 - 40,000 40,000 - 40,000 -
Article - Facilities vehicle. 32,500 - 32,500 32,500 - 32,500 -
Article - Replace HVAC. - - - 67,000 - 67,000 -
Article - Facilities vehicle. - - - 37,000 - 37,000 -
Article - Replace maritime ramp.. - - - 108,500 - 108,500 -
Atrticle - Facilities plan year 2 project - - - 1,166,069 - 1,166,069 -
Total 478,744 1,240,591 1,719,335 3,147,665 1,280,894 1,768,395 98,376
Snow and Ice
Personal services. - 107,906 107,906 121,821 121,821 - -
Purchase of services 9,687 176,909 186,596 186,596 152,553 - 34,043
Materials and supplies. . 11,843 212,299 224,142 294,783 199,718 36,425 58,640
L Y 21,530 497,114 518,644 603,200 474,092 36,425 92,683
Street Lights and Beacons
Purchase of services..................ccocoeviiiiiii 168 125,000 125,168 125,168 94,156 - 31,012
Total Public WOrkS. ...........ccoueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiici e 2,788,394 4,956,221 7,744,615 10,811,301 5,484,542 4,980,048 346,711
Human Services
Board of Health
Personal Services.............ooovviiiiiiiiinici - 292,084 292,084 295,584 295,584 - -
Purchase of services.. . - 12,575 12,575 12,575 450 - 12,125
Materials and supplies. - 1,735 1,735 1,735 1,152 - 583
- 125 125 125 - - 125
- 306,519 306,519 310,019 297,186 - 12,833
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts

Amounts Current Year Actual Amounts Variance
Carried Forward Initial Original Final Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
From Prior Year Budget Budget Budget Amounts to Next Year Budget
Council on Aging
Personal services.... - - 238,186 238,186 238,186 205,315 - 32,871
Purchase of services. 82 5,540 5,622 5,623 5,086 449 88
Materials and supplies. 452 27,500 27,952 27,952 27,052 - 900
. - 5,200 5,200 5,200 1,450 383 3,367
L Y 534 276,426 276,960 276,961 238,903 832 37,226
Veterans' Benefits/Services
Personal services.... - - 86,803 86,803 86,803 85,752 - 1,051
Purchase of services. 66 126,160 126,226 126,226 55,626 - 70,600
Materials and supplies. 23 2,150 2,173 2,173 957 - 1,216
Total 89 215,113 215,202 215,202 142,335 - 72,867
Commission on Disabilities
Purchase of services................ccocoeiiiiiiin, 961 5,000 5,961 5,939 5,927 - 12
Total Human Services.. 1,584 803,058 804,642 808,121 684,351 832 122,938
Culture and Recreation
Library
Personal Services. ............ocoieiiiiiiiiiiies - 827,399 827,399 782,126 764,884 - 17,242
Purchase of services.. 95 141,414 141,509 141,509 130,011 - 11,498
Materials and supplies. - 136,250 136,250 136,272 131,310 - 4,962
- 2,000 2,000 47,273 7,063 37,054 3,156
95 1,107,063 1,107,158 1,107,180 1,033,268 37,054 36,858
Recreation
Personal Services. .............ocoviiiiiiiiiiies - 158,717 158,717 158,717 158,717 - -
Purchase of services.. . - 1,420 1,420 1,420 737 - 683
Materials and supplies. - 150 150 150 140 - 10
Total - 160,287 160,287 160,287 159,594 - 693
Beautification
Materials and supplies................ccccooeviiiiiiiinnn. - 29,586 29,586 29,586 20,633 8,860 93
Historical Buildings
Purchase of services................ccoooeiiiiiiiin - 23,200 23,200 23,200 23,082 - 118
Total Culture and Recreation.. 95 1,320,136 1,320,231 1,320,253 1,236,577 45,914 37,762
Debt Service
Principal. 6,500 5,149,966 5,156,466 5,149,966 5,143,452 6,500 14
Interest.. - 3,267,159 3,267,159 3,279,497 3,270,751 - 8,746
Total Debt Service. 6,500 8,417,125 8,423,625 8,429,463 8,414,203 6,500 8,760
Plymouth County Retirement. . - 5,759,996 5,759,996 5,759,996 5,759,996 - -
Workers' Compensation. . - 523,715 523,715 523,715 523,715 - -
Unemployment Insurance.... - 130,000 130,000 130,000 1,920 - 128,080
Contributory Group Insurance. - 6,461,034 6,461,034 6,231,034 6,080,017 - 151,017
Employee Benefits. - 927,062 927,062 1,205,403 1,151,907 - 53,496
State and county charges. - 645,744 645,744 645,744 660,370 - (14,626)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiins 5,933,115 87,037,163 92,970,278 97,809,540 87,544,846 9,037,290 1,227,404
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES............ccooviiiiiiiiinins (5,933,115) (1,085,777) (6,998,892) (11,693,220) 1,608,760 (9,037,290) 4,264,690
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers i - 1,678,448 1,678,448 1,889,993 2,022,255 - 132,262
Transfers out - (612,671) (612,671) (712,671) (712,671) - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES).......ccccvvviiiiiiiiiiiiens - 1,065,777 1,065,777 1,177,322 1,309,584 - 132,262
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE...........ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiie, (5,933,115) - (5,933,115) (10,515,898) 2,918,344 (9,037,290) 4,396,952
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year.................. - 11,890,118 11,890,118 11,890,118 11,890,118 - -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year...............c..ccooe $ _ (5,933,115) § 11,890,118 § 5,957,003 $ 1,374,220 $ 14,808,462 $ (9,037,290) $ 4,396,952
(Concluded)

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Pension Plan Schedules

The Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend information
on the Town’s net pension liability and related ratios.

The Schedule of the Town’s Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the Town'’s required and
actual contributions to the pension plan and related ratios.

The Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liability for the Massachusetts Teachers’
Contributory Retirement System presents multi-year trend information on the liability and expense assumed by
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on behalf of the Town along with related ratios.

These schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled, information
is presented for those years for which information is available.
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SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
PLYMOUTH COUNTY RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Plan fiduciary

Proportionate Net pension net position as

Proportion of share of the liability as a a percentage of
the net pension net pension percentage of the total

Year liability (asset) liability (asset) Covered payroll covered payroll pension liability
December 31, 2021.......... 6.700% $ 31,338,961 $ 20,676,989 151.56% 75.49%
December 31, 2020.......... 6.505% 38,129,072 19,850,207 192.08% 67.90%
December 31, 2019.......... 6.606% 45,072,067 19,410,942 232.20% 61.61%
December 31, 2018.......... 6.507% 47,847,320 18,435,372 259.54% 56.11%
December 31, 2017.......... 6.630% 35,785,407 18,325,397 195.28% 65.56%
December 31, 2016.......... 6.559% 41,548,935 17,428,266 238.40% 58.32%
December 31, 2015.......... 6.490% 41,160,818 17,153,284 239.96% 56.80%
December 31, 2014.......... 6.490% 37,830,302 16,533,286 228.81% 58.88%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S CONTRIBUTIONS
PLYMOUTH COUNTY RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Contributions in

relation to the Contributions as

Actuarially actuarially Contribution a percentage of
determined determined deficiency covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) Covered Payroll payroll
June 30, 2022..........cceeunennn $ 5,759,996 $ (5,759,996) $ -8 21,090,529 27.31%
June 30, 2021......cconveniinnns 5,228,790 (5,228,790) - 20,247,211 25.82%
June 30, 2020..........ccueeunennn 4,875,453 (4,875,453) - 19,799,161 24.62%
June 30,2019......ccciiiiinnnn. 4,730,553 (4,730,553) - 18,804,079 25.16%
June 30,2018.......ceeuiinnnns 4,530,275 (4,530,275) - 18,691,905 24.24%
June 30, 2017....cccevniiniinnns 4,373,651 (4,373,651) - 17,776,831 24.60%
June 30,2016.......c.cceuevnnenns 4,141,767 (4,141,767) - 17,496,350 23.67%
June 30,2015.......cieeiiinnnns 3,912,145 (3,912,145) - 16,863,952 23.20%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE SPECIAL FUNDING AMOUNTS
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make all
actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which creates a special funding
situation. Therefore, there is no net pension liability to recognize. This schedule discloses the Commonwealth's
100% share of the associated collective net pension liability; the portion of the collective pension expense as both
a revenue and pension expense recognized; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
liability.

Expense and

Commonwealth's Revenue Plan Fiduciary Net
100% Share of the Recognized for the Position as a
Associated Net Commonwealth's Percentage of the
Year Pension Liability Support Total Liability
2022, $ 82,635,526 $ 6,631,157 62.03%
20270 106,540,276 13,159,250 50.67%
2020 e 93,677,876 11,360,068 53.95%
2019, 90,431,128 9,163,885 54.84%
2018, 88,176,599 9,203,248 54.25%
2017 84,962,764 8,666,759 52.73%
2016 . 78,329,833 6,353,247 55.38%
2015, 60,029,569 4,170,542 61.64%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment Benefits
Plan Schedules

The Schedule of Changes in the Town’s Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios presents
multi-year trend information on changes in the Plan’s total OPEB liability, changes in the Plan’s net position, and
ending net OPEB liability. It also demonstrates the Plan’s net position as a percentage of the total liability and the
Plan’s net other postemployment benefit liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll.

The Schedule of the Town’s Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the Town’s actual
contributions to the other postemployment benefit plan and related ratios.

The Schedule of Investment Returns presents multi-year trend information on the money-weighted investment
return on the Plan’s other postemployment assets, net of investment expense.

These schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled, information
is presented for those years for which information is available.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE
TOWN'S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost.
Interest
Changes of benefit terms..............ccoooeiiiiiin,
Differences between expected and actual experience...
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments...

Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning..............ccocooviiiiiiiiaiann.

Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Employer contributions..............c.coociiiiiiiiiiii $
Employer contributions for OPEB payments..
Net investment income
Benefit payments............oooiiiiiiiii

Net change in plan fiduciary net position.......................
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning of year.................
Plan fiduciary net position - end of year (b).................... $
Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b)........cccovvruiiinnniinnnns $
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total OPEB liability............cccocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiens
Covered-employee payroll.............c.cooieiiiiiiiiieeinn. $

Net OPERB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll..............cccoeeeiiiiinnnnn.

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
1,957,066 $ 2,015,778 $ 1,694,878 $ 2,463,965 $ 2,817,329 $ 1,792,977
2,256,740 2,905,100 2,643,829 2,552,102 2,705,142 4,264,986

16,839,537 - 17,509,406 22,452,444 (19,074,485) (33,142,724)
(2,363,041) (2,694,490) (2,583,400) (2,493,739) (2,766,737) (2,735,317)
18,690,302 2,226,388 19,264,713 24,974,772 (16,318,751) (29,820,078)
65,659,808 84,350,110 86,576,498 105,841,211 130,815,983 114,497,232
84,350,110 $ 86,576,498 § 105,841,211 $ 130,815,983 $ 114,497,232 $ 84,677,154
137,473 §$ 90,605 $ 94611 $ 97,509 $ 343,866 $ 393,541
2,363,041 2,694,490 2,583,400 2,493,739 2,766,737 2,735,317
6,740 14,097 25,325 19,202 2,493 6,010
(2,363,041) (2,694,490) (2,583,400) (2,493,739) (2,766,737) (2,735,317)
144,213 104,702 119,936 116,711 346,359 399,551
675,922 820,135 924,837 1,044,773 1,161,484 1,507,843
820,135 § 924,837 % 1,044,773 $ 1,161,484 $ 1,507,843 $ 1,907,394
83,529,975 $ 85,651,661 § 104,796,438 $ 129,654,499 $ 112,989,389 $ 82,769,760
0.97% 1.07% 0.99% 0.89% 1.32% 2.25%
45,656,152 $ 49,673,355 $ 47,442,764 $ 47,490,207 $ 49,633,894 $ 49,584,310
182.95% 172.43% 220.89% 273.01% 227.65% 166.93%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Contributions in

relation to the Contributions as
Actuarially actuarially Contribution a percentage of
determined determined deficiency Covered- covered-
Year contribution contribution (excess) employee payroll employee payroll
June 30, 2022................ $ 8,145910 § (3,128,858) $ 5,017,052 § 49,584,310 6.31%
June 30, 2021................ 7,833,681 (3,110,603) 4,723,078 49,633,894 6.27%
June 30, 2020................ 7,480,447 (2,591,248) 4,889,199 47,537,697 5.45%
June 30, 2019................ 6,999,138 (2,678,011) 4,321,127 47,490,207 5.64%
June 30, 2018 (1)........... 2,785,095 (2,785,095) - 49,723,028 5.60%
June 30, 2017 (1)........... 2,500,514 (2,500,514) - 46,569,275 5.37%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.
(1) Statutorily determined contribution.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Annual money-weighted
rate of return,

Year net of investment expense
June 30,2022.......ccciiiiii 0.34%
June 30, 2021 0.19%
June 30, 2020........ccciviiiiiian 1.69%
June 30,2019, 2.50%
June 30,2018......ccoiiiiii 1.61%
June 30, 2017 ..., 0.89%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE A — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by the Town’s Advisory Committee
(Committee) and the Select Board (Board). The Town Administrator submits a proposed operating budget to the
Committee and the Board for the ensuing year. The Board and the Committee hold public hearings on the
proposed budget and present the proposed budget to an open Town meeting. The proposed budget includes
detailed estimates of revenues and anticipated expenditures and other financing sources and other financing
uses. Town meeting has full authority to amend and/or reject the budget or any line item and adopts the
expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget, requires
a vote at a special Town meeting.

The maijority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each year. Others are continuing
appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior year be carried
forward and made available for spending in the current year. These carry forwards are included as part of the
subsequent year’s original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending authorized for an appropriation account. This
level is typically at the individual department salary and expense level. However, the payment of debt service is
statutorily required, regardless of whether such amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for
disasters, natural or otherwise, and final judgments may exceed the level of spending authorized with the
approval of the Department of Revenue; and expenditures related to snow and ice removal may exceed the level
of spending authorized with the approval of the Select Board.

The Town adopts an annual budget for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The
original 2022 approved budget for the general fund includes $87.6 million in current year appropriations and other
amounts to be raised and $5.9 million in encumbrances and appropriations carried over from previous years.
During the year, additional appropriations were approved totaling $4.9 million.

Along with the Town Administrator, the Finance Director has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is
maintained. Budgetary control is exercised through the accounting system.

Appropriation Deficits

During 2022, actual expenditures excessed appropriations for state and county charges. State and county
charges are assessments from the Commonwealth, which are directly deducted from local receipts provided by
the state. The Town is not required to raise the state and county deficit.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgetary — GAAP Reconciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A reconciliation
of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the year ended June 30, 2022, is presented
below:

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis................................ $ 2,918,344

Perspective differences:
Activity of the stabilization fund recorded in the
general fund for GAAP ... 379,251
Workers' Compensation Fund................ccoiiiii, 291,624

Basis of accounting differences:

Net change in recording 60 day receiptS..........cccooviieiineninanne. (12,436)
Recognition of revenue for on-behalf payments........................... 6,631,157
Recognition of expenditures for on-behalf payments.................... (6,631,157)
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis...........cccococviiiiiiiiiiinnn, $ 3,576,783

NOTE B — PENSION PLAN
Pension Plan Schedules

Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

The Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability details the allocated percentage of
the net pension liability (asset), the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the covered employee
payroll. It also demonstrates the net position as a percentage of the pension liability and the net pension liability
as a percentage of covered payroll.

Schedule of the Town’s Contributions

Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation as established by PERAC. The
appropriation includes the amounts to pay the pension portion of each member’s retirement allowance, an amount
to amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance with the system’s funding schedule,
and additional appropriations in accordance with adopted early retirement incentive programs. The appropriations
are payable on July 1 and January 1. The Town may choose to pay the entire appropriation in July at a
discounted rate. Accordingly, actual contributions may be less than the “total appropriation”. The pension fund
appropriation is allocated to the Town based on covered payroll.

Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liability

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make all
actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which creates a special funding
situation. Since the Town does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. This
schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the collective net pension liability that is associated with
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2022

the Town; the portion of the collective pension expense as both a revenue and pension expense recognized by
the Town; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability.

Changes in Assumptions

There were no changes in assumptions in the January 1, 2022, actuarial valuation.

Changes in Plan Provisions

There were no changes in plan provisions in the January 1, 2022, actuarial valuation.

NOTE C — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Town administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“the Other Post Employment Benefit
Plan”). The plan provides lifetime healthcare and life insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the
Town’s health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members, including teachers.

The Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

Schedule of Changes in the Town’s Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios

The Schedule of Changes in the Town’s Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios presents
multi-year trend information on changes in the Plan’s total OPEB liability, changes in the Plan’s net position, and
ending net OPEB liability. It also demonstrates the Plan’s net position as a percentage of the total liability and the
Plan’s net other postemployment benefit liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll.

Schedule of the Town’s Contributions

The Schedule of the Town’s Contributions includes the Town’s annual required contribution to the Plan, along
with the contribution made in relation to the actuarially determined contribution and the covered employee payroll.
The Town is not required to fully fund this contribution. It also demonstrates the contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll. Actuarially contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal
year in which contributions are reported. Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates are
reported in the following table:

Valuation date........................ July 1, 2020

Actuarial cost method.............. Entry Age Normal as a Level Percentage of Payroll.

Asset valuation method............ Fair Value of Assets.

Discount rate...........c..ccceevnennn, 3.77%

Salary increases..................... 3.00% annually as of June 30, 2022, and for future periods.
Healthcare cost trend rate......... 7.0% as of July 1, 2022, decreasing .25% to an ultimate trend of

4.5% starting July 1, 2032.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2022

Mortality........cooovvviiiiii, Society of Actuaries Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Healthy
Male and Female Total Dataset Headcount-Weighted Mortality
based on Employee and Health Annuitant Tables for both pre and
post retirement projected with mortality improvements using the
most current Society of Actuaries Improvement Scale MP-2019.

Schedule of Investment Returns

The Schedule of Investment Returns includes the money-weighted investment return on the Plan’s other
postemployment assets, net of investment expense.

Changes in Assumptions

The discount rate increased from 2.09% to 3.77%.

Changes in Plan Provisions

None.
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Combining Statements

The combining statements provide a more detailed view of the “Basic Financial Statements” presented in the
preceding subsection.

Combining statements are presented when there is more than one fund of a given type.

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts 100 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report



Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds:

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for
particular purposes.

School Lunch — To account for the operations of the public school lunch program.

School Gifts and Grants — To account for educational programs specifically financed by gifts, grants and other
restricted revenues.

School Revolving — To account for self-supporting educational programs and activities.
Town Gifts — To account for various gifts administered by Town departments.

Town Grants — To account for various grants and legally restricted revenues for special programs administered by
Town departments.

Town Revolving — To account for self-supporting programs and activities.

Highway Improvements — To account for construction, reconstruction and improvements of roadways, streets and
sidewalks.

Title V Program — To account for the Massachusetts Title V assistance program to regulate septic systems.
Affordable Housing — To account for the activity related to the creation and preservation of affordable housing.

Other Special Revenue — To account for the activity of other special revenue funds that are not categorized within
any of the other funds.

Capital Projects Funds:

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than
those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Library Renovation — To account for the renovation of Town library.
Middle School Construction — To account for the construction of the new middle school.

Permanent Fund:

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not
principal, may be used for purposes that support governmental programs.

Town Trust Fund — To account for various gifts, bequests and contributions held for which only earnings may be
expended for purposes specified by the donor in relation to other Town activities.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

School
School Gifts and School Town Town Town Highway
Lunch Grants Revolving Gifts Grants Revolving Improvements
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents...............ccccoeeveeeiiinns $ 719775 $ 1,791,085 $ 1,076,095 $ 913,539 $ 566,302 $ 7,661,695 $ -
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:
Departmental and other - - - - - - -
Intergovernmental - 266,269 - - 903,995 - 561,291
Special assessments............coceeeiiiiiiiiiiniann.. - - - - - 2,956 -
TOTAL ASSETS. ..o $ 719775 $ 2,057,354 $ 1,076,095 $ 913,539 $ 1,470,297 § 7,664,651 $ 561,291
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable..............ccceeeeeeeeieeeeeeneeenenn. $ 2513 § 283,359 $ 7,764 $ 275 $ 9,353 $ 87,573 $ -
Accrued payroll 1,331 10,296 7,550 - 1,038 17,791 -

Other liabilities
Unearned revenue................cccoeeeuiiiiiiiiinnnnn. - - - - 990,374 - -
Notes payable.............ocoiviiiiiiiiiiiiiines - - - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..o, 3,844 293,655 15,314 275 1,000,765 105,364 -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue.................cccoeeeiiiiinnn, - - - - - 2,956 561,291

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable.............ccooeeviiiiiiiiiiii, - - - - - - -
Restricted 715,931 1,763,699 1,060,781 913,264 469,532 7,556,331 -
Unassigned - - - - - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES.........covviiiiiiiiiinnnnnn. 715,931 1,763,699 1,060,781 913,264 469,532 7,556,331 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES............. $ 719775 $ 2,057,354 $ 1,076,095 $ 913,539 $ 1,470,297 $ 7,664,651 $ 561,291

(Continued)
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Permanent

Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds Funds
Total
Other Town Nonmajor
Title V Affordable Special Library Middle School Trust Governmental
Program Housing Revenue Subtotal Renovation Construction Subtotal Fund Funds

$ 112,690 $ 617,148 $ 1,612,751 $ 15,071,080 $ 474,020 $ 2,779,791 $ 3,253,811 §$ 338,607 $ 18,663,498
- - 105,235 105,235 - - - - 105,235

- - - 1,731,655 - - - - 1,731,555

137,780 - - 140,736 - - - - 140,736

$ 250,470 $ 617,148 $ 1,717,986 $ 17,048,606 $ 474,020 $ 2,779,791 $ 3,253,811 $ 338,607 $ _ 20,641,024
$ -8 - $ 2,326 $ 393,163 $ -8 113,206 $ 113,206 $ 116§ 506,485
- - 11,718 49,724 - - - - 49,724

- - 1,738,145 1,738,145 - - - - 1,738,145

- - - 990,374 - - - - 990,374

32,000 - - 32,000 - - - - 32,000
32,000 - 1,752,189 3,203,406 - 113,206 113,206 116 3,316,728
137,780 - 105,235 807,262 - - - - 807,262

- - - - - - - 27,051 27,051

80,690 617,148 - 13,177,376 474,020 2,666,585 3,140,605 311,440 16,629,421

- - (139,438) (139,438) - - - - (139,438)

80,690 617,148 (139,438) 13,037,938 474,020 2,666,585 3,140,605 338,491 16,517,034

$ 250,470 $ 617,148 $ 1,717,986 $ 17,048,606 $ 474,020 $ 2,779,791 $ 3,253,811 $ 338,607 $ _ 20,641,024
(Concluded)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

School
School Gifts and School Town Town Town Highway
Lunch Grants Revolving Gifts Grants Revolving Improvements
REVENUES:
Penalties and interest on taxes. -3 -3 -8 -8 -8 -8 -
Fees and rentals - - - - - 57,725 -
Licenses and permits.. - - - - - 326,710 -
Intergovernmental 1,389,515 3,790,413 - - 2,418,757 180,496 792,461
Departmental and othel . 56,960 - 1,344,509 - - 2,705,662 -
Special assessments - - - - - - -
Contributions and donations. - - 57,766 532,339 4,211 1,500 -
Investment income - - - - 2,207 - -
TOTALREVENUES.........oooiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,446,475 3,790,413 1,402,275 532,339 2,425,175 3,272,093 792,461
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government e - - - 375,017 321,960 672,253 -
Public safety - - - - 539,299 71,700 -
Education 1,106,862 3,167,315 1,206,877 - - - -
Public works - - - - 852,036 451,758 792,461
Human services - - - 9,741 169,501 247,019 -
Culture and recreation. - - - 14,474 17,663 426,938 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.. 1,106,862 3,167,315 1,206,877 399,232 1,900,459 1,869,668 792,461
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES.... 339,613 623,098 195,398 133,107 524,716 1,402,425 -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Premium from issuance of bonds... - - - - - 69,950 -
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets - - - - - 494,840 -
Transfers out. - - - - (96,832) (500,132) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).......... - - - - (96,832) 64,658 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES...........occoiiiiiiiii, 339,613 623,098 195,398 133,107 427,884 1,467,083 -
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR............cccovuanns 376,318 1,140,601 865,383 780,157 41,648 6,089,248 -
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR........cccoiiiiiiiiniiiiis $ 715931 $ 1,763,699 $ 1,060,781 $ 913,264 $ 469,532 $ 7,556,331 $ -

(Continued)
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Permanent

Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds Funds
Total
Other Town Nonmajor
Title V Affordable Special Library Middle School Trust Governmental
Program Housing Revenue Subtotal Renovation Construction Subtotal Fund Funds
$ 10 § -3 -3 10 § -3 -3 -8 -3 10
- - - 57,725 - - - - 57,725
- - - 326,710 - - - - 326,710
- - - 8,571,642 - - - - 8,571,642
- - 1,016,896 5,124,027 - - - 300 5,124,327
14,212 - - 14,212 - - - - 14,212
- - - 595,816 - - - 19,031 614,847
- 1,979 - 4,186 - - - 187 4,373
14,222 1,979 1,016,896 14,694,328 - - - 19,518 14,713,846
- 3,537 - 1,372,767 - - - - 1,372,767
- - 1,067,996 1,678,995 - - - 15,113 1,694,108
- - - 5,481,054 - 98,644 98,644 - 5,579,698
- - - 2,096,255 - - - - 2,096,255
4,107 - - 430,368 - - - - 430,368
- - - 459,075 - - - 21,501 480,576
4,107 3,537 1,067,996 11,518,514 - 98,644 98,644 36,614 11,653,772
10,115 (1,558) (51,100) 3,175,814 - (98,644) (98,644) (17,096) 3,060,074
- - - 69,950 - - - - 69,950
- - - 494,840 - - - - 494,840
(10,962) - - (607,926) - - - - (607,926)
(10,962) - - (43,136) - - - - (43,136)
(847) (1,558) (51,100) 3,132,678 - (98,644) (98,644) (17,096) 3,016,938
81,537 618,706 (88,338) 9,905,260 474,020 2,765,229 3,239,249 355,587 13,500,096
$ 80,690 $ 617,148 $ (139,438) $ 13,037,938 $ 474,020 $ 2,666,585 $ 3,140,605 $ 338,491 $ 16,517,034
(Concluded)
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Statistical Section

Statistical tables differ from financial statements since they usually cover more than one year and may present
nonaccounting data. The following tables reflect social and economic data, financial trends, and fiscal capacity.

The $5M green sand filter facility for well 17A was completed and will bring the high performing well back into
use.



Statistical Section
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Statistical Section

This part of the Town of Scituate’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the Town’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends

o These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Town’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

o These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Town’s most significant local revenue
source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity

e These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Town’s current
levels of outstanding debt and the Town'’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

e These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the Town’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

e These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the Town’s financial report relates to the services the Town provides and the activities it
performs.

SOURCES: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual
comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year.
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Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government.
Public safety.

Public works.
Human service:
Culture and recreation..
Community Preservation.
Interest...... .o

Total government activities expenses....................

Business-type activities:
Water.
Sewer.
Transfer Statior
Widow's Walk Golf Course.
Waterways...

Total business-type activities expenses.................
Total primary government expenses.....................

Program Revenues

Governmental activities:
Education charges for services.
Public works charges for services.
Culture and recreation charges for service:
Other charges for service:
Operating grants and contribution:
Capital grant and contribution:

Total government activities program revenues.........

Business-type activities:
Charges for services - water..
Charges for services - sewer.
Charges for services - transfer station.
Charges for services - Widow's Walk golf course.
Charges for services - waterways.
Operating grants and contribution:
Capital grant and contributions..

Total business-type activities program revenue:

Total primary government program revenues..........

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities....
Busil type activitie:

Total primary government net expense..................

General Revenues and other
Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:
Real estate and personal property taxes, and liens
net of tax refunds payable...
Motor vehicle and other excise and meals taxes.
Community preservation taxes.
Hotel/motel tax
Penalties and interest on taxes.
Payments in lieu of taxes.
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific program:
Unrestricted investment income.......................
Gain on sale of capital assets.
Miscellaneous.
Transfers.

Total governmental activities.

Business-type activitie:
Boat excise taxes
Unrestricted investment income
Transfers.

Total business-type activities.................ccccceeeinnn

Total primary government.

Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities....
Busil type activitie:

Total primary government.

Source: Audited Financial Statements

(1) Reflects the implementation of GASB Statement #75.

(2) Reflects the implementation of GASB Statement #84

Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Years

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 (1) 2019 2020 (2 2021 2022
$ 3,547,721 $ 3,980,838 $ 4,637,844 $ 5,725,030 $ 6,914,696 $ 5,019,630 $ 5,643,145 $ 6,893,037 $ 5,904,608 $ 6,564,163
11,836,261 12,110,134 13,035,851 12,021,614 13,961,543 12,795,431 14,130,874 15,051,075 15,270,479 15,561,327
51,504,431 54,373,306 49,681,533 53,391,065 58,266,053 60,797,560 62,671,600 76,548,657 73,633,769 62,353,757
6,041,795 5,345,710 6,644,331 6,661,476 6,772,113 7,642,737 8,123,398 8,147,241 9,071,595 8,578,931
1,121,401 1,208,709 1,109,054 1,168,070 1,278,792 1,224,449 1,335,260 1,495,159 1,596,684 1,767,701
2,007,788 2,096,100 2,122,181 2,286,926 2,138,607 2,342,960 2,695,966 2,734,028 2,607,980 2,781,089
2,480 721,633 155,246 130,760 224,085 669,199 554,272 2,335,939 508,564 532,980
651,163 566,494 994,681 2,879,164 2,734,823 2,504,115 2,669,249 2,426,884 2,115,059 2,325,451
76,713,040 80,402,924 78,380,721 84,264,105 92,290,712 92,996,081 97,823,764 115,632,020 110,708,738 100,465,399
2,878,148 2,388,501 2,921,574 4,054,625 3,868,646 3,810,808 4,360,612 4,930,684 4,069,886 5,183,382
2,932,595 2,848,214 3,375,871 3,128,287 2,974,792 2,883,573 2,912,077 3,379,048 2,912,067 3,751,452
1,086,630 1,187,936 1,086,167 1,375,061 1,207,292 1,234,424 1,314,007 1,449,897 1,344,058 1,399,147
1,133,478 966,552 1,064,074 1,156,122 1,086,376 1,034,992 1,113,660 1,215,838 1,450,465 1,283,272
952,822 920,502 952,933 1,459,517 1,168,291 855,452 962,302 1,338,580 703,181 1,191,087
8,983,673 8,311,705 9,400,619 11,173,612 10,305,397 9,819,249 10,662,658 12,314,047 10,479,657 12,808,340
$ 85696713 $ _ 88714629 $ _ 87,781,340 § _ 95437.717 §$ _102,506,109 $ _102,815330 §$ _ 108486422 $ _ 127,946,067 $ _ 121,188,395 §$ _ 113,273,739
$ 1,989,005 $ 1,969,243 $ 1,953,724 $ 2,110,824 $ 2,251,687 $ 2,470,152 § 2472917 $ 1,784,273 § 741,208 $ 1,378,904
497,826 590,965 654,143 660,659 670,351 733,935 491,996 503,001 799,643 720,790
408,533 401,894 435,018 434,336 447,629 501,107 521,642 258,905 395,676 642,998
2,205,136 2,130,181 3,032,230 3,387,990 3,152,396 3,573,853 3,707,787 4,458,547 5,514,643 5,772,650
15,220,665 16,949,683 13,015,067 16,097,906 24,218,440 19,742,143 18,840,563 23,125,330 28,390,377 21,426,516
958,424 1,344,565 4,496,678 7,304,433 13,532,885 3,745,605 1,256,738 1,239,266 1,405,279 1,320,981
21,279,589 23,386,531 23,586,860 29,996,148 44,273,388 30,766,795 27,291,643 31,369,322 37,246,826 31,262,839
3,031,977 2,421,697 4,173,754 4,696,834 4,149,827 3,629,529 5,045,558 5,899,132 6,675,381 7,443,362
1,778,510 1,732,988 1,415,916 2,137,487 2,109,666 2,045,042 3,008,321 2,975,065 2,845,095 3,455,296
1,228,419 1,201,259 1,202,974 1,168,672 1,105,277 1,259,774 1,380,824 1,460,063 1,686,076 1,586,157
1,244,651 1,209,170 1,255,771 1,350,468 1,111,370 1,098,286 1,188,747 1,206,964 1,735,244 1,638,373
977,575 1,036,067 1,043,816 1,119,575 1,182,537 1,165,960 1,208,633 1,177,996 1,207,307 1,325,791
1,725 238,088 213,160 184,361 137,679 69,760 - 209,490 - -
188,126 6,430,626 688,590 480,722 . - . 255,653 3,575,144 246,797
8,450,983 14,269,895 9,993,981 11,138,119 9,796,356 9,268,351 11,832,083 13,184,363 17,724,247 15,695,776
$ 29,730,572 $ 37,656,426 $ 33,580,841 $ 41,134,267 $ 54,069,744 $ 40,035,146 $ 39,123,726 $ 44,553,685 $ 54,971,073 $ 46,958,615
$ (55433451) § (57,016,393) § (54,793861) $ (54,267.957) $ (48,017,324) $  (62,229,286) $ (70,532,121) § (84,262,698) $  (73,461912) $  (69,202,560)
(532,690) 5,958,190 593,362 (35,493) (509,041) (550,898) 1,169,425 870,316 7,244,590 2,887,436
$ (55,966,141) $ _ (51,058,203) $  (54,200,499) $ _ (54,303.450) $ 48,526,365) $ 62,780,184) $ 69,362,696) $ 83,392,382) $ 66,217,322) $ 66,315,124
$ 48002624 $ 50035148 $ 51463244 $ 57,633851 $ 60149945 $  61,860468 $ 63772350 $ 65656279 $ 68462822 $ 72,250,221
2,530,107 2,818,956 3,026,616 3,198,586 3,357,113 3,499,736 3,596,786 3,528,461 3,781,587 3,888,509
1,105,543 1,158,916 1,201,728 1,356,633 1,428,997 1,488,590 1,548,124 1,587,578 1,669,008 1,797,981
- - . . . - . 104,145 135,953 180,519
447,439 640,163 446,774 487,036 523,966 408,710 335,999 311,089 422,789 448,913
- . 19,601 20,370 19,907 16,798 18,914 17,437 49,109 28,563
1,806,527 1,933,158 1,938,534 2,305,361 2,279,401 2,419,774 2,346,541 2,757,334 2,517,585 2,470,602
55,527 88,567 186,336 611,498 542,053 526,030 810,987 559,717 186,912 151,877
- . . . . 206,432 161,792 . . 1,039,580
576,098 679,700 311,551 71,543 119,997 324,069 342,682 91,185 34,080 185,475
(746,994) (768,508) (804,675) (679,618) (660,771) (690,835) (798,789) (180,079) (97,982) (35.988)
53,776,871 56,586,100 57,789,709 65,004,260 67,760,608 70,059,772 72,135,386 74,433,146 77,161,863 82,406,252
36,042 39,821 40,363 40,695 39,761 40,378 43,108 42,535 43,691 41,875
- . 25,952 66,569 89,895 116,654 170,296 120,953 50,993 36,312
746,994 768,508 804,675 679,618 660,771 690,835 798,789 180,079 97,982 35,988
783,036 808,329 870,990 786,882 790,427 847,867 1,012,193 343,567 192,666 114,175
$ 54,559,907 $ 57,394,429 $ 58,660,699 $ 65,791,142 $ 68,551,035 $ 70,907,639 $ 73,147,579 $ 74,776,713 $ 77,354,529 $ 82,520,427
$  (1656,580) $ (430293) $ 2995848 $ 10,736,303 $ 19743284 $ 7,830,486 S 1603265 $  (9,829552) § 3,699,951 $§ 13,203,692
250,346 6,766,519 1,464,352 751,389 281,386 296,969 2,181,618 1,213,883 7,437,256 3,001,611
$ _ (1,406,234) $ 6,336,226 $ 4,460,200 $ 11,487,692 $ 20,024,670 $ 8,127,455 § 3,784,883 $ (8,615,669) $ 11,137,207 $ 16,205,303

Town of Scituate, Massachusetts
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Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property by Classification and Tax Rates

Last Ten Years

Assessed and Actual Values and Tax Rates

Total Commercial Total Total
Residential Residential Commercial Industrial Personal Commercial Commercial % of Direct Town
Year Value Tax Rate Value Value Property Value Tax Rate Total Value Rate Value

2013 $ 3,608,700,390 $ 12.72 $ 126,075,000 $ 5,181,100 $ 40,087,220 $ 171,343,320 $ 12.72 4.53% $12.72 $ 3,780,043,710
2014 $ 3,654,706,380 $ 13.05 $ 125,105,420 $ 9,112,700 $ 37,686,890 $ 171,905,010 $ 13.05 4.49% $13.05 $ 3,826,611,390
2015 $ 3,763,130,865 $ 13.10 $ 125,426,835 $ 12,415,000 $ 41,124,550 $ 178,966,385 $ 13.10 4.54% $13.10 $ 3,942,097,250
2016 $ 3,901,948,229 § 14.14 $ 126,200,871 $ 12,415,000 $ 41,692,030 $ 180,307,901 $ 14.14 4.42% $14.14 § 4,082,256,130
2017 $ 4,091,047,873 § 14.09 $ 126,931,317 $ 12,397,200 $ 44,743,570 $ 184,072,087 $ 14.09 4.31% $14.09 $ 4,275,119,960
2018 $ 4,258,651,412 § 13.95 $ 127,874,848 $ 12,738,600 $ 44,453,220 $ 185,066,668 $ 13.95 4.16% $13.95 § 4,443,718,080
2019 $ 4,450617,970 $ 13.74 $ 140,706,810 $ 12,877,900 $ 46,501,060 $ 200,085,770 $ 13.74 4.30% $13.74 $ 4,650,703,740
2020 $ 4,667,591,742 § 13.50 $ 144,427,298 $ 12,411,000 $ 50,621,640 $ 207,459,938 $ 13.50 4.26% $13.50 $ 4,875,051,680
2021 $ 4,937,276,419 § 13.33 $ 145,311,611 $ 12,457,100 $ 51,283,890 $ 209,052,601 $ 13.33 4.06% $13.33 $ 5,146,329,020
2022 $ 5,498,185,864 $ 12.62 $ 151,800,156 $ 13,187,000 $ 62,396,440 $ 227,383,596 $ 12.62 3.97% $12.62 § 5,725569,460

Total Assessed Value by Classification Total Assessed Value by Classification
Year Ended June 30, 2021 Year Ended June 30, 2022

=024% 4 1009 = 0.23% 9
. . 1.00% -23%, = 1.09%
2.82%_ ‘ = 265% \ /

— = 96.03%

™ 95.94%

® Residential @ Commercial ~ ® Industrial ~ ® Personal Property = Residential = Commercial = Industrial = Personal Property

Commercial Value as % of Total Value

4.65%
4.55%
4.45%
4.35%
4.25%
4.15%
4.05%
3.95%
3.85%

3.75%
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Source: Assessor's Department, Town of Scituate, Department of Revenue records and Official Statements.
All property in the Commonwealth of M husetts is d at 100% of fair cash value.

The Town is not subject to any overlapping revenue rates.

Note: Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws, known as "Proposition 2 1/2", imposes 2 separate limits on the annual tax levy of the Town. The primary limitation
is that the tax levy cannot exceed 2 1/2 percent of the full and fair cash value. The secondary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed the maximum levy limit for the preceding year
as determined by the State Commissioner of Revenue by more than 2 1/2 percent, subject to an exception for property added to the tax rolls and for certain substantial valuation increases
other than as part of a general revaluation. The secondary limit may be exceeded in any year by a majority vote of the voters, however it cannot exceed the primary limitation.
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Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2022

Estimated Current Year
Estimated Share of Assessment for
Debt Percentage Overlapping Operations and
Town of Scituate, Massachusetts Outstanding Applicable (1) Debt Debt Service
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Plymouth County.........ccooeiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 550,000 5.74% $ 31,570 $ 99,791
Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority............. 5,349,346 0.076% 4,066 -
South Shore Regional Vocational Technical
School District (SSRSD).......cccvvuieiiiiiiiiieneeennen - 7.58% - 552,944
Estimated share of overlapping debt....... ... 35,636
TOWN dIir€C EDt. .. ..o 80,489,258
Total direct and overlapping debt. ... ... $ 80,524,894

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with geographic boundaries of the Town. This
schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the taxpayers
of Town. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the
entire debt burden borne by the property taxpayers should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every
taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

Source: Plymouth County Treasurer, SSRSD & Official statements

(1) County expenses, including debt service, are assessed upon the Towns within the County in proportion
to their taxable valuation.
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Work continues to resolve multiple FEMA disaster claims from Storm Sandy (2012), Storm Nemo (2013), Storm
Juno (2015) and Storm Riley (2018). The revetment at Third Cliff was damaged in all four disasters and the

lengthy permitting process has been ongoing for several years. Borings at various areas of the revetment were
completed as part of that process.

A contract was awarded for repair of the Storm Riley damage to an outfall pipe (PW366).



